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ALM Asset and Liability Management

Committee

.......................................... Tier Additional Tier 1

........................................ Automatic Teller Machine

.................................... associates

BOC teviiviiiiiiiins
H A

Bank of China Limited

BVI BOC
BOC (BVI)  .eoeeveeeennn.
BVI BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited
BOC (

) BOC Credit Card (International) Limited

Bank of China Group Insurance

Bank

of China (Hong Kong) Limited Charitable Foundation

(Bank of China Group Charitable Foundation)
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BOC ) BOCHKG
BOC BOC Hong Kong (Group)
Limited
BOCHK BOC Bank of China (Hong Kong)
............................................. Limited
BOCI ......... BOC
BOC International Holdings Limited
BOCI
BOCI
64 36 BOCI
BOCI-Prudential Asset
Management Limited
BOCI BOC
64 36
BOCI
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
BOC BOC
BOC 51 49 BOC
BOC
Group Life Assurance Company Limited
BOC s
( ) Bank of China (Malaysia)
Berhad
BOC
( ) Bank of
China (Thai) Public Company Limited
CAS (Chinese Accounting Standard for Business

Enterprises)
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Chief Executive
Tier Common Equity Tier 1
Chief Financial Officer
China

Investment Corporation

(Chief Risk Officer)

Credit Valuation Adjustment

Central Huijin Investment Limited

Deputy Chief Executive

Debit Valuation Adjustment

Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio

(Foundation Internal Ratings-Based)

(Fitch Ratings)

Gross Domestic Product

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
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HKAS ...l Hong Kong Accounting Standard

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard

HKFRS oo e
HKICPA ... Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants
HKMA ... Hong Kong Monetary Authority
Hong Kong Special
HKSAR ot Administrative Region of the PRC
IBOR i
ICAAP o Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process
IFRS (International Financial Reporting
Standard)
IMM Internal Models Method
IT
LCO ottt et e
Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management
Department
LCR e Liquidity Coverage Ratio
[ 2O N London Interbank Offered Rate
MC Management Committee
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Mandatory Provident Fund

485

Moody * s Investors

Service

426

Over-the-counter

Price Value of a Basis Point

Renminbi  RMB

Risk Committee

Risk Management Department

Risk-weighted Assets

571 Securities and Futures

Ordinance
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STC Standardised (Credit Risk)
ST Standardised (Market Risk)
STO o Standardised

(Operational Risk)

(Standard & Poor s Ratings Services)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BOC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited

VaR o Value at Risk
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®» ()
)
)
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
o 40,523 34,738 31,941 38,750 51,078
(812,486) (696,497) (640,417) (776,938) (1,024,114)
o 10,919 10,842 11,872 9,800 9,167
(218,926) (217,382) (238,034) (196,490) (183,798)
o 18,412 18,460 15,704 - -
(369, 161) (370,123) (314,865) - -
® - - - 1,137 946
- - - (22,797) (18,967)
o 79,736 76,641 65,575 - -
(1,598,707)|  (1,536,652)  (1,314,779) - -
- - - 54,215 65,498
(1) - - - (1,087,011)|  (1,313,235)
o 56,422 51,767 46,837 51,867 59,165
(1,131,261)|  (1,037,928) (939,082)|  (1,039,933) (1,186,258)
o 39,755 35,420 30,430 34,917 42,558
(797,088) (710,171) (610,122) (700,086) (853,288)
o 40,088 33,583 29,968 33,162 40,914
(803,764) (673,339) (600, 858) (664,898) (820, 326)
o 34,074 28,468 24,999 27,230 34,857
(683,184) (570,783) (501,230) (545,962) (698,883)
o 32,184 26,487 22,970 25,940 32,723
(645,289) (531,064) (460,549) (520,097) (656,096)
©® 16,250 13,131 11,947 14,347 17,678
(325,813) (263,277) (239,537) (287,657) (354, 444)
39,961 28,951 22,517 15,045 37,898
(801,218) (580, 468) (451, 466) (301,652) (759, 855)
3,026,056 3,320,981 3,639,430 3,666,505 3,868,783
(60,672,423)|  (66,585,669)| (72,970,572)| (73,513,425) (77,569,099)
2,718,564 3,001,326 3,311,969 3,340,670 3,545,354
(54,507,208)|  (60,176,586)| (66,404,978)| (66,980,434)| (71,084,348)
278,783 290,302 297,999 299,788 320,145
(5,589,599)|  (5,820,555)  (5,974,880)|  (6,010,749) (6,418,907)
26.37 27.46 28.18 28.35 30.28
(528.72) (550.57) (565.01) (568.50) (607.11)
3.0440 2.5052 2.1726 2.4535 3.0950
@ (61.03) (50.23) (43.56) (49.19) (62.05)
o 22.89 22.10 21.44 21.52 21.18
o 19.90 19.67 19.11 19.30 19.02
Tierl
© 11.51 9.05 7.67 8.50 10.60
© 50.5 49.6 52.0 55.3 54.0
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(268,703) 142,620 88,000 (25,820) 197,117
((5,387,495)) (2,859,531) (1,764,400) ((517,691)) (3,952,196)
(3,309) (1,324) (1,329) (1,223) (1,959)
((66,345)) ((26,546)) ((26,646)) ((24,521)) ((39,278))
(18,465) (30,474) (15,427) 60,309 (43,400)
( ) ((370,223)) ((611,004)) ((309,311)) (1,209,195) ((870,170))
12 31 331,652 456,058 531,915 540,925 686,930
(6,649,623) (9,143,963)|  (10,664,896)| (10,845,546)| (13,772,947)
14,668 14,915 14,553 14,832 14,916
@
@) 2019
() 2023 1 1 HKFRS 17 2022
O]
®)
®) (@ 2023 8 30 2023 1 0.527 5,572
) 2024 3 28 2023 12 31 1 1.145 12,106
2024 6 27
2024 12 31
) HKMA
®)
©)
2001 9 12
2001 10 1 BOC BOC
9
1
2 1
NCB
2001 10 1
2001 7 12 20010 7 20
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2001 10 1
3.1
BOCHK
BOCHK 3 1 ( )
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2023 12 31 65,498
32,723 2023 12 31 3,868,783
320,145
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
A+ A-1
Aa3 P-1
A F1+
3.2
2006 6 1 BOCG BOC 51 BOC
BOCG
BOC
BOC BOCG 2010 10
BOCHK
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PlanAhead
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3.3.2

small and medium enterprise( SME )
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3.3.3
2023 12 31
10.54 373,673
10.16 392,877
ALM
2023 4
1 189.68 2 188.89 3 193.47 4 207.12
HKMA
HKMA

30/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

ALM
ALM

COMEX/SGE/LBMA

12 1
3.4
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4.1
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4.2

VaR
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VaR
VaR
VaR
12
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4.2
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4.3
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3 1
LCO
2 1
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LCO
FCC LCO FCC CRO
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3.4.1.10
ALM
HKMA
internal capital adequacy assessment process( 1CAAP )
HKMA 2 1
ICAAP Tier 1
Tier 1
HKMA  BOCHK BOC BOCHK 2023 1 1
C X - ) ( LAC )
3.4.1.11
ALM
3.4.2 BOC
BOC A C
D G |
BOC
BOC
BOC
3.4.2.1
BOC
BOC
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66.06

66.06

14A
3.6.3

2002 1 18
3.6.4
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BOCI
BOCI
BOCI
BOCI
2002
4.1
2023 12 31
(2023 12 31 )
100010 828,209 66.06
1

100818 294,388 66.06

BOC 34,805,603,955 66.06
53
4,462,256,913 66.06 BOC
V61110
BVI 1
(1) 2004 8
@ BOC  ( ) BvD)
BOC  ( )
(BVI) BV

6,984,175,056
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(©) BOCI
BOCI
BOCI BOCI
BOCI 24,479 72,000
BOCI 2,678
336
BOCI
143,522
2023 12 31 336
4.2
/
100.00
1964 10 16 43,042,840,858
BOC 51.00
1997 12 3,538,000,000
BOCHK 100.00
2010 10 383,000,000
BOC 100.00
1980 565,000,000
BOC 66.00
1997 12 200,000,000
BOCI- 42.24
1999 10 11 300,000,000
760,518,480 100.00
2000 14
100.00
2009 24 1,000,000
100.00
2014 10,000,000,000
100.00
1985 10
100.00
1987 11 3,000,000
BOC 100.00
*x 2019 19 60,000,000
BOCHK 100.00
** 1990 16 70,000,000
BOCHK 100.00
*% 1993 26 40,000,000
100.00
1980 23 335,000,000
100.00
1993 10 19 335,000,000
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/
100.00
1978 10 27 3,000,000
100.00
2014
100.00
2014
100.00
2014
100.00
2014
100.00
2014
100.00
2014
100.00
2014 13
100.00
2014
100.00
2014 13
100.00
2014
100.00
2014 13
100.00
2014
100.00
2014 18
100.00
2014 18
BOCHK 100.00
2010 10 28 372,500,000
BOC 100.00
** 2019 5,000,000
100.00
©P) 2021
* BOCI
* %
BOC 2023 12 8
BOC 2024 1 12 BOC

40/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

2022 14,832 84 2023 14,916
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1.1

2024
2024

RCEP

14 5

RCEP

ESG

2019

ESG
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2023 2 2021-2025
5

ESG

15

2021-2025

2 5
2026-2030

3 5
2031-2035

GBA
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2019
BOCHK 1994 BOCHK
16
SDGs SDGs
2023
80
660
280
GHG .
GHG 2023 2022 2021
GHG
GHG 1 2 tCose 548 575 577
oG , 3 00 50,953 48,522 50,074
5 4 100 89 86 64
1 2 tC0,e 51,501 49,097 50,650
1 2 3 C0,e 51,500 49,182 50,715
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GHG 2023 2022 2021
1 1 tC0oe/ 3.46 3.32 3.48
2 3
1 2 3 tCOze/mz 0.12 0.13 0.14
5 2023 2022 2021
GJ 8,429 7,445 7,049
GJ 2,048 1,616 1,676
GJ 6,381 5,830 5,373
GJ 339,956 308,635 322,519
GJ 337,936 307,111 320,618
GJ 2,020 1,524 1,901
GJ 348,385 316,081 329,568
2023 2022 2021
1 GJ/ 23.36 21.31 22.65
1 GHG EPD EMSD
2010
GHG
2010 ESG
2 KP1 GHG €02 CH4
N20 HFC PFC SF6
NF3
2
3 GHG
4 GHG
5 GJ ESG 2
KP1
1,2
2023 2022 2021
336.48 356.36 436.57
2023 2022 2021
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1 ka/ 27.98 29.23 35.89

2023 2022 2021

210.99 172.09 175.41

0.31 0.15 0.17
0.22 0.10 0.09
63.24 29.68 73.98

274.76 202.02 249.64

2023 2022 2021
No. 125 92 92
No. 2,346 1,7893 8,383
No. 2,600 3,797 5'4454
No. 5,071 5,678 13,920
2023 2022 2021

572.24 622.90 556.03

2023 2022 2021
1 0.048 0.051 0.046
2023 2022 2021

109.83 97.80 104.20

2023 2022 2021

/ 0.0091 0.0080 0.0086

=

Ad

N

3 2020 2021 2022

~

LED
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2023 2022 2021
No. 365 575 940 360 558 918 335 527 862
No. 3,599 3,511 7,110 3,540 3,431 6,971 3,286 3,205 6,491
No. 4,569 2,297 6,866 4,590 2,353 6,943 4,740 2,460 7,200
No. 8,533 6,383 14,916 8,490 6,342 14,832 8,361 6,192 14,553

18.18 81.82 18.18 81.82 11.00 89.00

2.45 3.85 2.43 3.76 2.30 3.62

24.13 23.54 23.87 23.13 22.58 22.02

30.63 15.40 30.95 15.86 32.57 16.90

* 57.21 42.79 57.25 42.75 57.45 42.55
2023 2022 2021
89.05 87.79 86.45
83.33 87.50 80.00
32.95 32.53 32.93
83.72 82.79 81.32
: x 100

No. 1,415 9.49 1,841 12.41 1,589 10.92
No. 1,157 7.75 1,627 10.97 1,263 8.68
18-30 No. 1,499 10.05 1,888 12.72 1,756 12.06

31-40 No. 668 4.48 1,034 6.97 658 4.53
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41-50 No. 248 1.66 370 2.50 240 1.65
51 No. 157 1.05 176 1.19 198 1.36
No. 1,984 13.30 2,795 18.84 2,321 15.96
No. 236 1.58 277 1.87 254 1.74
No. 352 2.36 396 2.67 277 1.90
No. 2,572 17.24 3,468 23.38 2,852 19.60
2023 2022 2021
No. 8,247 6,211 14,458 8,235 6,141 14,376 7,926 5,881 |13,807
No. 254 181 435 215 147 362 211 150 361
No. 244 177 421 206 145 351 200 147 347

96.06 97.79 96.78 95.81 98.64 96.96 94.79 98.00 96.12

12 |No. 217 162 379 176 124 300 188 134 322
12 105.34 | 111.72 | 107.98 | 88.00 | 84.35 | 86.46 | 71.21 | 75.28 | 72.85
2023
2023 TCFD SASB SDGs
3.4
4.1
2023 2022
65,498 54,215 20.8
(16,607) (16,950) (2.0)
48,891 37,265 31.2
42,558 34,917 21.9
40,914 33,162 23.4
34,857 27,230 28.0
32,723 25,940 26.1
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2023
RCEP
2023
65,498 11,283 20.8
34,857 7,627 28.0
32,723 6,783 26.1
2023 2023 3,822
12.4
1,307 7.2
4.1.1
( )
2023 2022
128,489 63,770 101.5
(77,411) (25,020) 209.4
51,078 38,750 31.8
3,334,799 3,104,952 7.4
1.12 1.08
1.53 1.25
1.63 1.36
#
2023 51,078
28.8 54,487
229,847 7.4
27
1.63
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2023 4,511
18.1
14 1.70
#
( )
2023 2022

) () ) ()

430,345 2.03 403,002 1.07

1,208,912 3.37 1,043,987 1.75

1,682,932 4.65 1,647,603 2.47

12,610 6.80 10,360 3.77

3,334,799 3.85 3,104,952 2.05

528,473 - 531,548 -

3,863,272 3.33 3,636,500 1.75

) () <« ) (@)

267,957 1.89 284,175 0.84

2,403,303 2.78 2,234,610 0.95

76,571 3.28 9,607 3.45

91,343 3.24 54,444 1.83

2,839,174 2.73 2,582,836 0.97

1,024,098 - 1,053,664 -

3,863,272 2.00 3,636,500 0.69

4.1.2
( )
2023 2022
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2,430 1,991 22.0
2,413 2,547 (5.3)
1,826 2,491 (26.7)
790 723 9.3
714 724 1.4
651 912 (28.6)
481 514 (6.4)
431 541 (20.3)
398 210 89.5
290 299 (3.0)
28 49 (42.9)
1,735 1,359 27.7
12,187 12,360 1.4
(3,020) (2,560) 18.0
9,167 9,800 (6.5)
2023 9,167 633 6.5
26.7  20.3 42.9 28.6
22.0 89.5
2023 661 13.5
4.1.3
)

2023 2022
8,028 7,635 5.1
3 4,957 (99.9)
274 173 58.4
10 74 (86.5)
8,315 12,839 (35.2)

4,524 35.2 8,315
47.2 4,906
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64 2023
2023 229 5.7
16.8 2,643
4.1.4
( )
2023 2022
2,277 (11,864)
2022 11,864
2,277
BOC BOC
2023 745
49.3 766 BOC
4.1.5
( )
2023 2022
10,725 9,946 7.8
1,394 1,273 9.5
2,919 3,001 Q.7
2,721 3,624 (24.9)
(1,152) (894) 28.9
16,607 16,950 (2.0)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
14,916 14,832 0.6
16,607 343 2.0

25.35
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7.8
9.5
2.7
24.9 2023
2023 903 11.5
4.1.6
( )
2023 2022
( /

1 (53) 816
2 (2,475) (1,340) 84.7
3 (3,891) (2,021) 92.5
(6,419) (2,545) 152.2

4.1.7
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
0.87 0.70

2023 3,874 6,419

1 53

2023 2022 816
2 2,475 3
3,891 1,135 1,870
0.23 0.38 2023 12 31
0.87
2023 3,969
2023
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24
42
4.1.8
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
406,571 10.5 535,194 14.6 (24.0)
213,000 5.5 208,770 5.7 2.0
! 1,351,730 34.9 1,068,226 29.1 26.5
1,603,144 43.8 1,644,113 44.8 3.0
56,613 1.5 60,330 1.7 (6.2)
2 147,725 3.8 149,872 4.1 1.4
3,868,783 100.0 3,666,505 100.0 5.5
1.
2.
2023 202,278 5.5 3,868,783
128,623 24.0
283,504
26.5 54,033 3.3
2,578 40.7 49,031 3.0
4.1.9
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,253,163 73.6 1,172,466 71.1 6.9
683,604 40.1 641,206 38.9 6.6
569,559 33.5 531,260 32.2 7.2
47,691 2.8 51,879 3.2 (8.1)
401,448 23.6 423,924 25.7 (5.3)
1,702,302 100.0 1,648,269 100.0 3.3
BOC
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BOC
the Belt and Road
Going Global
2023 54,033 3.3 1,702,302
80,697 6.9
42,398 6.6
38,299
7.2
4,188 8.1 22,476
5.3
4.1.10
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,702,302 1,648,269
1.05 0.53
1 14,750 11,575
0.87 0.70
2 -
0.02
3 0.02
- 8 0.32 0.28
2023 2022
- 4 1.39 1.38
1.
2.
3.
4.
2023
2023 12 31
9,073 17,797
1.05 2022 0.52
0.02 1.39 0.01
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
216,366 8.6 236,115 9.9 (8.9
971,113 38.8 993,689 41.8 (2.3)
1,314,203 52.5 1,147,403 48.3 14.5
2,501,682 99.9 2,377,207 100.0 5.2
2,159 0.1 - -
2,503,841 100.0 2,377,207 100.0 53
2023 CASA
e_
e- 2023 2,503,841
126,634 5.3
14.5 2.3 8.4 CASA 47.4 2022
4.3
4.1.12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
52,864 52,864 -
36,899 37,683 Q.1
(6,470) (11,008) 41.2
7,974 6,655 19.8
(1,883) (1,683) (11.9)
1,637 2,288 (28.5)
229,124 212,989 7.6
267,281 246,924 8.2
320,145 299,788 6.8
2023 12 31 320,145 2022 20,357
6.8 2.1
41.2
10.8 2022
7.6
4.1.13
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
Tier 247,109 229,798
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Tier - 23,476
Tier 247,109 253,274
Tier 28,036 29,048
275,145 282,322
1,298,956 1,312,199
Tier 19.02 17.51
Tier 19.02 19.30
21.18 21.52
2023 12 31 Tierl CET1 7.5 2023
Tierl 2023 3 30
Tier 1 2022 2.4 2.5
2022 1.0 21.18 CET1
Tierl 19.02
RWA
4.1.14
2023 2022
189.68 159.16
188.89 149.49
193.47 149.00
207.12 178.49
2023 2022
134.51 123.86
131.56 126.87
138.67 127.98
137.28 131.56
2023
4.2
2023
RCEP
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2023 2022
14,681 35.9 7,429 22.4 97.6
15,866 38.8 11,400 34.4 39.2
6,968 17.0 14,933 45.0  (53.3 )
1,198 2.9 (397) 1.2)
2,201 5.4 (203) (0.6)
40,914 100.0 33,162 100.0 23.4
46
4.2.1
2023 14,681 7,252
97.6
86.8
17.4
5.6
ESG
ESG
2 1
2023 2.7
2023 2022
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FX
RM
2023
174,000
59 12
BOC
(BOC Cheers Card)
BOC
(BOC Chill Card)
2023
23.0 28.8 BOCHK Metro
Finance 2023
2023
(TrendyToo)
1

1,000

Fami IyMAX
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1.4
BOCHK The Asian Banker 2023
BOC
ESG
2023 2
BOCHK
GBA BOCHK
QR e-
2023
14 BOCHK
2023 BOCHK
GBA 70
160 BOCHK
BOC UnionPay
BOCHK
(RMB One)
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2023
BOC BOC
BOC
BOC BOC
UnionPay
UnionPay WeChat Pay
PromptPay BoC Pay
QR
CLI
4.2.2
4,466
52.7
76.5
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Asiamoney 2023
8
BOC
BOC
UnionPay QR
QR
FPS
PromptPay QR
BOC DuitNow QR
39.2 15,866
9.3
4,204
19

1PO
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1
H BOCHK
2023
25
BOCHK Corporate Treasurer
The Asian Banker 9
5 Asian Banking & Finance 10
Treasury China
The Asset
BOC
17.6
BOC
the Belt and Road
Going Global
BOC
EPC
iGTB BOC iGTB
Hong Kong Productivity
Council
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BOC
e-wallet
16
Asian Banking and Finance
Hong Kong Economic
Journal 5
etnet 2
2023 2022
76 2022 20
ESG
3
BOC
HKEX
2023 5
2022 28
6
BOCI- BOCI-
2023 MPF 827
ORSO
BOCI- 29
22
2023 BOCI- SFC
23 BOCI- MPF
2023 MPF Refinitiv 2023
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The Asset 2023 ETF A

4.2.3

6,968 7,965 53.3

G10

oTC 0TC
2 CIBM
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BOCHK BOCHK AM
2023 BOCHK AM BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK AM
ESG BOCHK
ETF BOCHK AM Asia Asset Management 2023
BENCHMARK 2023
4.2.4
2023
37.1 1,884
32.7 11,567 397

1,198

BOC
BOC
BOC
2
BOC
2 10 74
BOC
2023
3 -
2023
2022 10 5 3
2023 5 3
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BOC
CSR
BOC
BOC
STEAM
2021
300 STEAM
BOC
BOC FIFAe e
BOC
WGO ESG
BOC 2 HKMA/BOC
2023 ESG
BOC
Metro Finance GBA 3
4.2.5
RCEP 2
ASEAN ASEAN
RCEP
BOC
BOC
3
INFOBANK 2023
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The Asset
) 2023 75,398
54,045 2022 9.5 4.6
4,348
39.1 2023 2.86 2022 0.37
: BOC BOC
9
3
4.2.6
2023 BOCHK 2021-2025
3
BoC HKeToll
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20.8 2023 10.2
MTR VISA NFC
2023 BoC Bill
1 BOCHK e-HKD
1
160
e-Laisee iGTB
iGTB e
BOC
e-CNY BOC
e-CNY
e-CNY FPS e-CNY
PromptPay FPS x PromptPay QR
FPS
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UniopnPay
RPA
Al
11
ESG
BOCHK
Clo 2023
ICT BOCHK The
Asian Banker 2023
Asian Banking & Finance
IT
HKMA
5 BOCHK
2023
BOCHK BOCHK
2023 140

Al
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3.1
4.2
28. 29.

53

BOCHK 3 1

e_

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 16,069 14,875

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 44,261 41,738

2023 12 31 2023 12 31
28.

29.
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2023 12 31
20,000,000, 000 10,572,780,266 9,427,219,734
2023 12 31
10,572,780,266
( ) |1 ( )
2001 9 12 2 2 2 2
(40) (40)
2001 9 30 10,221,060,465 | 10,221,060,467 10,221,060,465 10,221,060,467
(204,932,262,323)| (204,932,262,363)
BvD)
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2001 10 1 35,744,965,551 | 45,966,026,018 35,744,965,551 45,966,026,018
(716,686,559,297)| (921,618,821,661)
NCB
BOC
(BVI)
6,897,875,307 | 52,863,901,325 6,897,875,307 52,863,901,325
(138,302,399,905) [ (1,059,921,221,566)
2002 6 17 5 | 52,863,901,330 5 52,863,901,330
D))
(100)|(1,059,921,221,667)
2002 7 10 |a42,291,121,064 | 10,572,780,266 - 52,863,901,330
(1,059,921,221,667) |,
()
20,000,000,000
10,572,780, 266
6N 622 2014 3 3
2023 12 31 10,572,780,266 34
0.17  ADS 64,559
5
2023 12 31
64,447 99.83 194,509,892 1.84
111 0.17 3,437,192,618 32.51
1 0.00 6,941,077,756 65.65
64,559 100.00 10,572,780,266 100.00
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336 2023 12 31
6,984,274,213 66.06
BOCI
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SFO 336 2023 12 31
SFO
2023 12 31
100010 6,984,274,213 66.06
100818 6,984,274,213 66.06
1
BOC ( ) 6,984,175,056 66.06
53F
V61110 6,984,175,056 66.06
(BVI) 11
1. 2004 8
2. BOC  ( ) GBvVD
BOC  ( )
(B8vVD (BVI)
6,984,175,056
3. BOCI
BOCI
BOCI BOCI
BOCI 24,479 72,000
BOCI 2,678
336
BOCI
143,522
2023 12 31 336
@) 1.2.9
40 60
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ADS ADS
ADS
2022 12 31 1 0.910 9,621 2023
6 29 2023 7 14
2023 8 30 2023 0.527
5,572
2024 3 28 2023 12 31 1.145
12,106 2024 6 27
2024 12 31
BVI
2.1
6 2023 12 31 17,547
HKMA
C1
BOCHK HKMA CG-1
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2021-2025 4 1

BOCHK
BOCHK
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(www . bochk . com) About Us Corporate Governance
11 1 3 7
1 98 B.2.2
2024
102
2023 6 29 2023 10 20
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2023

10/11

10/11

8/11

ESG 8/11

7/11

7/11

3/11

3711

2/11
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7 (63.6 ) 3(@27.3 ) 1.1 ) 11 NED M
5 (100 ) 0@ ) 0@ ) 5 INED M
4 (80 ) 10 ) 0@ ) 5 INED M
4 (100 ) 0@ ) 0@ ) 4 INED F
6 (60 ) 3 (30 ) 1 (0 ) 10 NED M
7 (7.5 ) 0@ ) 1 (2.5 ) 8 INED F
9
9
@)
www . bochk .com About Us Organization
www . bochk .. com
2 18 1
7
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C1 C.1.4
2023
Al
Al
ESG
/
« ) /ESG
/
GE Haijiao o o o o
LIU Jin o o o o
LIN Jingzhen o o o o
CHENG Eva o o o o
CHOI' Koon Shum o o o o
FUNG Yuen Mei Anita o o o o
LAW Yee Kwan Quinn o o o o
LEE Sunny Wai Kwong o o o o
LIP Sai Wo o o o o
MA Si Hang Frederick o o o o
SUN Yu o o o o

86/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

2023 5 93
14
7
2023 2023
5 9 2 4 5 2 1
GE Haijiao ( 474 - - - 474 - 11
10 Jin ( ) 4/5 - 172 - 4/5 - 71
LIN Jingzhen a5 _ _ _ 3/5 _ /1
CHENG Eva 55| or9 - - 5/5 22 11
CHOI Koon: Shum 4/5 - 2/2 - 4/5 2/2 /1
FUNG Yuen Mei Anita 5/5 8/9 /1 3/4 5/5 2/2 71
KOH Beng Seng 22 6/6 11 1 - 1 11
LAW Yee Kwan Quinn 5/5 9/9 - 4/4 - 2/2 1/1
LEE Sunny Wai Kwong 5/5 8/9 1/1 4/4 5/5 2/2 1/1
LIP sai Vo 3/3 373 - 3/3 3/3 1 -
MA Si Hang Frederick 1/2 - 1/1 - 1/2 1/1 -
TUNG Savio Wai-Hok 2/2 6/6 /1 /1 2/2 /1 /1
SUN Yu 5/5 - - - 5/5 2/2 71
93 9% 90 94 90 100 100

CEO
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LIPSai o 2 ( )

CHENG Eva 2

FUNG Yuen Mei Anita

LAW Yee Kwan Quinn

LEE Sunny Wai Kwong

2022 12 31

2023 6 30

2023 3 31 2023 9 30
2022

2024
2024
2022
BOCHK BOCHK BOCHK
BOCHK
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1 4 5
1

CHOI Koon Shum 2 ( )
L Jin  °
FUNG Yuen Mei Anita
LEE Sunny Wai Kwong
MA Si Hang Frederick 2

2022

2022 2022

2023
2024
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FUNG Yuen Mei Anita 2 ( )

LAW Yee Kwan Quinn

LEE Sunny Wai Kwong

LIP Sai Wo

1CAAP
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GE Haojiao

LIV Jin 2

3

SUN Yu

LIN Jingzhen

CHENG Eva

CHOI Koon Shum

FUNG Yuen Mei Anita

4

LEE Sunny Wai Kwong

LIP Sai Wo

MA Si Hang Frederick

BOCHK

2023 2024
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CHENG Eva 2

SINvu °

CHOI Koon Shum

FUNG Yuen Mei Anita

LAW Yee Kwan Quinn

LEE Sunny Wai Kwong

LIP Sai Wo
. . 2 S
MA Si Hang Frederick
2022
2022 TCFD
BOCHK
1
C3
2006 6 2016 6 BOC
(BOC ) 2020 2 BOC
BOC
2023
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2023 21
400,000
100,000
50,000
2023 12 31
HKMA
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/
2023 BOCHK BOCHK

BOCHK

2024 1 1 2023 12

HKMA
BOCHK
2024
2023 32
(2022 25 ) 30 (2022 25 )
2 (2022 19 ) (

2023
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2022

2023

2023 6 29 8 2
2023 2023 4
27 - (2023 6 29

(2023 6 29

2023

2023

2023

99.95

99.99

97.18 99.86

98.86

98.89

99.92
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(www . bochk. com)
2022
20 10
10
2023
5 O)
10 ( 5 )
(
(i) 10
Tierl
Tier2
2024
2024
2024
2024
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5
1 53
566 568
() 2.5
(b) 50
1 53 6
615 616
1 53 (a)
(b) ©
7
7
99
1 53

investor_relations@bochk.com
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www - bochk .com
14 3 18
GE Haijiao 52
LIU Jin 57
SUN Yu 51
LIN Jingzhen 59
CHENG Eva 64
CHOI Koon Shum 66
FUNG Yuen Mei Anita 63
LAW Yee Kwan Quinn 71
LEE Sunny Wai Kwong 65
LIP Sai Wo €9 64
MA Si Hang Frederick 72
(G
LIU Chenggang 51
XU Haifeng 52
XING Guivei €9 51
WANG Huabin ¢n 50
CHAN Man 55
LI Tong €9 53
1 KOH Beng Seng 2023 6 29
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2 TUNG Savio Wai-Hok 2023 6 29
3 JIANG Xin 2023 11 28
4 LIP Sai Wo 2023 6 29
5 MA Si Hang Frederick 2023 10 20
6  XING Guiwei 2023 6 9
7 WANG Huabin 2024 3 22
8 LI Tong 2024 2 26
3
(52 )
GE Haijiao 2023 4 BOCHK
: BOC
BOC(BVI) BOCHKG 2023 BOC
2021 11 2023 3
2019 9 2021 11 2018 11 2019 9
2019
1 2019 9
( ) 2016 10 2018 11
( )
( )
1993 2008
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LIV Jin 2021 8 BOCHK
: 2021 6 BOC 2021 4
BOC BOC (BVI)  BOCHKG
2021 BOC 2019 12 2021 3
2020 1 2021 3
( )
2020 3 2021 3
2018 9 2019 11
( ICBC )
( ) S.A. ICBC 1CBC
ICBC 2023 4 2024 3
BOC
1993
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(51 )
SUN Yu 2020 12 BOCHK
BOCHK 2021
2 BOC 2020 3 2020 12
BOCHK
1998  BOC 2019 2 2020 12
BOC 2018 9 2019 2 BOC
2015 3 2018 11 BOC
UK) 2015 12 2018
11 BOC
( )
( ) BOC
2012 7 2014 12 BOCHK
2015 3 2021 9 (UK)
2018 12 2021 9 (UK)
2019 2 2020 12 BOC (
) 2019 11 2020 12 BOC
2019 12 2020 12 BOC
HKSAR
1998
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LIN Jingzhen : 2018 8 BOCHK
2018 3 BOC 2019 2 BOC
1987 BOC 2015 5 2018 1
BOCHK 2014 3 2015 5
2010 10 2014 3 BOC
BCO BOC
2018 4
2020 12 BOC
2018 5 2022 4 BOC ( )
1987 2000
(64 )
CHENG Eva 2014 10
HKSAR
1983 8
2012 6 30 HKSAR
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66 )
CHOI Koon Shum 2016 6
2021 6 14
2005
2007 2009
2011 2013
2014
2015
2020 ( )
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(63 )
FUNG Yuen Mei : 2022 3 BOCHK
Anita
: 2008 5 2015 2 HSBC
2011 9 2015 2 ( HSBC )
HSBC
( )
M
( )
1983 1995
@)
LAW Yee Kwan Quinn 12019 3 BOCHK
(HKUST) HKUST( )
HKBN
ENN
HK1CPA

HKUST
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LEE Sunny Wai 2022 9 BOCHK
Kwong
: ( )
40
 IT
( HKIC ) IT
HKJC IT HKJC
2 iCare.com
MTR
( )
IT
1982 1983
(64 )
LIP Sai Wo 2023 6
40
2022 5
1983
HKICPA
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MA ST Hang MA 2023 10 BOCHK
Frederick
FWD
C0OSCOo
HH&L
1 2022 1
MTR
RBC
JP PCCI
2011
2014
2016 2017
2020
¢l )
LIU Chenggang LIv 2022
Livi
BOC
1994 BOC
BOC
(CFA)
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%2 )
XU Haifeng XU 2022
BOCI- BOC
)
BOC
1993 BOC
1)
XING Guiwei XING 2022
BOC
BOC
2000 BOC
NetsUnion
UnionPay IT
IT
(CUND)
WANG Huabin WANG 2024
BOC
2000 BOC BOC
BOC
BOCHK
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CHAN Man CHAN 1990 BOC
BOC
ICAC
1990 7 2001 9
2001 10
2022 8
( ) ( )
3 )
LI Tong LI 2024
BOC
1993
BOC
2024
1
/
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2023 12 31 352
C3
15
H
/ H
CHOI Koon Shum 4,000,000 40,000(2) 11120,000(3) 5,160,000 0.01
FUNG Yuen Mei '
Anita 550,000 - - 550,000 0.00 ¥
LIP Sai Wo 201,000 - - 201,000 0.00 (©)
(1) SUN Yu BOC H 0.00001
(@) CHOI Koon Shum
(3) CHOI Koon Shum Choi Koon Shum
1,120,000
(4) FUNG Yuen Mei Anita BOC H 0.0007
(5) LIP Sai Wo BOC H 0.0002
2023 12 31
352
15
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1.1.1
®
i)
i)
2021 12 31 3
iii)
iv)
47 28 75
®
2022 2023
25 19 30 2
(501) (381) (602) (40)
© © © ©
25 19 30 2
(501) (381) (602) (40)

@
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59 131
2023 12 31
23 103
193
134 2024 31 UFJ
20.05
b.
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12 31
2023 2022
128489 2,576,204 63770 1,278,589
121459 2435253 60,954 1,222,128
7,030 140,952 2816 56,461
(77.411) (1552,091)  (25020)  (501,651)
6 51,078 1,024,114 38,750 776,938
12,187 244,349 12,360 247,818
(3,020) (60,551) (2,560) (51,328)
7 9,167 183,798 9,800 196,490
1,897 38,035 1,694 33,965
(1,059) (21,233) (637) (12,772)
108 2,165 80 1,604
946 18,967 1,137 22,797
8 8,315 166,716 12,839 257,422
9 2,277 45,654 (11,864)  (237,873)
10 (1,468) (29,433) (3,856) (77,313)
11 (5430) (108,872 6,561 131,548
12 613 12,201 848 17,002
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13 (6333  (126,977) (2,348) (47,077)
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2023
3,997 2,511 4,992 11,500
174 (163) (1) -
(153) 155 @ ;
@ (3,936) 3,940 ;
(156) 1,061 1,979 2,884
2,318 2,311 2,556 7,185
(2,061) (897) (644) (3,602)
- - (31088) (31088)
- - 133 133
2 14 (300) (288)
4,113 1,056 9,555 14,724
6,467
2023
1,605,893 40,164 8,724 1,654,781
10,840 (10,827) (13) ]
(8,680) 8,689 ©) ]
(362) (12,026) 12,388 -
50,522 (4,935) (185) 54,402
- - (3,088) (3,088)
949 19) 20) 910
1,668,162 21,046 17,797 1,707,005
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2022
2022 4,843 2,406 2,632 9,881
268 (266) ) -
(179) 185 (6) ]
) (1,092) 1,093 -
(249) 783 1,271 1,805
() 2,579 331 1,330 4,240
) (2,113) (600) (580) (3,293)
(1,110) 826 - (284)
- - (677) (677)
- - 117 117
(41) (62) (186) (289)
2022 12 31 3,007 2,511 4,992 11,500
13 2,468
2022
2022 1,567,831 33,457 4,321 1,605,609
4,090 (4,076) (14) -
(20,310) 20,351 (41) -
(1,155) (3,799) 4,954 -
60,179 (5,524) 242 54,897
- - (677) (677)
(4,742) (245) (61) (5,048)

2022 12 31 1,605,893 40,164 8,724 1,654,781
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()
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2023 2022

17,797 17,797 8,724 8,724

1.05 1.05 0.53 0.53
9,555 9,555 4,992 4,992

2023 2022

9,331 4,440
6,204 2,387
11,593 6,337
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2023 2022
( (
) )
() ()
4,000 0.24 2,858 0.17
4,101 0.24 601 0.04
2,447 0.14 1,860 0.11
10,548 0.62 5,319 0.32
5,342 3,110
2023 2022
5,801 2,739
4,518 1,643
6,030 3,676
2022
2023 2022
( (
) )
() ()
1,722 0.10% 509 0.03
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2023
()

188,115 24.32% 357 357 258 724
95,384 61.42% 1,716 934 544 289
16,506 1.04% - - - 34

1,196 97.48% - - - -
33,992 34.98% 138 140 51 111
58,991 6.85% 46 73 33 173
51,971 18.17% 100 13 80 95

63 21.14% - - - -
38,989 0.26% 20 21 20 50

198,397 42.89%% 3,712 4,844 712 513
45,079 99.70% 45 461 - 27

388,178 99.21% 227 1,935 7 442
12,668 - 97 476 63 182

123,634 95.26% 119 683 45 212

1,253,163 60.97% 6,577 9,937 1,813 2,852
47,691 18.77% 466 315 299 88
401,448 4.37% 10,754 10,819 7,443 2,226

1,702,302 46.44% 17,797 21,071 9,555 5,166
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2022
()

171,614 26.29% 948 967 495 818
91,525 58.03% 827 862 - 484
25,197 2.04% - - - 26

1,110 68.14% - - - -
31,704 40.34% 109 207 36 97
48,891 6.64% 41 43 23 140
62,411 17.74% 164 71 85 268

154 96.92% - - - -
34,274 0.29% 34 35 21 68

174,326 43.00% 99 1,118 63 560
35,879 99.61% 32 452 - 19

367,502 99.82% 176 1,975 1 252
11,962 - 91 480 54 181

115,917 95.36% 133 933 60 223

1,172,466 60.98% 2,654 7,143 838 3,136
51,879 18.38% 238 234 164 113
423,924 4.85% 5,832 4,699 3,990 3,257

1,648,269 45.20% 8,724 12,076 4,992 6,506
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2023 2022
713 953 928 -
969 7 398 5
233 - 160 -

2023 2022
1,454,475 1,399,434
85,131 86,546
162,696 162,289

1,702,302 1,648,269

3,405 3,954
271 357
1,490 2,195

5,166 6,506
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2023 2022
16,001 9,359
303 353
4,767 2,364
21,071 12,076
5,988 2,457
51 42
2,513 1,555
8,552 4,054
2023 2022
13,016 5,198
295 171
4,486 3,355
17,797 8,724
6,367 2,694
165 48
3,023 2,250
9,555 4,992
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©
12 31

2023 2022
7 10
16 160
15 17
124 147
162 334

2023 12 31 282

2022 546
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2023
159,777 - - 159,777
159,777 - - 159,777
227,585 - - 227,585
- - 33 33
227,585 - 33 227,618
387,362 - 33 387,395
(48) - (33 (81)
387,314 - - 387,314
2022
198,387 - - 198,387
198,387 - - 198,387
319,097 - - 319,097
- - 34 34
319,097 - 34 319,131
517,484 - 34 517,518
(43) - (16) (59)

517,441 - 18 517,459
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2023
2023 43 - 16 59
5 - 17 2
2023 12 31 48 - 33 81
( 13 22
2022
2022 23 - - 23
« ) 2 - 15 13
22 - 1 23
2022 12 31 43 - 16 59
( 13 36
2023 12 31
33 2022 34 2023 12 31

(2022 )
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2023 2022
Aaa 129,180 82,235
Aa Aa 318,116 221,612
A A 260,343 328,065
A 26,404 26,386
31,139 35,504
765,182 693,802
A 474 498
765,656 694,300
(198) (187)
Aaa 114,597 148,951
Aa Aa 25,055 24,487
A A 58,358 55,499
A 8,456 8,820
1,659 1,501
208,125 239,258
208,125 239,258
(47) (62)
208,078 239,196
Aaa 3,148 1,761
Aa Aa 44,165 21,031
A A 71,040 59,299
A 12,562 12,950
4,185 2,191

135,100 97,232
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2023

183 4 187
14 D 13

2 - &)

195 3 198
13

62 - 62
(15 - (15
47 - 47
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2022
2022 313 4 - 317
(78) - - (78)
(42) - - (42)
(10) - - (10)
2022 12 31 183 4 - 187
13 (120)
2022 37 - - 37
19 - - 19
1 - - 1
2022 12 31 62 - - 62
13 24
2023 12 31 2022

51
(2022 )
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F

2023
854,175 2,790 - 856,965
744 955 - 1,699
- - 67 67
854,919 3,745 67 858,731
2022
767,103 4,321 - 771,424
2,305 1,062 - 3,367
- - 256 256

769,408 5,383 256 775,047
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2023
2023 326 36 128 490
7 @) - -
4 4 - -
(6) 7 - 1
4 (20) (207) (121)
2023 12 31 319 30 21 370
13 (120)
2022
2022 439 51 153 643
6 (6) - -
4 4 - -
- (1) 1 -
5) 5 26 26
20 (14) (52) (46)
(129) ) - (131)
(1) 1) - (2)
2022 12 31 326 36 128 490

13 (151)
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RMC
RMD
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
VaR
VaR
RMC
BOCHK
(A) VaR
VaR RMC
VaR

99
VaR VaR
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VaR
12 31

VaR 2023 84.3 35.7 87.8 57.3
2022 46.3 21.9 61.3 37.7

VaR 2023 39.7 16.5 484 289
2022 20.3 14.6 39.9 237

VaR 2023 74.6 321 814 51.3
2022 39.8 156 63.2 315

VaR 2023 81 0.3 85 54
2022 11 0.2 4.5 20

2023 0.2 0.0 248 4.6

2022 4.1 0.0 12.3 4.4

VaR
VaR
1987 1994

1997 2001 11 2008
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VaR
HKMA

2023
1,062,469 23210 70,841 24,422 736,181 24,025 69,379 2,030,527
(1,115545)  (29,783) (27849)  (35573)  (509,114)  (33301) (62,675 (1,813,840)
1,446,407 26,178 78,221 76,557 744,856 41,025 61,036 2,474,280
(1,377,946)  (19611) (117473)  (84,815) (965216)  (31,657)  (68,879) (2,665,597)
1,923 (35) 59 (121) (165) (54) 45 1,652
17,308 (41) 3,799 470 6,542 38 (1,094) 27,022

2022
1,046,552 25,728 107,461 64,552 536,342 33,695 67,514 1,881,844
(1,002,755)  (33,831) (19,120) (32,649)  (509,612)  (37,840)  (61,223) (1,697,030)
917,681 29,024 47,522 84,569 419,521 27,865 59524 1,585,706
(963555)  (21,039)  (135669)  (115911)  (443379)  (23811)  (66,850) (1,770,214)
1,208 (11) 11 (42) (563) 85 (11) 677
(869) (129) 205 519 2,309 (6) (1,046) 983
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2023

8,017 2,648 3,140 1,926 3,474 1,948 21,153
2022
31,172 2,285 2,905 1,717 2,361 2,010 42,450

ALCO

NIl

CRO ALCO

RMC

RMC

RMC BOCHK
RMD
RMD ALCO

PVBP
EVE
CFO
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RMC
EVE
Tier
RMC
2023
100
12
12 31
12 12 31
2023 2022 2023 2022
100
2,125 2,639 (11,477) (6,923)
3,902 4,370 (726) (413)
(779) (670) (8,063) (3,327)
(960) (972 (2,424) (2,797)
100
(2,123) (2,639) 11,477 6,923
(3,902 (4,370) 726 413
779 670 8,063 3,327
963 972 2,424 2,797
100 2023

2022

184/482
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12 31
2023
12
297,147 25,365 29,830 2,466 - 51,763 406,571
219,681 35,740 20,715 28,454 51,909 16,791 373,290
- - - - - 54,211 54,211
- - - - - 213,000 213,000
1,437,380 132,698 66,235 40,492 8,498 7841 1,693,144
FVOCI 145,275 142,874 143,240 247,264 87,003 4,706 770,362
9,482 32,487 30,140 103,471 32,498 - 208,078
- - - - - 1,275 1,275
] ) ] ; - 14,875 14,875
] ) ) - - 41,738 41,738
6,669 - - - - 85,570 92,239
2,115,634 369,164 290,160 422,147 179,908 491,770 3,868,783
- - - - - 213,000 213,000
342,692 916 101 - - 29,964 373,673
18,297 30,827 15,652 1,255 172 - 66,203
- - - - - 41,553 41,553
1,540,154 458,625 327,879 1,844 - 173180 2,501,682
- 1,999 - - - - 1,999
22,628 4 106 745 352 70,213 94,048
- - - - - 177,873 177,873
- - - 75,323 - - 75,323
1,923,771 492,371 343,738 79,167 524 705,783 3,545,354
191,863  (123,207) (53578) 342,980 179,384  (214,013) 323429
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2022
12

425,459 28,550 29,556 2,285 - 49,344 535,194

18,478 19,897 11,949 24,797 40,748 15,344 131,213

- - - - - 61,832 61,832

- - - - - 208,770 208,770

1,435,507 133,216 26,411 34,107 7,448 7424 1644113

FVOCI 112,829 163,477 177,549 176,407 64,038 3,517 697,817

2,181 1,921 67,010 146,749 21,335 - 239,196

- - - - - 843 843

- - - - - 16,069 16,069

- - - - - 44,261 44,261

7,943 - - - - 79,254 87,197

2,002,397 347,061 312,475 384,345 133,569 486,658 3,666,505

- - - - - 208,770 208,770

275,903 1,545 5,700 101 - 33,377 316,626

19,496 15,538 21,541 1,451 1,425 2 59,453

- - - - - 50,266 50,266

1,480,966 381,657 324,513 1,735 - 188,336 2,377,207

- - 1,702 1,934 - - 3,636

19,419 10 31 851 406 58,356 79,073

] ) ] ; - 160,246 169,246

- - - 76,393 - - 76,393

1,795,784 398,750 353,487 82,465 1,831 708353 3,340,670

206,613 (51,689) (41,012) 301,880 131,738 (221,695) 325835
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RMC
/
RMC
ALCO RMC RMC
RMD
RMD
ALCO
Tier
10
LCR

NSFR
MCO
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HKMA LM-2
30
MCO
2023 12 31
BOCHK 30 357,676 2022
159,722
2023 12 31
20
A-
2023 12 31 BOCHK
743,636 2022 717,272
HKMA LCR NSFR
LCR
NSFR 100
RMC

BOCHK RMD
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Q)
2023 2022
189.68 159.16
188.89 149.49
193.47 149.00
207.12 178.49
HKMA
2023 2022
134.51 123.86
131.56 126.87
138.67 127.98
137.28 131.56
HKMA

BOCHK HKMA
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®
12 31
2023
12

297,469 51439 25387 29845 2,431 - - 406571
- 213013 39977 21,083 30653 51,253 17,311 373290
15,765 4,487 5,904 7645 14,242 6,168 - 54,211
213,000 - - - - - - 213,000
338621 60,33 60907 240526 555023 429,575 8359 1,693,144
FVOCI - 148500 123488 146344 251076 95926 5028 770,362
- 9131 32817 30468 103432 32,230 - 208078
- - - - - - 1,275 1,275
] ) ; - - - 14875 14,875
- - - - - - 41738 41,738
20949 22716 1,277 4438 13115 27,178 2,566 92,239
885804 500,419 289,757 480,349 969,972 642,330 91,152 3,868,783
213,000 - - - - - - 213,000
199,392 173,263 605 413 - - - 373673
- 21672 27462 15653 1,245 171 - 66,203
11,062 3,650 4,142 6730 11,655 4,314 - 41,553
1188522 524,812 458625 327,879 1,844 - - 2,501,682
- - 1,999 - - - - 1,999

(
) 50592 31,001 2,406 2,640 6,847 562 - 94,048
- 1,264 3688 10963 47,00 103,179 - 166194
- - - 3 74979 - - 75,323
1662568 755662 498927 364,622 143670 108,226 - 3533675
(776,764) (246243) (209,170) 115727 826302 534104 91152 335108
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2022
12
406,490 68,294 28,573 29,566 2,253 - 18 535194
- 15,347 20,848 10,317 27,229 40438 17,034 131,213
14,493 4,788 4,130 8,053 20,138 10,230 - 61,832
208,770 - - - - - - 208,770
303,647 71,820 58491 174615 637,249 394,365 3926 1,644,113
FVOCI - 104175 156,815 181,051 181778 70,208 3790 697,817
- 2,326 1,737 67,437 146,454 21,242 - 239,19
- - - - - - 843 843
- - - - - - 16,069 16,069
) ) ) ; - - 44261 44,261
21,159 12,728 819 4,687 15,461 29,780 2,563 87,197
954559 279478 271,413 475726 1030562 566,263 88504 3,666,505
208,770 - - - - - - 208,770
259,214 49,990 997 5,700 725 - - 316,626
- 19,496 15,557 21,547 1,441 1,410 2 59,453
9,833 3,385 5,769 7,362 16,499 7,418 - 50,266
1,230,065 439,237 381657 324,513 1,735 - - 2,377,207
- 22 10 1,679 1,925 - - 3,636
(
) 51,046 14,229 2,238 3,829 7,171 560 - 79,073
- 624 1,414 10,636 48,868 96,359 - 157,901
- - - 332 76,061 - - 76,393
1758928 526983 407,642 375598 154425 105,747 2 3329325
(804,369) (247,505) (136,229) 100,128 876,137 460516 88502 337,180

192/482
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12 31
2023
12
213,000 - - - - 213,000
372,818 608 416 - - 373,842
21,704 27,630 15,971 1,334 193 66,832
1,714,116 462,150 334,723 1,986 - 2512,975
- 2,014 - - - 2,014
- - 2,590 77,569 - 80,159
49 91 359 675 122 1,296
77,452 197 248 16 4 77,917
2,399,139 492,690 354,307 81,580 319 3,328,035
2022
12
208,770 - - - - 208,770
309,212 1,003 5,748 731 - 316,694
19,505 15,619 22,101 1,691 1,769 60,685
1,669,823 384,203 331,898 1,824 - 2,387,748
23 13 1,717 2,014 - 3,767
- - 2,509 80,586 - 83,095
47 86 347 736 92 1,308
61,700 270 1,418 47 5 63,440
2,269,080 401,194 365,738 87,629 1,866 3,125,507
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2023 12 31 43,456
(2022 51,083 )
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(b)
12 31
2023
12
(11,517) (1,764) (6,439) (7,753) (1,412) (28,885)
1,452,917 420,065 727,835 247,718 12154 2,860,689
(1451,315)  (414,410) (726,123) (247,768)  (11,750) (2,851,366)
2022
12
(10,333) (1,774) (7,599) (13,350) (2,165) (35,221)
635,746 379,653 566,376 202,148 10973 1,794,896
(635,217)  (376,902)  (563,672)  (202,119)  (10,647) (1,788,557)
(©)
2023 12 31
813,414 2022

732,484

2023 12 31 45,317 2022 42,563
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+10
+10

+10
+50

-10
-10

-10
-50

ALCO
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2023 2022
CSM / /
I ) I ) « ) ) c ) )

(93 (87 (481) (79) (549 (769)
37 (50) (105) 15 (131) (340)
(49 (46) (339) (33 (27 (302)

(26) (892) 454 (147) (904) 47

84 77 518 55 33 723

(36) 61 120 (24) 136 316

31 28 218 24 18 245
26 950 (503) 155 970 (454)

ALCO
HKMA
HKMA BOCHK HKMA
HKMA
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STC
CVA CVA
IMM HKMA
STM
STO
2023 HKMA
ICAAP
HKMA ICAAP
Tier Tier
ICAAP
HKMA BOCHK BOC Resolution 2023
LAC
ALCO
Q)

BOCHK HKMA
HKFRS
BOC
BOCHK BOCHK
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2023 2022
BOC 200 200 200 200
BOCI- 627 499 626 478
13 ) 20 (12)
8 8 8 8
BOC \ 118 47 152 43
BOCHK 374 263 372 258
BOCHK 408 349 401 342
361 346 366 345
605 384 570 402
3 3 5 5

* BOC 2024 12 BOC
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2023 12 31
2022
2023 12 31
2022
/ /
®
2023 2022
CET 19.02% 17.51%
Tier 19.02% 19.30%
21.18% 21.52%
2023 2022

CET
CET 43,043 43,043
219,744 206,222
40,947 36,914
CET 303,734 286,179

CET
(28) (33)
(1,894) (1,760)
(328) (286)
(62) (159)
(45,398) (47,488)
(7,974) (6,655)

AT Tier

Tier 1 (941) -
CET (56,625) (56,381)
CET 247,109 229,798

AT
AT - 23,476
AT - 23,476

AT
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AT

Tier
Tier
Tier

Tier
Tier
Tier

Tier
Tier
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(941) -

(941) -

- 23,476

247,109 253,274
2023 2022

7,607 7,678

7,607 7,678

20,429 21,370

20,429 21,370

28,036 29,048

275,145 282,322

2023 2022
2.500% 2.500
1.500% 1.500
0.813% 0.817
2023 2022

247,109 253,274

3,602,432 3,370,353
6.86% 7.51

HKFRS 13

oTC

201/482
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oTC
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2023
23
1 66,477 - 66,478
69 - - 69
- 3,800 - 3,800
23
88 48,799 70 48,957
4,133 - - 4,133
3,421 1,479 7,689 12,589
23
1,780 17,885 - 19,665
- 217,599 - 217,599
24 19 54,192 - 54,211
) 4512 863 5,375
FVOCI
26
130,681 634,975 - 765,656
822 622 3,262 4,706
32
805 59,045 - 59,850
- 6,353 - 6,353

24 195 41,358 - 41,553
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2022
23
82 36,724 - 36,806
59 - - 59
1 - - 1
- 3,400 - 3,400
23
88 56,268 1,815 58,171
3,957 658 - 4,615
2,699 1,105 6,865 10,669
23
859 1,39 - 2,255
- 15,237 - 15,237
24 97 61,735 - 61,832
- 8,884 832 9,716
FVOCI
26
162,629 530,936 735 694,300
806 851 1,860 3,517
32
6 59,445 - 59,451
- 2 - 2
24 201 49,975 - 50,266

2022

205/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2

OooooOodd
®
2023
FVPL FVOCI
2023 1,815 - 6,865 832 735 1,860
« )
(
)/ (40) - 392 - - -
110 - 502 - - 800
(62) - (70) - - -
(1,753) - - - (735) -
- - - N - -
2023 12 31 70 - 7,689 863 - 3,262
2023 12 31

( ) (40) - 392 - - -
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2022
FVPL
FVOCI
2022 4,028 193 4,876 - 1,108 2,132
« )
)/ (466) (147) 914 - - ;
- - - - (207) (295)
104 - 1,076 - - 23
- - (1) - - -
- - - 832 - -
(1,851) (46) - - (166) -
2022 12 31 1,815 - 6,865 832 735 1,860
2022 12 31
( )
)
(466) (147) 914 - - -
2023 2022 12 31
2023 /

FVOCI

207/482
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/
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30 23.44
64

84 /183

51
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0.25 0.82
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2023 2022
208,078 202,952 239,196 229,448
1,999 2,001 3,636 3,634
2023
31,942 170,998 12 202,952
- 2,001 - 2,001
2022
71,948 157,494 6 229,448

- 3,634 - 3,634
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(2022 )
+15
(2022 :+15 )
-6.8
(2022 :-0.7 )
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29
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GDV
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2023
308 14,567 14,875
1,075 38,380 39,455
11,627 - 11,627

2022
323 15,746 16,069
976 40,806 41,782
11,507 - 11,507
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31
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2023
15,746 40,806
(1,259) -
- (130)
- (970)
- (1,164)
26 27
- M
- (176)
54 €0)
14,567 38,380
(1,259) -
- (130)

(1,259) (130)




2022

2022 12 31
2022 12 31

I
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2022
17,245 40,482
(1,289) -
- (113)
- (954)
- (1,148)
8 50
182 2,089
(400) 400
15,746 40,806
(1,289) -
- (113)
(1,289) (113)

I )

I
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2023 2022
86,940 45,102
40,691 18,278
858 390
128,489 63,770
(71,940) (23,692)
(116) (84)
(2,509) (332)
(41) (34
(2,805) (878)
(77,412) (25,020)
51,078 38,750
94,206 2022 49,617 27,253
2022 11,337
76,174

2022 24,709

214/482
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2023 2022

2,430 1,991
2,413 2,547
1,826 2,491
790 723
714 724
651 912
481 514
431 541
398 210
290 299
28 49
1,735 1,359
12,187 12,360
(1,790) (1,419)
(281) (333)
(949) (808)
(3,020) (2,560)
9,167 9,800
2,663 2,848
©) (10)
2,654 2,838
987 922
(41) (39)
46 883
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2023 2022
8,028 7,635
3 4,957
274 173
10 74
8,315 12,839

C )

2023 2022
) 2,026 (11,848)
I 251 (16)
2,277 (11,864)

2023 2022
FVOCI / (1,457) (3,816)
(21) (52)
10 12
(1,468) (3,856)
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11. « )/
2023 2022
I« )

(2,760) (2,562)

(2,285) 6,286

903 3,042

(3.948) 7,666

(8,090) 15,332

I )

1,155 1,109

696 (1,072)

(721) (3,434)

1,130 (3,397)

(6,960) 11,935

(5,430) 6,561

(1,530) 5,374

(6,960) 11,935

12.
2023 2022
FVOCI
- 114
FVOCI

108 156

465 524

(72) (49)

- 3

111 100

613 848

2022

217/482
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13.
2023 2022
« )
FVOCI 48 (77)
(6,467) (2,468)
(6,419) (2,545)
(22) (36)
FVOCI (13) 120
15 (24)
2 96
120 151
(6,319) (2,334)
(14 (14)
(6,333) (2,348)
14.
2023 2022
10,143 9,412
582 534
10,725 9,946
56 10
1,338 1,263
1,394 1,273
2,919 3,001
30 25
2 14
2,689 3,585
17,759 17,844
(1,152) (894)
16,607 16,950

218/482
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17.
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2023 2022

28 (1,270) (1,305)
2023 2022

®) (@)

(130) (110)

(135) (111)
2023 2022

5,848 5,742

(158) (315)

5,690 5,427

970 597

(267) (1)

6,303 6,023

36 (336) (91)

6,057 5,032

16.5 2022 16.5

219/482
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2023 2022
40,914 33,162
165 2022 6,751 5,472
/ 171 99
(2,052) (214)
1,562 999
(425) (316)
335 146
(285) (254)
6,057 5,932
14.8% 17.9%
OECD
OECD
2024 2025
2023 HKAS 12
GloBE 15
2023 12 31
HKAS 12 15

GloBE
15

220/482
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18.
2023 2022
0.527 5,572 0.447 4,726
1.145 12,106 0.910 9,621
1672 17,678 1.357 14,347
2022 12 31 0.910 9,621
2023 29 2023 14
2023 30 2023
0.527 5,572
2025 28 2023 12 31
1.145 12,106 2024 27
2024 12 31
19.
2023 12 31 32,723
2022 25940 10,572,780,266
2022 10,572,780,266
2023 12 31
2022
20.
MPF
BOC MPF
15
10 100
30 90 MPF
2000 12 MPF MPF
2019

BOCI BOCI

221/482
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2023 12 31
15 2022 20 375
2022 357 MPF 2023 12 31
151 2022 137
@)
)
2023
#
: 6,313 3,320 : 9,633
1 - - - - -
: 651 - - - 651
i 626 - - - 626
sl 31 ; ; ; 31
ol 110 - - - 110
no2 321 ; ; ; 321
2 345 - - - 345
4,134 = = = 41134

4,134 6,313 3,320 - 13,767

222/482
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2022

#
- 5,532 3,320 - 8,852
* 600 - - - 600
* 600 - - - 600
500 - - - 500
¥ 650 - - - 650
¥ 550 - - - 550
* 179 - - - 179
* 700 - - - 700
3,779 - - - 3,779
3,779 5,532 3,320 - 12,631

2023 12 31
2022
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()
2022
2022

2023 2022
18 20
14 12
1 1
33 33

2023 2022
6,500,001 7,000,000 - 2
7,000,001 7,500,000 1 -
7,500,001 8,000,000 1 -
8,000,001 8,500,000 1 -
8,500,001 9,000,000 - 1
9,000,001 9,500,000 1 -
10,000,001 10,500,000 - 1

()

2023 2022
0 500,000 - 2
500,001 1,000,000 1 -
2,500,001 3,000,000 1 1
3,500,001 4,000,000 - 1
4,000,001 4,500,000 1 -
4,500,001 5,000,000 2 3
5,000,001 5,500,000 - 1
6,000,001 6,500,000 - 2
6,500,001 7,000,000 1 -
8,500,001 9,000,000 - 1

9,500,001 10,000,000 1 -

224/482
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() CG-
)
2023 2022
30 120 M 113
14 70 17 61
5 28 7 24
44 190 58 174
9 47 13 43
9 47 12 Vil
)
2023 2022
- 1,240 - 280
- 2 - 1
2023 12 31

2022

225/482
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2023

1 1 - ®

48 48 - 19

59 59 - (19)
2022

11 1 - @)

34 34 (@) (12)

45 45 &) 17

226/482
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19,257 17,735
141,310 175,993
13,595 17,834
3,052 3,063
1,820 1,497
159,777 198,387
136,944 212,800
37,872 50,489
52,191 55,086
611 756
227,618 319,131
406,652 535,253
(48) (43)
(33 (16)

406,571 535,194

227/482
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2023 2022
32,892 12,270
7,449 3,578
26,137 20,958
66,478 36,806
69 59
- 1
66,547 36,866
401 397
48,556 57,774
48,957 58,171
4,133 4,615
12,589 10,669
65,679 73,455
375 624
35 355
19,255 1,276
19,665 2,255
151,891 112,576
3,800 3,400
217,599 15,237
221,399 18,637

373,290 131,213

228/482
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2023 2022
17,709 20,831
44,657 23,232
72,734 53,169
135,100 97,232
2,819 3,961
1,383 713
4,202 4,674
3421 1,476
- 337
9,168 8,857
12,589 10,670
151,891 112,576

2023 2022
59,456 35,728
1,762 186
56,235 49,890
34,438 26,772
151,891 112,576
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12 31 /
2023

/
307,690 15,566 (11,035)
2,098,292 16,176 (13,000)
52,950 469 (194)
2,458,932 32,211 (24,229)
24,339 10 (19)
1,810,768 21,461 (16,684)
1,835,107 21,471 (16,703)
16,627 497 (594)
1,196 32 (27)
4,311,862 54,211 (41,553)

2022

/
268,839 15,806 (10,068)
1,426,428 15,226 (16,189)
28,566 374 (156)
1,723,833 31,406 (26,413)
99,719 75 (52)
1,500,924 29,972 (23,326)
1,600,643 30,047 (23,378)
14,501 361 (456)
863 18 (19)

3,339,840 61,832 (50,266)

231/482
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(b)

12 31 /
2023
12
/ 1,388 4,712 16,446 56,610 22,668 101,824
3.40% 3.48% 2.90% 3.22% 3.02% N/A
2022
12
/ 2,665 2,664 7,736 76,874 27,928 117,867

347 3.29 3.22 3.07 2.86 N/A
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2023
/
101,824 5,022 (142) (2,480)
2022
/
117,867 7,290 (169) 9,762
2023
94,612 - (5,833) - 2,195
- (1,999) - 10 (63)
94,612 (1,999) (5.833) 10 2,132
2022
107,364 - (9,412) - (9,959)
- (1,934) - 73 73
107,364 (1,934) (9,412) 73 (9,886)

2023 2022
(348) (124)

233/482
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2023 12 31

2022 8,884
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2023 2022
600,813 551,286
1,101,489 1,096,983
1,702,302 1,648,269
(4,110) (3,995)
(1,056) (2,511)
(9,555) (4,992)
1,687,581 1,636,771
3,751 6,329
(D) (2)
3,750 6,328
1,815 1,015
2 )
1,813 1,014
1,693,144 1,644,113

5,731 2022

863 2022 832

234/482
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2023 2022

305,168 287,961
25,910 42,144
434,578 364,195
765,656 694,300
4,706 3,517
770,362 697,817
12 6
1,214 4,630
206,899 234,622
208,125 239,258

(@7) (62)
208,078 239,196

978,440 937,013

235/482
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2023 2022
88,869 86,572
174,722 141,484
502,065 466,244
765,656 694,300
1,040 1,060
3,666 2,457
4,706 3,517
770,362 697,817
15,827 13,839
122,043 158,462
70,208 66,895
208,078 239,196
978,440 937,013
134,598 165,092
2023 2022

490,733 506,386
109,128 60,900
286,490 268,507
92,089 101,220

978,440 937,013

236/482
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2023
697,817 239,196
1,316,600 40,655
(1,243,340) (71,516)
3,460 617
6,888 213
- 15
(11,063) (1,102)
770,362 208,078
2022
916,774 135,503
1,296,203 136,941
(1,453,974) (29,429)
1,024 1,331
(30,225) (741)
- (24)
(31,985) (4,385)
697,817 239,196
Tier
2022 2,796
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27.
2023 2022
843 1,215
) 1,102 (6)
(215) (330)
(13 )
(431) 27)
(12) -
12 31 1,275 843
BOC 45
50,000,000
X 20
100 49
10025200 1996  ATM
3,792,000,000  49.91
20
195,000 10
GBA N/A  10.20%

Il LPF

238/482
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2023 12 31
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EDINETOOOO

o o {0 o2

OooooOodd
2023 2022
16,069 17,722
26 13
(1,270) (1,305)
29 50 (361)
14,875 16,069
2023 2022
4,619 4,773
9,937 10,975
261 235
58 86
14,875 16,069

239/482
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41,782 1,155 1,324 44,261
51 337 481 869
(30) ©) - (36)
(1,115) - - (1,115)
(1,181) (433) (569) (2,183)
(50) - - (50)
(4] 2 4 ®
39,455 1,051 1,232 41,738
39,455 6,557 2,814 48,826
- (5,506) (1,582) (7,088)
39,455 1,051 1,232 41,738
- 6,557 2,814 9,371
39,455 - - 39,455
39,455 6,557 2,814 48,826

240/482
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2023 12 31
12 31

2022

2022 12 31

2022 12 31

50
10 50

50
10 50
10

28
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OooooOodd
43,784 1,338 1,319 46,441
57 331 645 1,033
(6) ©) - )
(1,214) - - (1,214)
(1,196) (500) (627) (2,323)
361 - - 361
(4 (11) (13) (28)
41,782 1,155 1,324 44,261
41,782 7,163 2,497 51,442
- (6,008) (1,173) (7,181)
41,782 1,155 1,324 44,261
- 7,163 2,497 9,660
41,782 - - 41,782
41,782 7,163 2,497 51,442

2023 2022

11,608 12,034
27,542 29,437
56 64
217 214
32 33
39,455 41,782
2023

241/482
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2023 12 31

9,181

12 31

12 31

12 31
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2023 2022
(130) (110)
(985) (1,104)
(1,115) (1,214)
2023 2022
162 334
11,627 11,507
2,382 2,213
32,719 23,048
2 3
43,792 48,815
90,684 85,920
2023 2022
2,213 2,025
905 866
(736) (678)
2,382 2,213
6,938 6,727
(4,556) (4,514)
2,382 2,213

242/482
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32.

33.

2023 2022
59,850 59,451
4,194 -
- 2
(33 2,159 -
6,353 2
66,203 59,453
2023 2022 12 31
2023 2022
2,501,682 2,377,207
32 2,159 -
2,503,841 2,377,207
153,646 165,006
62,720 71,109
216,366 236,115
519,868 472,248
451,245 521,441
971,113 993,689
620,576 616,829
695,786 530,574
1,316,362 1,147,403
2,503,841 2,377,207

243/482
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() 2021
() 2022

35.

(
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BOCHK
BOCHK

15
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(
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2023 2022
- 1,702
1,999 1,934
1,999 3,636
2.80 2023
1.33 2024
2023 2022
82,404 67,134
1,206 1,298
319 326
30 36
21 128
714 766
84,694 69,688

244482
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36.
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)/
2023
2023 841 6,278 (831) (1128)  (1,976) 3,184
)
(17 24 (165) (87) 109 (217) (336)
(
)/ - (202) - - 614 412
- - - - 2 2
2023 12 31 865 5,911 (918) (1019  (1577) 3,262
2022
2022 (

) 826 6,606 @  (1,128) (693) 5,607
HKFRS 17 - - (866) - 212 (654)
2022 (HKFRS

17 ) 826 6,606 (870)  (1,128) (481) 4,953
I )
(17 15 (128) 63 (11) (30) (91)
- (200) - - (1,511)  (L,711)
) ) ; - 45 45
- - (24) 11 1 (12)
2022 12 31 841 6,278 (831)  (1,128)  (1,976) 3,184
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2023 2022

(1,480) (1,162)

4,742 4,346

3,262 3,184
2023 2022

(1,453) (1,107)

5,977 6,182

4,524 5,075
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2023
168,674 160 409 169,243
(1,897) - - (1,897)
. (6) 478 472
177 - - 177
- - (13) (13)
- 354 - 354
- 69 - 69
177 417 465 1,059
8,047 48 (5) 8,090
(22,342 - 22,342 -
25,743 - - 25,743
- - (22,877) (22,877)
(1,490) - - (1,490)
24,253 - (22,877) 1,376
176,912 625 334 177,871
176,917 625 331 177,873
®) - 3 2
176,912 625 334 177,871

247/482
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2022

183,480 - 221 183,701
(1,694) - - (1,694)
- @) 446 444

76 - - 76

- (43) - (43)

- 160 - 160

76 115 446 637
(15,383) 45 6 (15,332)
(19,070) - 19,070 -
22,530 - - 22,530
- - (19,334) (19,334)
(1,265) - - (1,265)
21,265 - (19,334) 1,931
168,674 160 409 169,243
168,677 160 409 169,246
(©) - - (©)]
168,674 160 409 169,243

248/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2

OooooOodd
()
2023
158,233 1,750 9,256 169,239
- (246) (895) (1,141)
(23 - - (23
(91) - - (91)
(114) (246) (895) (1,255)
1,599 ®) (1,501) -
354 - - 354
( ) (2,926) 2,995 - 69
(973) 2,087 (1,591) 423
(13 - - (13
(13) - - (13)
( ) 8,018 1) 93 8,090
25,736 - - 25,736
(22,869) - - (22,869)
(1,490) - - (1,490)
1,377 - - 1,377
12 31 166,528 4,470 6,863 177,861
166,529 4,470 6,863 177,862
@ - - (@)

166,528 4,470 6,863 177,861

249/482
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2022

176,350 - 7,337 183,687
- (92) (981) (1,073)
(10) - - (10)
(121) - - (121)
(131) (92) (981) (1,204)
(3,039) 605 2,434 -
(43) - - (43)
(1,167) 1,327 - 160
(4,249) 1,932 2,434 117
(15,708) (90) 466 (15,332)
22,529 - - 22,529
(19,295) - - (19,295)
(1,263) - - (1,263)
1,971 - - 1,971
158,233 1,750 9,256 169,239
158,234 1,750 9,256 169,240
(1) - - (1)
158,233 1,750 9,256 169,239

250/482
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2023
1,661 227 1,888
15,473 4,310 19,783
17,134 4,537 21,671
(20,167) (4,474) (24,641)
38 6 44
2,995 - 2,995
- 69 69
2022
1,179 185 1,364
11,781 4,167 15,948
12,960 4,352 17,312
(14,306) (4,192) (18,498)
19 - 19
1,327 - 1,327
- 160 160
2023
837 2,729 7,767 11,333
2022
700 2,386 7,920 11,006
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20
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20
10

17

20

LAC

N~ N N N N N

()
()
()
()
()
()
()

2.20
247
5.30
5.02
2.85
4.99
2.67

10,572,780,266

2024
2025
2025
2025
2025
2025
2025

252/482

EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2

oOoOooodn

2023 2022
- 22,499
11,018 11,255
7,869 7,860
7,853 7,846
18,704 19,107
7,836 7,826
22,043 -
75,323 76,393

BOCHK 2023 20
BOC BOCHK

2023 2022

52,864 52,864




40.
Tier
2018 BOCHK 3,000
5.90
BOCHK 2023
41.

@
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2023 2022
- 23,476
Tier
BOCHK 2023
1,392 2022 1,390
/( )
2023 2022
42,558 34,917
2,919 3,001
- (€)
6,333 2,348
(143) (81)
(2,955) (560)
41 34
1,413 1,877
(5,111) (15,325)
(21,460) (22,435)
(1,092 (8,137)
(52,255) (50,004)
23,960 62,540
(9,793) 9,497
57,047 (169,436)
6,750 46,933
124,475 46,052
(1,637) 1,213
15,263 15,852
12,069 (2,865)
5,495 23,234
) 203,877 (21,348)
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(b)

2023 2022

76,393 -

(21,937) -

(2.483) -

21,937 74,516

(1,096) 1,545

2,509 332

12 31 75,323 76,393
2023 2022

1,208 1,318

(613) (699)

480 645

41 34

12 31 1,206 1,298

©)

2023 2022

345,438 479,150

229,191 8,574

112,301 53,201

686,930 540,925
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HKMA

2023 2022
1,117 1,069
28,132 25,586
16,068 15,908
628,682 533,304
16,520 21,905
168,212 177,275
858,731 775,047
78,102 79,122

2023 2022
592 211
49 233

641 444
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2023 2022
385 431
228 289
73 132
- 6
686 858

RPC
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2023 12 31
¥
(1,050) 19,864 34,195 4,499 3,570 51,078 - 51,078
30,784 438 (30,764) (100) (358) - - -
19,734 20,302 3,431 4,399 3212 51,078 - 51,078
e )
6,303 3,820 185 (2,054) 823 9,167 - 9,167
(2,005) 4 125 2,043 577 744 (744) -
4,388 3,824 310 (12) 1,400 9,011 (744) 9,167
- - - 828 - 828 118 6
(
) 515 1,752 6,113 (734) 657 8,303 12 8,315
() 39 - (142) 2,379 - 2,276 1 2,277
) - 10 (1,322 (151) ® (1,468) - (1,468)
(G - - - (5/430) - (5,430) - (5,430)
27 1 31 16 1,743 1,818 (1,205) 613
24,703 25,889 8,421 1,296 7,007 67,316 (1,818) 65498
«
(392) (6.212) o) @ 273 (6,333) - (6,333)
24,311 19,677 8,420 1,295 7,280 60,983 (1,818) 59,165
(9,607) (3811) (1,457) 97 (3453) (18425 1,818 (16,607)
14,704 15,866 6,963 1,198 3,827 42,558 - 42,558
/
- - - - (1,270) (1,270) - (1,270)
/
@ - - - (134) (135) - (135)
(
) (22 - 5 - (222) (239) - (239)
14,681 15,866 6,968 1,198 2,201 40914 - 40914
2023 12 31
629,699 1041554 1884129 187,152 189,328 3,931,862 (64,354) 3,867,508
113 - 3 309 850 1,275 - 1,275
629,812 1041554 1884132 187461 190,178 3,933,137 (64,354) 3,868,783
1,366,745 1,120,307 819223 182912 120521 3,609,708 (64,354) 3,545,354
2023 12 31
a 19 1 52 1,681 1,794 - 1,794
1,088 324 127 81 1,340 2,960 (41) 2,919
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202 12 31
)
2,533 15,528 14,238 4,011 2,440 38,750 - 38,750
8,032 (4,027) (2,806) (54) (1,145) - - -
10,565 11,501 11,432 3,957 1,295 38,750 - 38,750
)
6,140 3,829 (74) (874) 779 9,800 - 9,800
(829) 6 81 854 453 566 (566) -
5,312 3,835 7 (20) 1,232 10,366 (566) 9,800
- - - 1,041 - 1,041 % 1,137
I
) 1,011 1,603 10,196 (560) 585 12,835 4 12,839
- - (604)  (11,260) - (11,864) - (11,864)
) - 12 (3,709) (165) 6 (3,856) - (3,856)
« ) - - - 6,561 - 6,561 - 6,561
30 5 80 101 1,831 2,047 (1,199) 848
I« ) 16,918 16,956 17,402 (345) 4,949 55,880 (1,665) 54,215
C ¥
(344) (2,008) 71 14 (81) (2,348) - (2,348)
) 16,574 14,948 17,473 (331) 4,868 53,532 (1,665) 51,867
(9,096) (3,548) (2,544) (66) (3361)  (18,615) 1,665 (16,950)
) 7,478 11,400 14,929 (397) 1,507 34,917 - 34,917
/
- - - - (1,305) (1,305) - (1,305)
/
(1) - - - (110) (111) - (112)
(
) (48) - 4 - (295) (339) - (339)
K ) 7,429 11,400 14,933 (397) (203) 33,162 - 33,162
2022 12 31
580,155  1,040621 1734391 177505 173197  3,705.869 (40,207) 3,665,662
563 - 1 - 279 843 - 843
580,718 1040621 1734392 177505 173476 3,706,712 (40,207) 3,666,505
1,280,379 1,075,631 746103 173218 105546 3,380,877 (40,207) 3,340,670
2022 12 31

46 26 10 85 1,745 1,912 - 1,912
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1,175 307 122 73 1,365 3,042 (412) 3,001
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2023
37,191 - 37,191 (23,668) (12,310) 1,213
21,771 - 21,771 (21,771) - -
3,800 - 3,800 (3,800) - -
15,689 (11,684) 4,005 - - 4,005
78,451 (11,684) 66,767 (49,239) (12,310) 5,218
2023
28,454 - 28,454 (23,614) (2,288) 2,552
44,495 - 44,495 (44,495) - -
14,964 (11,684) 3,280 - - 3,280

87,913 (11,684) 76,229 (68,109) (2,289) 5,832
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2022
45,254 - 45,254 (31,824) (12,534) 896
17,576 - 17,576 (17,576) - -
3.400 - 3,400 (3,400) - -
11,364 (9,222) 2,142 (6) - 2,136
77,594 (9,222) 68,372 (52,806) (12,534) 3,032
2022
37,117 - 37,117 (31,824) (2,527) 2,766
31,757 - 31,757 (31,757) - -
10,562 (9,222) 1,340 (6) - 1,334
79,436 (9,222) 70,214 (63,587) (2,527) 4,100
oTC
2023 12 31 38,253 2022 27,986
84,241 2022 46,757
122,929 2022 75346

3,271 2022 2,709
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49.
2023 2022
44,389 43,866 32,189 31,757
50.
FVPL 2023 12 31
187,435
2022 159,172
511 2022 607
12,078
2022 10,062 2023 12 31
660 2022 581
51.
383
2023 2022
5 5
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CiC CiC
BOC
BOC
CiC

2023 2022
2,520 1,242
4,240 1,580
134,248 206,631
3,727 5,478
8,009 27,450
75,445 95,344

2023 2022
516 2,209
2,416 1,000
19,238 12,218

38
BOC
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(0)
cic
(©)
/
2023 2022
20 29
70 71
941 -
406 47
14 A 304

305

(D
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12 31

2023 2022

38 52
53. IBOR
IBOR

12 31 LIBOR/ LIBOR

2023 2022
2,773 178,040
- 624
/ - 469,213

54.
HKMA
10
2023
330,222 391,169 12,064 116,644 850,099
8,439 16,902 43,698 357,831 426,870
29,635 146,302 14,412 24,334 214,683
2022

408,109 223,505 17,001 119,710 768,325
14,938 3,578 54,417 323,167 396,100
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32,072 161,031 16,539 14,796 224,438
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HKMA
BOCHK
2023
HKMA

348,102 23,154 371,256

84,392 4,981 89,373

125,112 20,785 145,897

27,853 2,460 30,313

1,406 162 1,568

56,366 10,321 66,687

2,917 - 2917

646,148 61,863 708,011

3,621,071
10 17.84
2022
HKMA

369,448 28,067 397,515

80,046 6,753 86,799

129,723 18,635 148,358

28,976 1,630 30,606

1,362 205 1,567

67,098 6,968 74,066

1,856 86 1,942

678,509 62,344 740,853

3,422,169
10 19.83
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12 31
2023 2022

1,147 476
822 807
55,422 55,322
12,095 10,287
928 1,100
2 2
70,416 67,994
5 3
5 3
52,864 52,864
17,547 15,127
70,411 67,991
70,416 67,994
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(b)
FVOCI
2022 52,864 (3,031) 15,149 64,982
- - 15,105 15,105
- (149) - (149)
- (149) 15,105 14,956
- - (11,947) (11,947)
2022 12 31 52,864 (3,180) 18,307 67,991
2023 52,864 (3,180) 18,307 67,991
- - 17,598 17,598
- 15 - 15
- 15 17,598 17,613
- - (15,193) (15,193)
2023 12 31 52,864 (3,165) 20,712 70,411
57.
2023 12 31
43042,840,858  *100
BOC 3,538,000,000  *51
BOC 565,000,000 100
760,518,480 100
10,000,000,000 100
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2023 2022
49 49
2023 2022
557 (263)
2,993 2,292
187,153 177,427
181,046 172,749
1,136 (537)
1,429 (3,788)
BOC BVI
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Consolidated Income Statement

{Restated)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HES'm
Interest incame 128,489 63,770
Intevest income calculated using the effective interest method 121,459 60854
Others 7030 2E16
Interest expense {77,411} (25,0200
Met interest income [ 51,078 38,750
Fee and commission income 12,187 12380
Fee and commission expense {3,020} (2,560)
Met fee and commission income 7 9,167 9,300
Insurance revenue 1,897 1,604
Insurance service expense {1,059} (637}
Met income from reinsurance contracts held 108 80
Insurance service result 946 1,137
Net trading gain B 8,315 12839
Net gain/loss) on other financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss 9 2,277 (11,854}
Wet loss on other financial instruments 10 [1,468) (3856}
Insurance finance (expensesiincome 1 [5,430) 6,561
Other aperating income 12 613 348
Met aperating income before impairment allowances 65,498 4215
Net charge of impairment allowances 13 (6,233) [2,348)
Met operating income 59,165 51,867
Operating expenses 14 {16,607) (16,9500
Operating profit 42,558 34917
Met loss from disposal offfair value adjustments on investment properties 15 (1.270) {1,305}
Net loss from disposalfrevaluation of properties, plant and equipment 16 {135} 111
Share of results after tax of associates and joint ventures 27 (239) (339}
Profit before taxation 40,914 3362
Taxation 17 (8,057) {5,932}
Profit for the year 34,857 27230

128 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Restated)
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2022
HES'm

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company and gther equity instrument holders 34,115 27330
Equity halders of the Compary 32,723 25,940
Other equity instrument holders 1,392 1,390

Mon-controlling interests 742 (100}

34,857 27230
HKS HEKS

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted 19 3.0950 24535

The notes an pages 136 1o 303 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Restated)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HES'm

Profit for the year 34,857 27230
items that will ot be reclassified subsequently to income slatemont:

Premises:

Fevaluation of premises 29 (985) {1,104}
Deferred tax 36 202 200
(783) {904}

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Change in fair value 646 (721}
Deferred tax (3) 65
643 (656}
Actuarial boss on retirernent benefit plans (6) 4
(146) (1,564}

Iterns that may be reclassifed subsequently to income statement:

Advances and other acoounts at fair value through other
comprehensive incomee:

Charge in impairment allowances (creditedi/charged 1o income
statement 13 {48) 77
Debt instrumenis at fair value through ather comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 4,260 (20,288)
Charnge in impairment allowances charged/{credited) to
inCome statement 13 13 (1200
Release upon disposal/redemption reclassified to income statement 10 1457 3816
Amortisation of accumulated amount of fair value hedge adjustment
reclassified to income statement 91} {36}
Deferred tax (864) 2333
4,775 (14,293}

Insurance contracts:

Finance {expenseslincome from insurance contracts issued {2,165) 6,745

Finance income/lexpenses) from reinsurance contracts held 635 {1,371}

Deferred tax 253 (8ar)

11,277} 4487

Currency translation difference (263) (893}

3,187 {10,621}

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,041 (12185}

Total comprehensive income for the year 37,898 15,045
Total comprehensive income attributable te:

Equity holders of the Company and other equity instrument holders 37.012 16,739
Equity hotders of the Company 35,620 15349
Crther equity instrument holders 1,392 1380

Mon-controlling intérests 886 (1.654)

37,898 15,045

The notes on pages 136 10303 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

[Restated) (Restated)

As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022

HKS$'m HES'm HES'm

ASSETS
Cash and balances and placements with banks and

other fingncial institutlons 22 406,571 535,154 465535
Financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss 23 373,290 131,213 118,685
Derivative Sinancial instruments 24 54,211 61832 33,1856
Hong Kang SAR Government certificates of

incebtedness 213,000 208,770 203810
Advances and other accounts 25 1,693,144 1644113 1,595,728
Investrnent in securities ] 978,440 F37.013 1052277
riterests in associaves and joint ventures r¥) 1,275 843 1215
Investment properties 28 14,875 16,069 17722
Properties, plant and equipment 29 41,738 44,261 45,441
Current tax assels 715 15 93
Deferred tax assers i6 1,480 1,162 780
Other assets 30 N,lll 85,920 101,187
loral assets 3,868,783 3,666,505 3,630,639
LIABILITIES
Hong Kong SAR currency nates in circulation 3 213,000 208770 202810
Depasits and balances from banks and ather financial

institutions 373,673 316,626 AB6 062
Financial liabilities at fair value throwgh profit or loss 32 66,203 59453 12520
Derivative financial instruments 24 41,553 50,266 29,757
Dreposits from customers i3 2,501,682 2377207 2331155
Db securities and certificates of deposit in issue 34 1,999 3636 2423
Cther accounts and provisions 35 84,694 69,638 53,685
Current tax liabilities 4,612 5039 3491
Deferred tax liabilities i6 4,742 4,346 5733
Insurance contract liabilities 37 177,873 169,246 183,705
Subordinated liabilities 38 75,323 76,393 -
Total liabilities 3,545,354 3,340,670 3312341

BOC Homg Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023 131
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Restated) (Restated)
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
HE$'m HES'm HES'm
EQUITY

Share capital 39 52,864 52864 52,864
Reserves 267,281 246,924 143523

Capital and reserves attributable 1o equity holders
of the Company 310,145 799,788 296,386
Other equity instruments 40 - 23476 23478
Mon-controfling interests 3,284 2571 4,436
Taotal equity 323,429 325835 324,298
Tatal liabilities &nd equity 3,868,783 3,666,505 3,636,639

The notes on pages 136 10303 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directars on 28 March 2024 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

! i
A -
@Laé £ >k,

GE Haljiao SUN Yu
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Atiributabie o equity holders of the Company
Besenes
Reseret bor
Fremists  financal Qther Ly
Sem mevhution  asetal Fegoatory  Tnnsdation 2 ! equity  contoding
i Teserve OO pesere” Iesenve Toldl nstuments  intenesly
H&im HESm 1 H&Sm ] H®5m H&Y'm HGm
ALY Jarwsary B2, s provinualy meporied SiR L Hig &M {10003 - Wigs Wb Ium SEE Al
ffect of adopon of HERS 17 - - i3 - - - [P L1 R 1 - (1155 I 4
ALY Janary 202, a5 esiied /TR W Em O (m - MM BEME JUB B 0w
Foofit e the yeir - - - - - - U L - L1 I
ipon declantion of dividend 1n
S ' - - - : -
= = - = = bl 158 1350 {10a HEFE ]
Oefer comprebentivn ingoeme:
Frenises - o8 - - - - - (o8 - - 1504
Equity ingtraments 2t i vae theough
ther ComprEnEnsive ncome - - (53 = - - - 3] = 1o ]
Actuarial bows o retisemen bent plats - . - . - - H i - . "]
Mdbvarcs and cther acoounts ot
i vbue through othet
comprehensive income - z n - s - : i e - i
Dek; intryments & B3 velie theough
ihet comprehenghe ngome - = [oged - . - - (s 7 L ¥ L
Irurane cntnc . : - : 188 . L . LI L0
Cumarey tramistion dffzsence - - pos - 683y - - 0 - - )
Tl comprebasesive incorme B8 (2 1583 P 1534 13 11 1
Petase upe cposal of equiy
instruments 2t St value Baough offer
comprabenihe hoome
Tegsgier . . 18 . - . {160 . - . -
Defarad tae = B I - - 2 4 @ - L] (]
(it te - - - - - - 7 7 - ] &
Resease Lpar Cnposa! o premises a ] ; - z - i z - : 7
Trarefts from reqzsnes eamings 5 . - Y - - 1] = - - "
Cheidas . 3 - z F = TEELTr N | 1T {1350 m s
AL 31 December 21, & restated SiB meE (11008 bS5 (1,563 i¥EOE MM N im IBES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Atriburtable o equity haklers of the Company
Reserves

Reserve bor

Premises  financial Ingurance
Tinance
L=

AL vy MY 5104 306E [B44) 6,555 (1583 = NI NS AT 3 1318
- . (22600 - = L (35 (3287 2 (275 00
Sdsd 1m0 [nod) EeSS (166 2 1M MATRE DM 1AM nsEs
Froofit for the year - - - - - - M M - a3
\ipon dediartion of dividend to
other equty Instrumen; holders - - - - - - {1,393 (1352} 135 - -
- E = = - nm  um 1392 M MEN
(mer comprehentivg ingome
hemises - 111] - - - = - 83| = - (m83)
Fiquiy imitroments & e value thiough
giher comprehensive ngome = - t40 * = = = 642 - i 643
At fos o retement benefit plans - - - - - - ] [11] - - 6]

Mebiarces and other agoounts 2t

b vaue thrpugh othe

fompeehenshe ingome - - [TT1] - - - - ) - = (]
Db nstruments & far valke thiough

diher comprenensive income - - 4008 - - - - 43 - Ll &5
MErNGE ContracH - B - - - [851] - [-41]] - (175 1 | 1
Curvericy iranslation diffesence - E 4] - (200} - - (23} - . (3

Total compuehendive income - [rE3) 4537 - [200) (651 ;AT B 130 1] 78

Rz g ol of sguity
vetraments 2t i valop Brough other

orfrebeni Roome

Teanchr - . 1 - - = m = 2 = =

Defisnci i - . - - - = - = = - =

Cuwet e = E - - - B = - - - =
Redemption of othéx equty itrumen - - - - . - ) M A - [2354)
Reease uper caposl of preemiset . 1] - - - B 1 : = - =
Transfer froem reciined eamin - - - 13 - - 13 - = = =
Dredendh = E - . - - s psmn paw) (7 (676
A 31 Decessbher 203 S MW A 7AW AEl 18T 1M S - LM AN

¥ n sccordance with the iequirements of the HiKMA, the armounts ane 18t aside for genenl banking raks, including futune lodies of other unfoceseeabde risks, in
addition to the lean impaiiment allowances recognised under HKFRS 9

The notes on pages 136 to 303 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HES'm

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating cash infiow/{outfiow) before taxation A1ia) 203,877 (21,348}
Hong Kong profits tax patd (5,997) (3,743}
Outside Heng Kong profits tax paid trﬂ]_ (729)
Met cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 197,117 (25820}
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of properties, plant and equipment (388) (388)
Proceeds from dispesal of properties, plant and equipment N B
Additions of investment properties 28 (26) {13}
Additions of imangible assets 30 (205) (B&&)
Additions of interests in associates and joint ventures {1.102) -
Proceeds from disposal of associates and jolnt ventures - 9
Dividend received from asseciates and joint ventures 27 431 7
Met cash outflow from investing activities (1,959) {1,223}
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to equity holders of the Campany (15,193) (11,947}
Dividend paid to other equity instrument holders {1,392) {1,390)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (173) (171
Payment for redemption of other equity instruments (23,546)
Payrment far redemption of subordinated liabilities A1(k) (21,937)
Inberest paid far subordinated liabilities 41k} (2,483) -
Proceeds from subordinated liabilities 41{b} 21,937 74516
Payment af lease liabilities 41(k) (613) (B9}
Met cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (43,400) 60,309
increase in cash and cash equivalents 151,758 33,265
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 540,925 531,915
Effect of exchange rate changes an cash and cash eguivaients (5.753) [24,256)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 414} 686,930 540,925

Cash flows from operating activities included

- interest received 123,461 61,009
— interest paid 66,904 18486
- dividend recelved 108 21

The notes on pages 136 1o 303 are an integral par of these financial statements,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

The Campany i an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of banking
and refated financial services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated and listed In Hong Kong. The address of its registered office (s
53/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

2. Material accounting policies

The material accounting policles applied in the preparation of these consalidated financial staterments are set out below,
These palicies have been consistenthy applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFR5s) (HKFRSs Is a collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reparting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) lssued by the HEICPA and requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consoflidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair
value, investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repoassessed assers held for sale are
stated at the lower of their camying amounts and fair values less costs 1o sell as further explained in Note 2.24,

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical estimates. It
also requires the Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
critical to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3,

136 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

280/482



EDINETOOOO

o o {0 o2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

{a) Standard and amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1 January

2023

Applicable for
financial years

Standard/ beginning
Amendments Content an/after
HEFRS 17 Imsurance Contracts 1 January 2023
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2033
Staterment 2 (Amendments)
HKAS B (Amendments) Definitien of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deterred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
HKAS 12 (Amendments) International Tax Reform - Pillar Twa 1 January 2023
Model Rules

Currently
rilevant
to the
Group

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Vs

. HKFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts. The [ssuance of HKFRS 17 replaces HKFRS 4 for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023. On 1 January 2023, the Group adopted the requirements of
HKFRS 17 retrospectively with comparatives restated from the transition date, 1 January 2022 These
Include comparative data presented in the consolidated financial statements, Note 4.1, Note 4.2(B),
Mote 4.2(C), Note 4.3(B), Note 4.3(C), Note 4.4, Note 5 1o Nota 14, Note 17, Note 19, Note 23, Note 25,
Mote 26, Note 30, Note 35 1o Note 37, Note 41, Note 46, Note 54 and Mote 57, The changes introduced

in HKFAS 17 are highlighted as follows:

{if Changes to recognition and measurement

Unlike HKFRS 4, which i an interim Standard without prescribing the recognition and
measurement of insurance contracts, HKFRS 17 establishes specific principles for the recognition
and measurement of insurance contracts isswed and reinsurance contracts held by the Group.,

The Group measures the groups of Insurance contracts with the general measurement model
("GMM") which is applicable to insurance contracts without direct participation features, the
variable fee approach ("VEAT) which is applicable to insurance conftracts with direct participation
features and the premium allocation approach ("PAAT) which is applicable 1o insurance contracts

with a coverage period of one year or less or other eligible insurance contracts.

For a description of how the Group recognises and measures insurance contracts under HEFRS

17, please refer 1o the respective accounting policy in Mote 2,19,

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Repart 2023

281/482

oOoOooodn

137



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standard and amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2023 (continued)

(I} Changes to presentation

Fer presentation in the balance sheet, the Group aggregates porifolios of insurance contracts
lssued and refnsurance contracts held and presents separately as [nsurance contracts llabilities,
insurance contract assets and reinsurance contracts assets included In other assets, and
reinsurance contracts labilities included in other accounts and provisions.

The line item descriptions in the income statement have been changed significantly under
HEFRS 17 compared with HKFRS 4. HEFRS 17 requires separate presentatlon of insurance
revenue, insurance service expense, Insurance finance income or expenses, net incoma from
reinsurance contracts held, and other comprehensive income from insurance contracts issued
and reinsurance contracts hedd.

{iily Transition approach

The Group has applied the full retrospective approach on transition to all contracts issued on
or after 1 January 2022 For contracts issued prior to 2022 and measured other than the PAA,
the fair value approach was applied as obtaining reascnable and supportable infarmation le.g.
assumptions that would have been made in an earlier period and information is anly available at
higher levels of aggregation) 1o apply the full retrespective approach was impracticable without
undue cost or effort.

The Group has determined the contractual service margin of the lability for remaining coverage
at the transition date, as the difference between the fair value of the group of insurance
contracts and the fulfilment cash flows measured at that date. In determining fair value, the
Group has applied the requirements of HKFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement” except for the
requirernent that the falr value of a financial liability with a demand feature cannot less than the
amaunt payable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standard and amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2023 [continued)

(iv) Impact of reclassification of financial assets

Upon transition to HKFRS 17, the Group has performed a detailed analysis for each class of
the Group's financlal assets on 1 January 2023, and re-designated certaln financial assets. The
Group reassessed classification of financial assets if they are connected with contracts within the
scope of HEFRS 17 at the date of initial application of HEFRS 17 and restated the comparative
information for 2022, The following table shows the measurernent category and carrying amount
of cemain financial assets before and after the adoption of HKFRS 17 as at 1 January 2023.

Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
31 December 1 January
Classification as at Classification as at 2023 2023
31 December 2022 1 January 2023 before after
before adoption of after adoption of adoption of adoption of
HKFRS 17 HEFRS 17 HEFRS 17 HKFRS 17
HKS'm HES 'm

Fair value through Fair value throuwgh

cther comprehensive profit or loss
incame ["FYCC {"FVPL’) {a) 4,612 4512
Amortised cost (ACT FWPL (B} 47,570 41,447
AL WO {c) 45,887 40,254
Q8,069 B6313
Hote:

[a} Dbt and equity Instruments ee reclassified to PYPL out of PROCH category a3 for eliminating acoounting mesmatch on
connected indurance contract [abilities thet are measuned under the YFA

(o) Dt instruments are reclassified 1o FVFL out of AC category as for eliminating acoounting mismatch on connected
Indurance continel inbilities 1het Bre médjuned under the YEA

{c} Deebot vstnaments aeg reclassidfied to FWOCE out of AC categony as a resigls of neassessment on their busingss model on the
iy af Facts and circurmstances that exist on | anuary 3023

For financial assets derecognised between the transition date and date of initial application of
HKFRS 17, the Group has applied classification overay for the purpose of presenting comparative

information. The classification overlay Is based on how the Group expects the financial assets
would be designated at the date of initial application of HKFRS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standard and amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2023 (continued)

{v) Overall impact of adoption of HKFRS 17

The following table summarises the impact, net of tax, ansing from transition to HKFRS 17 en the
opening balances of the balance sheat at the transition date (le. 1 January 2022):

Rechssication
w  Rememrement ; 1 Jaseary
Femodof  rEmessareen of isarance B A
HEFIS4 offrancdl  and reisurance ; Undey
Talarees ] i) ] VTS HFS 7
oo x s s e Htn
ABSETE
T P
thecugh profit orles Rl - LA - - - G1% b7
e oot e 154115 i . . . : niEs e
Irvemmend in securtis 1] - 1358 - - - Wil umam
Coebersed s sisety i 58 S b
Deher znety e [ et . M . B GRS W
M othes ety THELC - - - - - - Teafe
Toud s JRSAN X nn Mg - = ) ARk
LIABATIES
Deher ancours an
provsies TR - & : - s a9
Dieforved tzn Eabylites i - - - [0 - 88 im
nsurance conirect kabiites s [aEn) - L = - ek ke
i other fabilitie; bl b - - - - - - A
Tt labtes FEIE R Fe - ] " . o aniM
BTy
il 2 sostrvey
ot o ety
ey of he Company BE sl un 1560 il i ey B
Oxbe pepty instrumenty Ba% . - - - - . pile
Nerroorixling imterers 58 {15508 {1453 e
ol ey 0T 17241 n T &5 - ehln] po )
Totz! ebties and equy LT k2% un ME 8 - [k R T4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standard and amendments that are initially adopted for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2023 (continued)

. HKAS 1 [Amendments), "Disclosure of Accounting Policies”. The arnendrments aim 10 require entities
1o disclose their material rather than thelr significant accounting policies. The amendments define
what ks ‘matenal accounting policy Information” and explain how to identify when accounting policy
information s material, They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not
need to be disclosed. I it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting policy information.

To support this amendment, the HKICPA alss amended HKFRS Practice Statement 2 "Making Materiality
Judgements” to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of matenality to accounting policy
disclosures. The application of the amendments does not have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

= HKAS 8 (Amendments), "Definition of Accounting Estimates’ The amendments clarify how entities
should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The
distinction is Important, because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively o
future transactions and other future events, but changes in accounting policies are generally applied
retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the cumment period, The application
of the amendments does not have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

. HEAS 12 (Amendments), “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”, The amendments require entities 1o recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will
typically apply to transactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations and will
require the recognition of additional deferred tax assets and Habilities when there is any temporary
difference. The application of the amendments does not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

. HKAS 12 (Amendments), “International Tax Refoom — Pillar Two Model Rules”. The amendments provide
entities with temporary relief from accounting for deferred taxes arising from the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development's Pillar Two model rubes, The amendments also Introduce
targeted disclasure requirements to help investors understand an entity’s exposure 1o income taxes
aricing from the rules. The application of the amendments does not have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b} Amendments and interpretation issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group In 2023

Applicable for Currently
financial years relevant
Amendments/ beginning to the
Interpretation Content on/after Group
HEAS 1 [Amendments) Classification of Current or Mon-current 1 January 2024 No
Liabilities
HEAS 1 ([Amendments) Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024 Mo
HKAS 28 {2011} and Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined Yoz
HKFRS 10 {Amendments) an Irvestor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
HEFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024 Ma
HEAS 7 and HEFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangerments 1 January 2024 Mo
{Amendrments)
HE Int 5 {2020) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 lanuary 2024 Mex

Classification by the Borower
of a Termn Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
HEAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025 Mo

Further information about those amendments that are expected 1o be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKAS 28 (2011} and HKFRS 10 (Amendments), “5ale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate of Joint Venture® The amendments address an acknowledged Inconsistency between
the requirerments in HKAS 38 (2011) and those in HEFRS 10, in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the
amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business (whether
it is housed in a subsidiary or not), If the assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or
loss Is recognised by the investor anly to the extent of the other investor's interests in the assoclate or
Joint venture, The amendments are to be applied prospectively and early application is permitted. The
application of the amendments will not have a material impact on the Group's financial staterments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company ard all of its subsidiaries
far the year ended 31 December 2023

(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities {including structured entities), directly or indirectly, controlied by the Group. Contral
it achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, (o vanable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the abiliny to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee), When the Group has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevan facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: (a) the
contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investes; (b) rights anising from other contractual
of non-contractual arangements; and (c) the Group's vating rights and potential voting righits. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which contral is transferred to the Group, They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases.

If the Group loses controd over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and |kabilities
of the subsidiary, (i} the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests; and recognizes (i} the fair value of
the consideration recelved, (I} the fair value of any Investment In that former subsidiary retalned; reclassifies
the amounts previously recognised In other comprehensive income to the Income statement of retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities; recognises
any resulting differences as gain or loss in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies. are
eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of
the assets transferred, Where necessary, accounting poficies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group,

In the Company's balance sheet, the investments In subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivabie, Dividend income from subsidianes is recognised in the income statement when the
right 1o receive payment Is established,

(2) Changesin ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling Interests without change of control as transactions with
eguity owners of the Group, For purchases from non-controlling interests of equity interest, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recognised In equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recognised i equity.

When the Group ceases to have contral, any retained Interest in the entity |5 remeasured to its fair value,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in the Income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subseguent accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly dispased of the related assets or liabilities. Amounis
previcusly recognised In other comprehensive Income are reclassified to the income statement or retained

earnings, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(3) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is the entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control,
generally accompanying of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
hawe rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require. unanimous
cansent of the parties sharing. control,

Investrments in assockates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost, unless it fs classified as held for sale {or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale), The Group's investrments in associates and joint ventures include goodwill, net of
accumulated impairment loss and any related accumulated foreign currency transiation difference.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates or joint ventures |5 recognised in
the Income statement, and. its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised. in reserves.
The accumulated pest-acquisition movements are adjusted agalnst the cost of the investment, When the
Group's share of losses in an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or
joant venture, the Group does not recognise further losses unless the Group has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates or joint ventures,

Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the Investment.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's Interest in the associates or joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impalrment of the assez transferred,

If the ownership interest In an assoclate or a joint venture is reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised In other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the income statement or retained earmings, where appropriate,

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the
Management Committee, which s the chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and
assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and expenses directly assoclated with each segment are
included in‘determining operating segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation

items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measwred using the cumency of the
primary ecanomic environment in which the entity aperates (the “functional currency”), The consolidared financial
staternents are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation curmency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functionzl currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the ransactions or exchange rates at the end of the reporting perlod for items that are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the settlement of foreign currency transactions wsing the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and manetary assets and liabilities denominated in
fareign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period are recognised directly in
the income statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges or

qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at falr value through profit or loss are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated In forelgn currency classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting fram
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities.
Transiation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the incorne statement, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional curtency different from Hong Kong
dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

. assers and Hapilites are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

. income and expenses are Translated at average exchange rates; and

* all resulting exchange differences are recognised In the currency translation reserve in eguity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in forelgn entities,
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in the transiation reserve. When a foreign antity s

disposed, such exchange differences are reclassified from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value, Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets,
including recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as appropriate, All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as labilities when fair value is negative.

Certain' derlvatives embedded In financlal labilities are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closaly related to those of the host contract and thie host contract is not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income staterment.

Derivatives are categarised as held for trading and charges in their fair value are recognised immediately in the
income statement unless they are designated as hedges and are effective hedging Instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.

For derivative Instruments being designated as hedging Instrument In an effective hedge, the method of
recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitrments (fair value hedgel; or

(b} hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable future cash fiow atributable to a recognised
asset or Hability, or 2 highly probable forecast transaction (cash fiow hedge); or

(c) hedges of anet investment In a foreign operation (net investment hedges).

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well asits
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessrnent, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risks, the
hedge ratio and an evaluation.of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of hedged items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified 1o be accounted for
under hedge accounting, Hedge accounting may become: ineffective If the hedging instrument and the hedged
item lose economic relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks that dominates the fair
value change of the hedging instruments or the hedged items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as effective fair value hedges are
recognised in the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk

Whin fair value hedge accounting is applied to financial instruments carried at amortised cost, the camying values
of the hedged items are adjusted for changes in fair value thar are atrriburable to the risk being hedged with the
derivative instruments rather than carried at amertised cost, such camying value adjustment Is recognised in the
Income statement together with the changes in fair value of the hedging derivatives,

if the hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other
than derecognition, e.4. due to repayment of the hedged item, the unamoitised carying value adjustment (the
diffierence between the carrying value of the hedged item at the time of termination and the value a1 which it
would have been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item (s amortised to the income statement
over the remaining life of the hedged item by the effective interest methed. If the hedged item is derecognised,
the unamortised carrying value adjustment is recognised immediately in the income staternent.

Far fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt instruments carried at FVOCL changes in fair
value are recorded in the income statement whilst hedge accounting Is in place. When the hedge relationship
no lenger meets the critenia for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other than derecognition, the
cumulative effective hedged portion of falr value change recognised in the Income statement Is amortised by
the effective interest method back to the equity. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised cumulative
effective hedged portion of fair value change recognised in the income statement is reclassified to equity
immediately.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reportad in the balance sheet when there
it a legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intenticn to settle on a net basis, of
realise the asset and settle the Bability simultanecusly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Income and expense
{1) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised In the income statement for all financial assets camied at
amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial liabilities wsing the
effective interest method. Similar interest income and expense arising from non-derivative financial assets
and liabilities camried at fair value through profit or boss are determined using similar method, but excluding
their transaction costs:

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financlal
liability and of allocating the interest income of interest expense over the refevant period, The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument of, when appropdiate, a shoaer period to the net carying amount
of the financial asset or financial [ability. When cabculating the effective Interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering.all contractual terms of the financial instrument {e.g. prepayment options. or
incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between parties 1o the contract, and
directly atrributable origination fees and costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transacitlons where interest rate is the hedged risk, Interest Income or interest expense from
hedged instruments such as fioied rate debt securities or fixed rate subordinated notes are disclosed on a net
basis together with net interest income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest rate
SvapL

{2] MNon-interest income and expense

Incame from service is recognised when the Group fulfils its performance obligation, either aver time or at a
point in time on a basis when a custorner obtaing controd of the senvice.

Fee income from services are recognised over time: at a fixed or varizble price on a systematic basis over the
life of the agreement when the contract requires services to be provided over time such as agcount service
and credit card fees, or recognised at a point in time under transaction-based arrangements when service
has been fully provided to the custorner such as broking services and loan syndication arrangement.
Dividend income from financial asset 4 recognised when the right to freceive payment i established,

Mon-interest expences-are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they ane incurmed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Income and expense (continued)
{3) Insurance revenue and expenses

The Group recognises Insurance revenue as it satisfies its performance obligations (ie. as it provides
insurance services) during the coverage periad. In addition, investment components will not be included in
iNSUrANCE rEVENLE OF iNSUrANce Service expenses.

Directly attributable insurance acquisition cash flows will be reclassified as part of the fulfilment cash flows
{"FCFs") and will be amortised to Insurance revendue and insurance service eXpenses Over its coverage period.

The Group elected to present income or expenses from reinsurance contract held as a single amount in net
income from reinsurance contracts held,

In addition, the Group elected the other comprehensive income option for certain portfolios of insurance
contracts without direct participation features to- disaggregate insurance finance Income of expenses
between amounts incleded in the income staterment and amounts included in other comprehensive income.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets nto one of the following measurement categories at Initial recognition
as subsequently measured at fair value through profit or foss ('FVPL), amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income ("FVOC"). The dassification depends on the entity's business model for managing
its financial instruments and the coniractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the election of fair
value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carred at FVPL, all
transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

{1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception, o financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss,
including those held for trading.

A financial asset which has been acquired ar incurred principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
ar is par of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there s
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading, Derivatives are
also classified as held for rading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

A financial asset, other than those held for trading or mandatarily measured at fair value, will be designated
a5 a financial asset at FVPL, If It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, and s so
designated by the Management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly to the income
statement, and are subsequently remeasured at fair value,

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest component) are
reported in net trading gaindloss or net gaindoss on other financial instruments designated at FYPL. The
interest component is repored: as part of the interest income. Dividends on eguity instruments of this
category are also recognised in net trading gainfloss or net gain/loss on financial Instruments at FVPL when
the Group's right to receive payment is established.

{2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amartised cost if both of the fallowing conditions
are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order 1o collect contractual cash flows (“hold-to-collect® business model), and (i) the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise to cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding on specified dates. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly
attributable ransaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowances for impaioment losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation of premium
of discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income statement.
Any gains or losses are recognised in the income statement when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired,

{3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at FYOCE if both of the following conditions are
met (i) the financial assers are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contraciual cash flows and sefling, and (i} the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise 1o cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding on specified dates.

Financial assets at FW(C! are Initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs,
and: are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the financial assets are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset
is derecognised o impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised In equity
should be transferred to the Income statement. However, Interest income which Includes the amortisation
af premium or discount is calculated using the effective interest method and s recognised in the income
statement.

Far equity investments, an irevocable election can be made at initial recognition to recognise unrealised
and realised fair value gains or losses in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains or losses o the income statement even upon disposal, Dividends on equity instruments
classified as PVOCH are recognised in other operating income when the Group's right to receive payment s
established. Equity Instrurnents designated at FVOC! are not subject to impairment assessment.

The treatment of translation differences on FVYOC! securities is dealt with in Note 2.4,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following classes: trading liabilities, financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt securities and cenificates of deposit in issue,
other accounts and provisions and subordinated Babilities. All financial labilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value, and in the case of financial liabslity not at fair value through profit or loss, plus or
minus transaction cosis.

1] Trading liabilities

A financial liability Is classified as held for trading if it Is incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in
the short term. It is measured at fair value and any gains and osses from changes in fair value are recognised
in the fncome statement, with interest companent being reported as pant of the interest expenses.

{2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it is so designated at inception, A
financlal Habdllity is so designated If It meets one of the following criteriac

. eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition Inconsistency {sometimes referred
to 35 “an accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial labilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases: or

applies to a group of financal assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and its pedomance
ts evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basls to the key management;
ar

. relates to financial liabilities containing one of more embedded derivatives that significantly modify
the cash flows resulting from those fimancial liabilivies.

Financial labilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and any gains
and losses fram changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement, except for fair value changes
anising from own credit risks are recognised as other comprehensive iincome and subsequently reclassified
to the retalned earnings upon derecognition, unless such woubd create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in the income statement, then all gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

(3) Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, other accounts and provisions and
subordinated liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit In issue, other accounts and provisions and subordinated
liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair valoe through profit or loss are
camried at armortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemplion value is recognised in the income statement over the period using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
halder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a contract between the holder and the debtor,

Financial guarantee contracts ane initially recognised as financial liabifities at fair value on the date the guarantees
were given. Subsequent to [nitial recognition, the Group's fiabilities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of (i} an ECL provision as set out in Mote 2.14 and (i} the amount Initially recognised less, where appropriate,
accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the
liability relating to financial guarantese contracts are taken to the income statement.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Group is
required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. These contracts are in the scope of the ECL
requirements as set out in Mote 2,14,

The ECL provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments are reported under “Other accounts and
provisions® in the financial statements.

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subseguently measured at FVPL, securities measured at FVOCI and
amortised cost are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans
and advances and other financial assets are recognised when cash is advanced to the counterparties. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Group has transfierred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group either continues o recognise
the transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if contral remains or derecognise it if
there is no retained control If the financial instrument measured at amortised cost or FVOCH is renegotiated or
modified with substantially different terms, the ariginal financial instrurment should be derecognised and then a
new firancial instrument should be recognised at fair value. Otherwise, the difference is adjusted 10 the criginal
carrying value and accounted for In the Income statement.

Trading liabilities, financial llabilities designated at FVPL and debt securities and certificates of deposit in Issue are
recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not designated at FWPL are recognised when money is received
from customers, other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised
from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. IF the Group purchases its own debt, it s removed from the balance sheet, and the difference between
the carnying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is included in the Income statement, except the own
credit risk component for those designated at FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments (continued)

Securities amd bills sold tor 2 counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a pre-determined price on a
specified future date under a repurchase agreement are referred 1o as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a
counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at.a pre-determined price on a specified future date
under a resale agreement are referred to 85 reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recognised as deposits and balances from banks and other financial
institutions, or designated as financial labilities measured at FVPL at the actual amount of cash received from the
caunterparty which is generally the fair value of these financial liabilities at initial recognition. Financial assets
given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as investrment in securities
of financial assers at FYPL Reverse repos or securities borrowings with a “hold-to-collect” business model and
contractual cash flow of solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are initialky
recognised as cash and balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions, or reverse repos or
securities borrowing designated as financial assets measured at FVPL are measured at the actual amount of cash
paid to the counterparty which is generally the fair value of these financial assets at initial recognition. Financlal
assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investrment properties, precious metals and certain financial instruments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid 1o transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market paricipants in s principal market or the most
advaniageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liabdlity is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of the fair value of financial
instrurments, whene appropriate; includes using on the residual of the net offsetting risk position of portfolios of
financial assets and financial liabilities in cases the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities
according to thelr net market risk exposures. Despite the Group measures the falr value of these groups of financial
Instruments on a net basks, the underlying financlal assets and financial liabilities are separately presented in the
financial statemants unlbess the offsetting criteria stated in Mate 2.6 are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 3 market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to anather market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

if the market for assets or llabilities s not active, the Group uses valuation techniques, including the use of recent
arm's length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques
commanly used by market participants, that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, macimising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unocbservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Precious metals

Frecious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are initially recognised and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are included in net
trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") on the following items:

. financial assets measurad at amortised cost;
. debt securities measured at FVOCE and
. loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are not measured at FYPL.

Financial assets measured at FYPL and equity securities designated at FVOCH (non=recycling) are ot subject 1o the
ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (le. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receivel.

Far undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding, expected cash shortfalls are measured as
the difference between (i) the contractual cash flows that would be due to the Group if the holder/beneficiary of
the loan commitment/financial guarantee draws down/claims on the loan/Minancial guarantee -and (i) the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn downdTinancial guarantee is claimed,

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of discounting is material, The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period owver which the Group is exposed to
credit risk. Where the financial instrument such a& révalving credit facilities includes both a drawn and undrawn
commitment, ECL is measured over the pericd that the Group remains exposed to credit risk that is not mitigated
by management actions in respect of credit risk.

I measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable information that ks avallable. This
includes information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

B 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events within 12 menths
after the reporting date; of

- lifetime ECLs: thase are [osses that are expected to result from all possible default events over the sxpected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1 when those financial
instruments are initially recognised; and to recognise lifetime expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there have
been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. Lifetime expected cregit losses will be recognised
for credit-impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if the future cash flows of that financial instruments are
adversely affected by one or more events and interest Income will then be accrued net of the impalrment amount
of the respective Stage 3 financial assets.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of defauit ococurring on the financial instrument assecced at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.

I particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

. failure to make payments of principal or interest 30 days after their contractually due dates;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating {if
available);

. an actual ar expected significant detericration in the operating results of the debtor; and

. existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debior's ability 1o meet its abligation ta the Group.

For boan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs is
considered to be the date that the Group becomes a party to the lrevocable commitment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment or a financial
guarantee, the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the lcans and advances ta which the
joan commitment/financial guarantes relates.

Depending on the nature of the financlal instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individua! basis or a collective basis. When the assessment |s performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

Financial instruments are considered to be in default when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows accurred such as past due for more than 90 days or the debtor is unlikely 10 pay in
full for the credit obligations to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The Group considers that a financial instrument is credit-impaired when there is obsenvable data about:

- significant financial difficulty incurred by the debtor;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in principal or interest payment;

= for economic or legal reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulty, the Group has granted to the debtar
a concession that it would not otherwise consider;

- probable that the debtor will become bankrupt or undergo other financial reorganisation;
- the purchase of origination of a financial asset at & deep discount that reflects the Incurred credit lasses; ar

- other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease In the estimated future cash flows from
such advances.

The Group considers on an Individual basis both guantitative and qualitative Information that ks reasonable and
supportable, Including historical experience and forward-looking information that s avallable without undue cost
or effort.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument's credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount 5 recognised as an impalrmment galn or loss In the incame statement.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for 2ll relevant financial instruments with a comesponding
adjustment to thelr carmying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt securities
that are measured at FVOC, for which the loss allowance is recorded in the fair value reserve,

Interest incame recognised in accardance with Note 2.7 is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset s credit-impaired (Stage 3), in which case Interest income Is calculated
based on the amortised cost {Le. the gross camying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. The
determination of credit-impaired financial asset is further explained in Note 4.1,

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it Is written off against the gross carying amount of the financial asset
and the related allowance for impairment losses. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount aof the loss has been determined. The assets written off are stll sulbject 1o
enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount ef impaliment
losses in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and non-financial
assets

Assers are reviewed for impairment whenever events o changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse changes in
the technological, market, economic or legal envircnment in which the assets operate or whether there has been a
significant or prolonged decling in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been belaw its original cost,

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment. -assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating umits). Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporing date.

In the Company's balance sheet, impalrment testing of investments In subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of that entity concerned in the pericd the dividend is declared or if the carrving amount of that entity
in the Company’s balance sheet exceads the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on which properties are situated),
that are held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the
compantes In the Group, are classified as invesiment properties. Properties leased out within group companiles are
classified as investment properties in individual companies” financial statements and as premises in consolidated
financial statements.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value,

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carmying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
work in progress ftem ks measured at falr value, All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment propery
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this

item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss in the same way as a
revaluation of premises under HEAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment” as set out in Mote 217,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties (including right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on which properties are situated)
are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated at fair value based on periodic, at least annually,
valuations by external independent valuers [ess any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carmying amount
of the asset and the net amount |s restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the
diractors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the premises revaluation
resenve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that offser previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive Income; all other decreases
are expensed in the Income statement, Any subsequent increases are credited 1o the income statement up to the
amount previously debited, and then to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant
portion of the premises revaluation retense realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transfered
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold land (see Note 2.18) are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directiy
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
anly when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will fow to the Group and the
cost of the iterm can be meatured reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment untl it begins to generate
economic benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according 1o the measurement basis of its respective
assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred or provided for.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost ar revalued amount of such assets
owver their estimated useful lives as follows:

. Properties COwer the life of government land leases
. Plant and equipment 21015 years
(] Right-of-use assets Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lves of assets are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, as at the end of each reporting period.,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and extemal sources of information are considered to determing
whiether there is any indication that properties, plant and equipment are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
assel 1o s recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement except where the
asset Is carried at valuation and the impairment foss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in
which case it Is treated as a decrease in the revaluation surplus, The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss 1s reversed through the premises revaluation reserve
or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals-are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified 1o
the income statement.

218 Leases

At Inception of 8 contract, the Group assesses whether the contract s, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, 3 lease If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Controd is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the econamic benefits from that use over the contract period.

(1) Asalesses

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
shori-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group
enters Imto a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether 1o recognise the lease as a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leazes which are not recognised as right-of-uge assels and lease liabilities are recognised as an expense ona
systematic basks over the lease term.

The lease fliability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term, after taking inte account payments to be made in the optional period if the extension option Is
reasgnably certain to be exercised, discounted wsing the interest rate Implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o
be exarcised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a tease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the optian to terminate.

After initial recognition, interest expense |s calculated using a constant periodic rate of interest. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not Included in the measurement of the lease
liabllity and hence are charged to the Income statement in the accounting peried In which they are Incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)
{1) As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the inltial amount of the lease
liabifity plus amy lease payments made at or befare the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable. the cost of the right-of-use assets aleo includes an estimate of costs 1o dismantle
and remove. the underlying asset or o restore the undetlying asset or the site on which it is located, then
discounted to its present value, and less any lease incentives received.

Payments associated with shor-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis s an expense in the income statement.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost bess accumulated depeeciation and impairment
lasses (spe Mote 2.17), and adjusted when the lease liabilites are remeasured, except for the Tollowing types
of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with Note 2.16; and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and bulldings that do mot meet the definition of
investment property and where the Group is the registered owner of the leasehald interest are carried
at revalued amaunt in accordance with Nate 217,

The leaze Hability is remeasured when there 5 3 change In future lease payments ansing from a change
in an Index or a rate used to determine those payments, of there i a change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is 3 change of lease terms,
of there Is a change arising from the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain 1o
exercise a purchase, extensian or termination option. When the lease liability ks remeasured in this way, a
caorresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the
Income statement If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced 1o zero.

The Group presents right-af-use assets that do not meet the definition of Investrnent property In "Properties,
plant and equipment®and presents lease liabilities in "Other accounts and provisions”
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Leases (continued)
(2) Asa lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance ease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental 1o the ownership of an underlying asset 1o the lessea. If this is not the case, the lpase s classified
a5 an operating lease,

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
cantract to each component on a relative stand-alene selling price basis, The rental Income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

2.19 Insurance and Investment contracts
(1) Classification of contracts

The Group issues insurance contracts which are contracts that transfer significant insurance risk and may also
transfer financial risk. As a general guideling, the Group defines as significant insurance risk the possibiity
of having to pay benefits on the eccurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% mode than the benefit
payable H the insured event did not occur and if there is a scenario that has commercial substance in which
the issuer has a possibility of a loss on a present value basis.

The Group also ssues certain insurance contracts that are substantially invesiment-related service contracts
where the return on the underlying items Is shared with policyholders. Underlying items comprise specified
portfalics of investment assets that determine amounts payable to policyholders.

Investment contracts are thase contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk. Due to
the contractual discretion af the Group aver the investment retuin 1o the policyholders, these invastrment
contracts contain a discretionary participation feature (DPF’). Investment contracts with DPF are accounted
far using the same accounting policies as those applied for insurance contracts.

{2) Lewel of aggregation

Insurance contracts subject to similar risks and managed together are grouped as a portfolio of insurance
contracts. Each portfolia is further divided into groups of contracts mainly based an profitability, extent of
ioss or possibility of becoming onerous contract subsequent to initial recognition. insurance contracts issued
more than one year apart should not be included in the same group. The unit of account for the recognition
and measurement of Insurance contracts [s each individual group of contracts.

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023 161

305/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Insurance and investment contracts (continued)
{3) Initial recognition - Groups of contracts measured under the GMM and the VFA

Under the GMM and the VFA, the Group measures groups of Insurance contracts based on certain FCFs
and contractual service margin ("C5SM") on initial recognition. FCFs include the estimates of present value of
future cash flows and risk adjustrnent for non-financial risk

- The estimates of present value of future cash flows represent explicit, unbiased and probability-weighied
estimates (l.e. expected value) of the present value of the net future cash flows that will arise as the
Group fulfils insurance contracts.

- Risk adjustment for non-financial risk is applied to the estimates of present value of future cash flows
and reflects the compensation the Group requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and
tirnireg of the cash Nows fram non-financal gk as the Group fulfils insurance contracts,

- C5M, which represents the unearned profits that the Group will recognise as it provides insurance
contract services in the future, is a component of insurance contract liabilities and will be amortised
and recognised as insurance revenue over the remaining coverage period based on coverage units as
the services are provided,

On initial recognition, if the sum of cash flows related to the group of insurance contracts results in a net
cash outflow, then the group of contracts is onerous. The amount of the net cash outflow s recognised in
the Income staternent and a loss component of the liability for remaining coverage (LRCT) 5 established
upan initial recognition.

(4] Subsequent measurement - Groups of contracts measured under the GMM and the VFA

At each of the subsequent reporting dates, the carrying amount of a group of Insurance contracts issued
is the sum of (i} the LRC, comprising the FCFs related to future service and the CSM of that group: and (i}
the [ability for incurred claims ("LICT), comprizing the FCFs related to past service allocated to the group of
insurance contracts.

Subsequent changes in the FCFs are accounted for differently under the GMM and the YFA. Changes in the
amount of the Group's share of the fair value of the underlying items and changes in the effect of the time
value of money and financial risks including the effect of options and guarantees embedded in the insurance
contracts would adjust the CSM under the VEA, whereas such changes would recognise in the Income
statement under the GMM. In addition, changes in the obligation 1o pay the policyholder the amount
equal to the fair value of the underlying items do not adjust the C58 but directly recognise In the income
statement under the VA,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Insurance and investment contracts (continued)
(4] Subsequent measurement - Groups of contracts measured under the GMM and the VFA (continued)

A group of contracts that has a C5M on Initial recognition can become onerous in subsequent periods. The
excess of the carrying amount of the CSM:is the loss companent of the LRC and is recagnised in the income
staterment. Subsequent decreases in FCFs anising from changes in estimates of expected cash flows relating
to future service and, for contracts with direct participation features, any subsequent inoreases in the amount
of the entity’s share of fair value of the underlying items are allocated solely to the loss component, until it is
reduced to zero. After the loss component has reached zero, a C5M Is created for the excess of the decrease
over the amount allocated.

{5) Initial recognition and subsequent measurement - Groups of contracts measured under the PAA

On initial recognition, the Group measures the LRC at the amount of premiums received, less any acquisition
cash flows paid and any amounts arsing from the derecognition of the insurance acquisition cash fiows asset
and the derecognition of any other relevant pre-recognition cash flows. At each of the subsequent reparting
dates, the LRC is: (i} Increased for premiums received in the period; (i} decreased for insurance acquisition
cazh flows paid in the period; (ii} decreased far the amounts of expected premium receipls recognised as
insurance revenue for the services provided in the period; and (iv) increased for the amartisation of insurance
acquisition cash flows in the pericd recognised as INSUraNce SErvice ExXpenses.

If facts and circumstances indicate that a group of insurance contracts measured under the PAA is onerous
on initial recognition or becomes onerous subsequently, the Group Increases the carrying amount of the LRC
1o the amounts of the FCFs determined under the GMM with the amount of such an increase recognised in
Insurance service expendes, and a loss companent is established for the amount of the lods recognlsed,

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with
original maturity less than three months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and
ather financial nstituticns, short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.
2.21 Provisions

Provisians are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits
{1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either recognised ORSD schemes
or MPF schemes that ane available to the Group's emplovees, Contributions to the schemes by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and
in accordance with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged to
the income statement as Incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to the schemes.
Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave the ORS0 scheme priar
to the full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level
of contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORS0 schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue 1o employees. A
provision Is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected
to be paid as a result of services rendered by emplayees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leave are non-accumulating; they
lapse if the current period's entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leave, they do not
entitie employees 1o a cash payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.

[3) Boenus plans

The expected cost of bonus peyments is recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employess and a reliable estimate of the
cbligation can be made, Liabilitles for bonus plans that are expected to be settled longer than twelve
months will be discounted if the amounts are significant.

223 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprise curent and deferred tax. Tax Is recognised In the Income statement, except
to the extent that it relates 1o items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits; based on the applicable 1ax law enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the
reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Cormpany and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income, s recognised as a current Income tax expense in the period in which profits arfse,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.23 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liabiliny method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consalidated financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting pericd and are expected (o apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax Hability Is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset Impairment provisions, depreciation of premises and
equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including securities at FVOCT and premises. However, the deferred
incarme tax is not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction ather than a
business combination that at the time of the ransaction affects neither accounting mor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise 1o equal taxable and deductible temparary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided In full on all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
on deductible tempaorary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temparary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred income tax relating to fair
value remeasurement of secunties at FVOCH and revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other
comprehensive Income, In which case the deferred income tax s also credited or charged to other comprehensive
Income and Is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the realisation of the defered gain
and loss,

Deferred tax lability of deferred tax asset arising from an investment property is deteimined based on the
presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will be recovered through sale with the
relevant tax rate applied.

2.24 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost
of the refated outstanding loans on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together with
the related impalrment allowances are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as ‘non-current assets held for
sale” included in "Other assets”
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Fiduciary activities

The Group commaonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its holding or managing assets
on behall of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are
excluded from these financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability Is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will enly be
confirmed by the occurence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recegnised because
it Is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured refiably,

A contingent liabllity ks not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the netes to the financial statements.
When a change In the probability of an outflow occurs so that cutfiow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent assel is a possible asset that arses from past ovents and whose existence will anly be confirmed by
the occurence of non-occurrence of one or mode uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the nates to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset,

2.27 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party Is considered to be related to the Group IF that party
(I} controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the Group: (i) ks a member of the same financial
reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and feliow subsidiaries; {iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the
Group OF parent repodting group; (iv) s a key management personnel of the Group or parents; (v) is subject to
comman control with the Groups (vi) is an entity in which a person identified in () controls; and (vil) provides key
management personnel services to the Group or its parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The Graup makes sstimates and assumptions that affect the carying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next
reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors; including expectations of future events -that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas
susceptible to changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
are set out below, The effects of changes to either the key assumptions or other estimation uncertainties are presented
below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results may require material adjusiments 1o the estimates
referred to below.

3.1 Impairment losses on advances to customers

The Group reviews its credit portfolios to assess impairment al least on a quarterly basis. Under HKFRS 9, the
measurement of impairment losses: across all categories of financial asset requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impalrment
lpsses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes of which can result in different levels of allowances,

The Growp’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models. The choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies involves a series of assumptions. ECL models for stage 1 and stage 2 exposures are developed
by leveraging on the parameters implemented under Note 4.1, where feasible and available. Elements of the ECL
models that are conskdered accounting judgements and estimates include:

. The Group's Internal credit rating models, which assign Probability of Defaults to the individual ratings;

. The Group's significant credit deterioration criteria (Including internal credit rating downgrade, days past due,
drop in Mark-to-Market and qualitative assessment) for assessing whether the financial assets’ impaiment
allowances should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis;

. The segrmentation of financial assets according to credit risk characteristics {portfolies including Sovereign,
Bank, Corporates, Retaill Small Medium-sized Enterprise, Residential Mortgage Loan and Credit Card) when
their ECLs are assessed on a collective basis;

. Development of ECL models, including: the determination of macroeconomic factor forecasts (including
Gross Domestic Product growth, Consumer Price Index, Property Price Index and Unempiloyment Rate) and
the effect on Probability of Defaults, Loss Given Defaults and Exposure at Defauls; and

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios (including four independent scenarios ie. good,
baseline, bad and alternative) and their probability weightings.
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3. Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

3.1 Impairment losses on advances to customers (continued)

In respect of credit-impaired exposures, expected credit losses are measured on an individual basis by estimating
the future recoverable cash flows. Facrors affecting this estimate include, among other things, the granularity of
financial information related to specific borowers and their guarantors, the availability of meaningful information
of competitors and the relevance of sector trends to the future performance of specific borrowers and cash flows
from the sale of collateral.

It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

Carrying amounis of advances 1o customers as at 31 December 2023 are shown in Note 25,

3.2 Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are fotl quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques used include the use of recent arm's length transactions, discounted cash flows
analysis and models with budlt-in functions avaliable in externally acquired financial analysis or risk management
systemns widely used by the Industry such as option pricing models, and other commonly used market pricing
models, To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In addition, valuation adjustments may be
adopred If factors such as credit risk are not considered In the valuation models. Management |udgement
and estimates are required for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modelling
techniques.

The Group assesses assumptbons and estimates used in valuation technigues including review of valuation madel
assumptions and characteristics, changes to model assumptions, the gquality of market data, whether markets are
active or inactive, other fair value adjustments not specifically captured by models and consistency of application
of technigues between reparting periods as part.of its mormal review and approval processes, Valuation technigues
are validated and periodically reviewed and, where appropriate, have been updated to reflect market conditions at
the financial reporting date. Further details will be discussed Tn Note 5.

3.3 Insurance contract liabilities

(a) Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising from long term insurance contracts
Assumptions including marality and morbidity rates, lapse rates and expenses are used when estmating
future cash flows. The present value of future cash flows is estimated using deterministic scenanos, except
where stochastic modelling is used to measure options and guarantees empedded in the insurance
contracts. The assumptions used in the deterministic scenarios are derived 10 approximate the probability-
weighted mean of a full range of scenarios.

168 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

312/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

3.3 Insurance contract liabilities (continued)
(b} Determining coverage units

The Group uses the amount that indicates the sum which policyholders are able to validly claim, such as
the contractual cover in each perod or number of policies with consideration of policy size subject 1o
certaln scenarlos as the basis for the quantity of benefits for all insurance coverages, Investment-return and
investment-related services.

The total number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of service provided by the contracts in the
groaup over the expected coversge perod, The coverage units are determined at the end of each reporing
period prospectively by considering the following items:

. the quantity of benefits provided by contracts in the group:
. the expected coverage pericd of contracts in the group; and

. the likelihood of Insured events occurring, only ta the extent that they affect the expected coverage
period of contracts in the group,

In performing the above determination, management applied judgement that might impact the C5M
careying values and amounts of the C5M allecation recognised in the income statement for the period.

[e) Discount rates

Life Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a risk-free rate,
plus an iliquidity premium where applicable. Risk free rates are determined by reference to relevant market
yield information. The llliquidity premium is based on market observable liquidity premiums In financial
assets, adjusted to reflect the illiquidity characteristics of the liability cash flows.

The yield curves used to discount expected future cash flows denominated in USD range from 3.79% 1o
5.62% as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 3.81% to 5.87%), 2.07% to 4.03% as at 31 December 2023 (2022; 209%
1o 4.11%) for expected future cash flows denomirated In RMB, and 3.27% 1o 5.20% as a1 31 December 2023
(2022: 3.78% 10 6.11%) for expected future cash flows denominated in HKD.

{d) Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk represents the compensation that the Group requires for bearing
the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts and covers
Insuramce risk, lapse risk and expense risk. The Group has estimated the risk adjustment using confidence
level technigue.

The risk adjustment for [ife insurance and reinsurance contracts cofrespands to 75% confidence level (2022:
73%6).
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3. Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

3.4 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and unused tax credits are recognised and the determination of the
amount to be recognised requires significant management judgement. Deferred tax asset on unused tax losses
are recognised to the extent that it Is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upan the likety timing and level of future taxable profits. For deferred (ax assets on unused tax credits, judgement
is required 10 determine the amount of deferred tax assets thar can be recognised, based upon the estimation of
available tax credits and the pessibility to recover such deferred tax assets recognised.

3.5 Determination of lease terms of leases

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable tesm of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certaln 10 be exercised, or any perlods covensd by an oplion 1o
terminate the bease, if It is reasonably certaln not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases, to renew the leasas for additional terms of three to nine years.
The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option on the lease
commencement date. During the evaluation, the Group considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise the renewal option, After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease rerm
if there Is a significant event or change in circumstances that Is within its control and affects its abllity to exercise
{or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g. & change in business strategy).

Carrying amounts of night-of-use assets as at 31 December 2023 are shown in Note 29,
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4. Financial risk management

The Group 15 exposed 1o financial risks as a result of engaging in a varkety of business activities, The principal firancial
risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency rick and (nterest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This nate summarises the
Group's exposures 1o these risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policles and processes
for managing and the methods used to measure these risks,

Financial risk management framework

The Group's risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business processes and to ensure
various risks are properly managed and confrofled In the course of conducting business, The Group has a robust risk
management arganisational structure with 3 comprehensive set of policies and procedures ta identify, measure, manitor
and control vardous risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and busingss strategies. Various groups of risk takers assume their respective
respansibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directers, representing the interests of sharehalders, is the highest decision-making authority of the Group
and has the ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the
primary responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies, risk appetite and risk culture and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implerment these strategies.

The RMC, a standing committee established by the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group's
comprehensive risk and various types of risks, approving Level | risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation, and approving significant or high risk exposures or transactions, The Audit Commitiee assists the Board
in fulfilling its role in overseeing the intemal control system,

The senior management is responsible for the implementation of comprehensive risk management and various types of
risk management. The Chief Executive ("CE") i responsible for managing the Group's comprehensive and various types of
risks, and approving material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the Board of Directors. The
Deputy Chief Executives ("DCEsT) assist the CE in fulfilling his responsibllities on the day-to-day management of various
types of risk, and are responsible for approving material risk exposures or transactions within their autharities delegated
by the CE. The Chief Risk Officer (*CRO") assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities on day-to-day management of
variows types of risks and internal contral; respoensible for initiating new risk management strategies, projects and
rmeasures in response to regulatory changes that will enable the Group 1o better monitor and manage any risks that
may arise from time to time from new businesses, products and changes in the operating environment and responsible
for reviewing material risk exposures r transactions within the delegared authority. In accordance with the principle
of setting the hierarchy of risk management policies approved by the Board, senior management is responsible for
approving the detailed risk management policies of their areas.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk management framework (continued)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of
deferce while risk management units, which are independent from the business units, are responsibbe for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibility for drafting, reviewing
and updating various risk management podicies and procedures.

The Group's principal banking subsidiaries are subjected 1o risk management policies that are consistent with those
of the Group. Moreover; the Group's non-banking subskdiaries, such as BOC Life, are subject to the Group’s risk
management reguirements. These subsidiaries are required to formulate their respective risk management palicies based
on the characteristics of their own industries, perform daily risk management responsibilities and report to BOCHK on a
regular basis. Risk management units of BOCHK monitor the risk management status of these subsidiaries.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including the establishment of an crganisation structuse
that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with policles, procedures and limits. Proper
reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
seqgregation of duties thraughaut the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control envirenment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectivenass of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a comprehensive product development
and risk monitoring system where roles and responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due
diligence processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management, respective product management
units are responsible for formulating business and product development plans, and proceeding to specific product
developmant activitles. The depanment of strategic development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group's
overall strategies. Departments that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc, are
accountable for review of the risk assessment resules.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work closely with relevant risk evaluating
departments ta identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent
review on the risk assessment results and the comesponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched
upon completion of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating depariments,

A prudent approach Is adopted in offering treasury products to our clients. All new treasury products require approval
from a dedicated committee before launching.

172 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

316/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk & the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to meet its contractual
obtigations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally fram lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management poficies and procedures, and
appropriate credit risk Imits 1o manage and controd credit risk that may arise, These policies, procedures and credit
risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated (o cope with changes in market conditions and business strategles.

The Group's organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance
with policies, procedures and limits.

The Chief Credit Officer, who reports directly to the CRO, takes charge of credit risk management and is also
responsible for the contred of credit nisk exposures of subsidiaries in line with the credit risk management principles
and requirements sel by the Group, Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence in risk management. The Risk Management
Department ("RMD), which is independent from the business units, is responsible for the day-to-day management
of credit risks and provides an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring, menitoring and
contraliimg credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit
fisk management policles and procedures, 1 is also responsibie for the design, development and maintenance of
the Group's internal rating system and. ensures the system complies with the relevant regulatory requirements.
Back offices are responsible for credit administration; providing operations support and supervision on the
impementation of prerequisite terms and conditions of credit facilities.

I accordance with the Group's operating principie, the Group’s principal subsidiaries have to formulate their own
credit risk policies that are consistent with those of the Group's core principle. These subsidiaries are required 1o
submit their risk management reports to the Group's Management on a regular basls.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE The CE can further delegate to the
subordinates within his limit authorised by the Board of Directors, The Group sets the limits of credit approval

authority according 1o the credit business nature, rating, the evel of rransaction risk, and the extent of the credit
EXPOSUIE,
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revisiting its credit strategies
and conducting rigoraus réviews on the concemed portfolios,

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk associated with the
customer, counterparty or transaction. The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit
and other functions, Is responsible for making an independent assessment of material credit applications which
require the approval of DCEs or above, Credit applications for non-retail exposures are independently reviewsd
and objectively assessed by risk management units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility
ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios to support credit approval. Retall intemal
rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retall credit wransactions, including small business loans
under retall exposures, residential morigage loans, personal loans and credit cards, etc. Loan grades, obligor and
facility ratings as well a5 loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group also uses Ioan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to suppart credit monitoring,
reporting and analysis of credit risk information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and closer
maonitoning are required for higher-risk customers. For retail exposirnes, monthly updated internal ratings and loss
estimates are used for credit manitoning on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for obligors
being identified under high-risk pools,

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard & Poor's external credit ratings.
The structure of internal master rating scale ks in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules
under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The RMD provides regular credit management information repons and ad hoc reports to the Management
Committee {"MC), the RMC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continwous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, cuslomer or counterparty.
The Group manitors changes to every counterparties credit risk, quality of the credit portfolic and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group's Management.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
Advances (continued)

The Group adepts loan grading criteria which divide credit assets into five categaories with reference to the HEMA's
guldelines, as below;

*Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment obligations and full repayment of
interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention® represents loans where the borrower is expernencing difficulties which may threaten the Group's
recoverability of the loan principal and interest. Ultimate loss is not expecied at this stage but could occur If
adverse conditions persist.

*Substandard” represents loans where the borower displays a definable weakness that is likely to jecpardise
fepayment.

*Doubtful® represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects 1o sustain a loss of
principal and/or Interest, taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options (such as the realisation of
collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or In part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and
has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery may include (i) ceasing enforcement activities and (i) where the Group's recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering In full. The
Group may write off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity,

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments In debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the investment, For derivatives,
the Group sets customer |imits to manage the credit risk invalved and follows the same approval and control
processes as applied for sdvances. On-going monitaring and stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from forelgn exchange transactions with counterparties and also from derivative
tramsactions in any situation where a payment In cash, securities of equities is made in the expectation of a

comesponding recelpt In cash, securities or equities, Dally settlement limits are established for each counterparty
or customer to cover all settlement risks arising from the Group's market transactions on any single day.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Financial instruments are considered to be in default when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows occurmed such as past due for mare than 90 days or the borrower s unlikely to pay
i full for the cradit obligations to the Group.

Crediv-impaired financial instruments are classified as Stage 3 and lifetime expected credit losses will be
recognised. Evidence that a financial instrument is credi-impaired include observable data about the following
events:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borower;
- Abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest payment;

-~ For economic or contractual reasons related to the bomower's financial difficulty, the Group has granted to
the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise consider;

- Probable that the bomrower will becormse bankrupt or undergo other financial recrganization;
= The purchase or origination of a financial asset at 2 deep discount that reflects the incurmed credit losses; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
such financial Instruments.

Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model (s introduced. in compliance with HKFRS 9, it requites the
recognition of ECL for financlal instrument held at amartised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
incame, Under HKFRS 3, ECL is assessed in three stages and the financial assets, loan commitments and financial
guarantees are classified In one of the three stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrurments are mot credit-impaired during ongination and their credit sk has not
increased significantly since originaticn, and the impairment allowance Is measured at an amount up 10 12-month

ECL

Stage X if the financial Instruments are not credit-impaired during onigination but their credit risk has increased
significantly since origination, and the impairment allowance is measured at an amount equal to the ifetime ECL;

Stage 3; if the financial instruments are credit-impaired and their future cash flows of that financial Instruments are
adversely affected by one or more events, and the impairment allowance (s also measured at an amount equal 1o
the lifetime ECL.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
Expected Credit Loss ["ECL") Methodology [continued)

The Group has established the significant credit deterioration criteria framework to determine the stage of the
financial instrument. The framework incorparates both quantitative and qualitative assessment, taking into account
of factors such as number of days past due, change in [RB rating, low eredit rick threshold and the watchlise.

The customer credit ratings in the internal model are classified into 27 grades. The lowest (27th) credit grading
equates 1o defaulted customers while the others are assigned to non-defaulited customers. The quantitative and
qualitative criteria considered in determining significant credit deterioration include;

Quantitative criteria

- Failure to make payments of principal or interest 30 days after the contractual due dates;

- Atthe reporting date, the credit risk is deemed to increase significantly when the remaining lifetime PD rises
by more than a certain range from initial recognition, and reflected as a drop in customer’s credit rating by
carresponding level according to the different PO at initial recognition. In majority cases, there is a significant
Increase in credit risk when the customer's credit rating drops by 5 grades.

Qualitative criteria

- Significant adverse change in debtor’s operations or financial status;

= Customers with sign of credit deterioration are put into watchlist for staging review.

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under Basel | [RE madels and internal models where feasible

and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios without models, all other reasonable and supportable information

such as historical information, relevant loss experience or proxies are utilised. The measurement of ECL is the

product of the financial instrument's probability of default ('PD7), loss given default ("LGD7) and exposure at default
["EAD") discounted at the effective interest rate to the repodting date,
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
Expected Credit Loss ["ECL") Methodology [continued)

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probabllity-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible autcomes, the time wvalue of money and reasonable and supportable information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The Group adopts four econamic scenarios in
the ECL measurement, including "Good’, "Baseline’, "Bad” and “Alternative” scenarios, 1o meet the requirements
of HKFRS 9. The “Baseline” scenario represents a most lkely outcome, ‘Good” and “Bad” scenarios represent the
estimated deviations of the "Baseline” scenaric, which are either more optimistic or more pessimistic as compared
with “Baseline” scenario. The “Alternative” scenario represents a more pessimistic scenario than the *Bad” scenario,
to reflect the Management's view on severe downside risks of the idiosyncratic evenis that may have severe impact
of the performance and assat quality of the credit portfolio, when the Management considers the risk cannot be
fully reflected In the three scenarios {|.e. “Good’, "Baseline” and “Bad” scenarlos) derived from forecasts and historical
data,

The “Baseline® and “Alternative® scenarios are prepared by the Group’s Economics & Strategic Flanning Department.
Historical data, ecenomic trend, external econaomic forecast from governmental and non-governmental
organisation, etc. are also used as reference benchmarks o ensure the “Baseline” scenarlo is reasonable and
supportable. For the “Good"® and "Bad” scenarios, the Group makes reference to the historical macroeconomics
data for estimating the deviations. The “Altermative® scenario reflects the Management’s review of the tail of the
economic distribution, incorporating a number of risk events, including further escalation of geopolitical tensions
coupled with other uncertainties, worsening of global supply chains, rising global inflation rate, the monetan
tightening policy of Central Banks and interest rate hikes which eventually pose a significant pressure on economy.

The core macroeconomic facters in the major countriessregions where the Group operates such as GDP growth,
and other key macroeconomic factors such as Consumer Price Index, Property Price Index and Linemployment
Rate are applied in the economic scenarios. These macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the
Graup's ECL in statistical analysis and business epinion.

The probability weight assigned for each scenario reflects the Group's view for the economic environment,
following the Group's prudent and consistent credit strategy of ensuning the adequacy of impairment allowance.
A higher probability weight s assigned 1o the “Baseline” scenario to reflect the most Hkely outcome and a lower
probability weight is assigned to the *Good’, "Bad” and “Alternative® scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes. As
of December 2023, the probability weight of the Group's "Baseline® scenario is higher than the sum of probability
weight of “Good’, "Bad” and “Alternative” scenarios,
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
Expected Credit Loss ["ECL") Methodology (continued)

The core macroeconomic factor used by the Group to assess ECL:

Good Baseline Bad Alternative

Macroeconomic Factor Scenario Scenario Scenario Scenario

2024 Hong Karg GOP Growth 6.50% 3.00% -0.50% 5.50%

The calculation of ECL is affected by macreeconomic factors and econcmic scenarios. In principle, an increase
in ECL would be resulted IF more pessimistic macroeconomic factors are applied in ECL assessment or a higher
probabllity welght [s assigned to the "Bad” scenarlo. The Group reviews the macroeconomic factors used in the
ECL model and the probability weight of economic scenarios an a quarterly basis according to the established
mechanisrm.

AMC is respensible for approving ECL methodology and the Management is responsible for the ECL model
implementation. Credit Risk Management is responsitde for the maintenance of ECL methodology including
models review and parameters update on a regular basis. Independent Model Validation Team is responsible for
the annual validation of ECL models. If there is any change in ECL methodology, the Group will follow the proper
approval process.

As at 31 December 2023, the ECL will be increased by 1.21% (2022; 1.67%) if 5% of the probability weight is shifted
from “Baseline® scenario 1o “Bad” scenaric: and will be decreased by 0.59% {2002 0.83%) if 5% of the probabHity
weighi ks shifted from “Baseline” scenario to "Good” scenario,

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented In the credit risk management podicles and
procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of collateral, lcan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, ete. The collateral 15 revalied on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with
the type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism o update the value of its main type of collateral, property collateral inclugding the use of public indices
on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with the Group as the primary beneficiary, In the personal sector, the main
types of collateral are real estate, cash depasits and securities. In the commercial and Industrial sector, the types of
collateral include real estate, securities, cash depaosits, vessels, aircraft, ete.

Far Isans guarantesd by a third pamy, the Group will aszess the guarantor's financial condition, credit history and
abulity to meet obligations.

As at 31 Decernber 2023, the falr value of collateral held by the Group that was permitted to sell or re-pledge in
the absence of default by the borower amounted to HK327,532 millicn (2023; HKS23,999 million). The fair value
of the collateral that the Group had sold or re-pledged, has an obligation to return, amounted to HES703 million
(2022 Nil); These transactions are conducted under terms that are wsual and customary 1o reverse repurchase and
securithes borrowlng agreements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
[A) Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group without taking into
accaunt any collateral held of other credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets. the maximum
exposure 1o credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay If the guarantees are called
upan. For loan commitment and ather credit related Habilities, the maximum exposure 1o credit nisk s the
full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial effect to the different
classes of the Group's financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be [ow risk due to the nature of the counterparties, Collateral is
generally not sought on these assers,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities
Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Assoclation, Inc. (TI5DA Master
Agreement” is the preferred agreement for documenting derivative activities of the Group. It provides the
contractual framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter ('OTC") transactions are conducted,
and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the accurrence of an event of default
or a termination event. In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annexes will be included 1o form
part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Linder the Credit Support Annexes, collateral is passed
from one counterparty to another, as appropriate. to mitigate the credit exposures.

Advances and other accounts, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 179, Advances and other accounts, loan commitments
and financial guarantes contracts are collateralised 1o the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking
account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The coflateral coverage of advances to custormeds s
analysed on pages 189 to 190, The components and nature of loan commitments and financlal guarantes
contracts are disclosed in Note 42. Regarding the commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit
quality of a borrower deteriorates. For boan commitrnents and financial guarantee contracts, 11.58% {2022
12.23%) were covered by collateral as at 31 December 2023,
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised by product type as
follows:

2022
HES'm

Adwances ta custamers

Persona

Mortgages 435,515 405,467
= Credit cands 12,683 11,977
- Others 152,615 133842

Corporate
= Commercial loans 1,053,798 1,045,104
- Trade finance 47,691 51,879
1,702,302 1,648,269
Trace bills 3,751 6319
Advances 1o banks and other financial institutions 1,815 1.5
1,707 868 1655613

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the principal or interest is past due
and remains unpaid, Advances repayable by regular Instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment
payrment is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as owerdue either
when a demand fof repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has not been made in
accondance with the instruction or when the advances have remained continuously to exceed the approved
limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances classified as Stage 3 may not necessarily result in impalrment boss where the acvances are fulky
collateralised.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
{B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are analysed by internal credit grade and
stage classification as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
HK5'm HES'm HKS5'm

Adwvances to customers

Pass 1,659,557 16,721 - 1,676,278

Special mention 3,039 4,325 - 7.364

Substandard of below = - 17.757 17,797
1,662,596 21,046 17,797 1,701,439

Trade bills

Pass 3,751 = - 3,751

Spacial mention = = = =
Substandard or below = = = =

3,751 - - 3,751

Advances to banks and other

financial institutions

Pass 1,815 - = 1,815
Spiecial mention - - - -
Substandard of below - - - -
1,815 s = 1,815
1,668,162 21,046 17,797 1,707,005

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HKS'm HKS'm HKS'm HK$'m

Impairment allowances

Advances and other accounts at
amortised cost (4,113} [1,058) [9,555) [14,724)

Advances and other accounts at fair value
through other comprehensive income (29) - - (29)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HES'm HKS'm HES'm HES'm
Advances to customers
Pass 1,554,869 3,210 - 1,526,079
Special mention 3,680 B.954 - 12,634
Substandard of below - - 8724 8,724
1,598,549 Al 164 8724 1547437
Trade bills
Pass 6,329 - - 6,329
Special mention - = - X
Substandard or below - = = =
6,329 = - 6,329
Advances to banks and other financial
institutions
Pass 1.015 - - 1015
Special mention - - - -
Substandard of below - - £ =
1015 - - 1,015
1,605,893 A, 164 8724 1,654,781

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
HES'm HKS'm HES'm

Impairment allowances
Advances and other accounts at
amaortised cost {3,997 {2.511) 14.9592) (11,5000

Advances and other accounts at fair value
through ather comprehensive income (77 - = 7

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, advances and other accounts by internal credit grade and stage
clazzification did not include advances and other accounts mandatorily elassified at fair value through profit
or loss.

As at 31 December 2023, impairment allowance of advances and other accounts at fair value through
other comprehensive income amounted to HKS29 million (2022 HESTZ million) and was credited to other
comprehensive income,
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
{B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Reconciliation of impalrment allowances and gross amount for advances and other accounts s as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HKS'm HKS'm HKS'm HKS'm

Impairment allowances
At 1 lanuary 2023 3,997 2,511 4,992 11,500
Transfer to Stage 1 174 {163) {11) -
Transfer to Stage 2 {153) 155 {2) -
Transfer to Stage 3 {4) {3,936) 3,940 -
Changes arising from transfer of stage {158} 1,061 1,975 2,884
Charge far the year? 2,318 2,311 2,556 7,185
Reversal for the year™ (2,061) (897) (6a4) (3,602)
Wirite-offs - - (3,088) (3.088)
Recoveries - - 133 133
Exchange difference and others (2) 14 (300) (288)
Ar 31 December 2023 4,113 1,056 9,555 14,724
Charged o income statement (Note 13) 6,467

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HES'm HES'm HES'm HES'm

Gross amount
At 1 Januwary 2023 1,605,893 40,164 B.724 1,654,781
Transfer to Stage 1 10,840 {10,827) (13) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (8,680) 8,689 (9 -
Transfer to Stage 3 {362) {12,026) 12,388 =
Met change in exposures 59,522 (4,935) (185) 54,402
Write-offs - = (3,088) (3.088)
Exchange difference and others 949 {19) {20) 910
At 31 December 2023 1,668,162 21,046 17,797 1,707,005
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
{B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HES'm HES'm HES'm HES'm

Impairment allowances

At 1 January 2022 4,843 2,406 2632 9,881
Transfer to Stage 1 268 (268} (2) -
Transfer to Stage 2 {179) 185 (6] -
Transfer to Stage 3 (1) (1,092} 1,093 -
Changes arising from transfer of stage {249) 783 1.271 1,805
Charge for the year® 2,579 33 1,330 4,240
Reversal for the year™ 2,113) (600) {580 (3,293}
Changes in models {1,110 826 - (284}
Write-offs - - B (677}
Regoveries - - 17 M7
Exchange difference and others [41) {62} (166) (28%)
AL 31 December 2022 1997 25N 4,952 11,500
Charged 1o Income statement (Note 13} 2468
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HES'm HKS'm HES'm HES'm
Gross amount
A1 January 2022 1,567,831 33457 431 1,605,600
Transfer to Stage 1 4,000 (4,075} [14) -
Transler to Stage 2 (20.310) 20,351 [41) -
Transfer to Stage 3 {1,155) (3,799) 4,954 -
Net change in expasures 80,179 (5,524} 242 54,897
Write-offs - - 677 (6TT)
Exchange difference and others {4.742) (245} [61) (5,048)
Ar 31 December 2022 1,605,893 40,164 8724 1,654,781

() Charge for the yeer comprises the impalment loases attributable 1o new koans, remaining loans without stage transfers, and changes to
riSk pAMIMEDers, e

(8 Rewversal fior the year comgites reversal of Impalnment losses attributable to loan repatd, remalning boans without stage transfier, and
charges 1o Fidk parametens, ste.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(a)

Impaired advances

Impaired advances ta customers are analysed as follows:

Classiied Classified

Impaired orimpaired Impalred or impaired
HKS'm HK$'m HKS'm HES'm

Gross advances 1o custamers 17,797 17,797 5724 B,724

Percentage of gross advances to
CUSTOMers 1.05% 1.05% 0.53% 053%

Impairment allowances made
In respect of such advances 9,555 9,555 4,992 4,992

Classified or impaired advances o customers represent advances which are either classified as
“substandard’, "doubtful” or “loss” under the Group's classification of loan quality, or clasufied as Stage 3.

The impairment allowances were made after taking Into account the value of collateral in respect of
the credit-impaired advances.

2023 2022
HES'm HES'm

Current market value of collateral held against

the covered portion of impaired advances to customers 9,331 4,440
Covered portion of impaired advances to customers 6,204 2387
Uncewvered particn of impaired advances to customers 11,593 6337

As at 31 December 2023, there were no impaired trade bills and advances to banks and other financial
Institutions (2003 Nil).
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(b) Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for mare than three months is anatysed as follows:

4 of gross % of gross

advances to advances to
Amount customers Armount customers
HKS'm HES'm

Grass advances 1o Custaomers
which hawe been overdue for:
= six manths of bess but

over three manths 4,000 0.24% 2858 0.17%
= Qe year of less but

ovier six months 4101 0.24% 601 0.04%
= CWET GNE year 2,447 0.14% 1,860 0.11%

Advances overdue for
over three months 10,548 0.62% 5319 0.32%

Impairment allowances made
in respect of such advances
- Stage 3 5,342 3110

2022
HES'm

Current market value of collateral held against the

covered portion of such advances 1o custemers 5891 2739
Covered portion of such advances to customers 4,518 1,643
Uncovered portion of such adwvances ta customers 5,030 3676

Coltateral held against overdue or Impaired loans is principally represented by charges over business
assers such as commercizl, residential premises and aircraft for corporate loans and mortgages over
residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2023, there were no trade bills and advances to banks: and other financial
institutions overdue for more than three months (2022 Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(e} Rescheduled advances

oOoOooodn

BN 2022

% of gross

advances to
Amount customers

HES'm

Rescheduled advances to
customers net of amounts included
in "Advances overdue for more than

three months” 1,722 0.10%

% of gross
advances to
Amount  customers

HE3'm

509 0.03%

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured and renegaotiated between the
bank and borrowers because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or the inability
of the borrawer to meet the original repayment schedule, and the revised repayment terms, either of
interest or the repayment period, are “non-commercial” to the Group, Rescheduled advances, which
have been overdue for more than three months under the revised repayment terms, are included: in

“Advances overdue for mare than three months®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(8) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) Concentration of advances to customers
{ij  Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is based on the
categories with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA retum of loans and
advances.

Losans o s b hong g

Indhosrial commestial ang financia

- Popersy davelopment 188,115 ik ¥ kLY B T
- Property imvestment 5384 LiEr 1,716 94 544 o
- Fingngial qoncems 16,506 1045 - - - M
- Spckbeokers 1,156 ars - - - -
- Wholesale end retail trade 1M it 138 i H m
Manfactarng b 1% L] n EE] in
= Tramiport ad branpont equipment nam % 160 1 1] 5
Racoeional actiicies 4] Has - - - -
- Infrmarion techeology 58 2% b | ol 5
Otters 188,347 % M2 ay T 513
etk
- Lo For the praschase of s i
Iieemse Owneethip Schime,
Privane Secon Partcipussen
Scheme and Tenants Puchae
Scheme Lt wirs L4 &1 - n
- L o puaechae of
oier pesadenal puogenies e Hl% ur 1835 7 2
- et cand adrces 1564 = L) 476 1] i+
- (s 12361 1% 118 1] 45 i
Tioka foaes Tor wse i Hong Kang 1,253,163 L &511 4937 1413 1852
Trade Feareing 155 1% L k1H ] ]
Linies o e et o) Ko 400,444 4% 10754 g 143 LIl
(onires adhvances 1o oustomens 1,230 e 1 nan 5,555 56
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
{B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
{ij  Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

Lt o e i o Ky
Indesrial, cormmncial and firanc
ety diewooerint 17164 B L W % B8
~Fiopery investment 3158 S0 ] i . &
Francia ooncems 557 10e% . . F.
= Sinckbroers 1,19 Al - - - =
Wholesae nd sead rade 31 43 li:] wm ¥ 9
= Manufacang Lt Gb4% il 4 Fi] 1%
- Traioet an] tRareguan equipmmesnt £241 1726 164 mn -] "
- Recrazional actvies 1 B . - g -
~Infomtion techegiogy i 0 H 3 i -]
(e R 4100 9 it 8 i
Frvidualy
= Loams for the puschess offa e
Herne Cwrsship Scherne,
Privae Sector Panticipurion
Scheme and Terants Puechae
Seheme 1A% HhH% 1 47 - 1%
= Lows for puschawe of
pife resadercial propertie 6150 BB 11 141 1 Bl
= edit cand ademnces 1152 - | ) u 18
- (rbers 115987 S £ 43 @ i
Tootal s for g s g Koo 1724 058 1554 FACE i FAE
Trade finaring §E% B3 b= it 18 113
Lisaes B ettt Fioy Ky 414904 LR 1. L5 10 1A7
(ot achvances 10 Qustomers [ 4% LT i 450 6306
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(8) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(d} Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
{ij  Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

For those industry sectors constituting not less than 10% of the Group's gross advances to
customers, the amaounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement, and
classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

Mew Classified or MNew Classified or

impairment impaired loans impainment  impaired loans
allowances written off allowanices written off
HES'm HKS'm HES'm HES'm

Loans for wse in Hong Kong
Ingiystrial, commescizl and financial

- Property deveopment T3 953 0328 -
= (thers 965 7 L 5
Indhiduals
- Ligans for purchase of gther
residenitial properties 33 - 180

(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers &5 based on the locations of
the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an advance 1o customer
guaranteed by a party situated in a location different fram the customer, the risk will be
transferred 1o the location of the guarantar.

Gross advances to customers

2023 2022
HKS'm HKS'm

Hong Kong 1,454,475 1,399434
Chinese Mainland B5,131 86546
Others 162,696 162289

1,702,302 1,648,269

Impairment allowances made In respect of
the gross advances to customers
- Stages 1 and 2

Hong Kong 3,405 3954
Chinese Mainland 271 357
Others 1,490 2,185

5166 6,506
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i} Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers {continued)

Overdue advances

2022
HES'm

Hong Kong
Chinese Mainland
Others

Impalrment allowances made In respect of
the averdue advances
- Stage 3
Hang Kong
Chinese Mainland
Others

Classified or impaired advances

2023 2022
HES'm HKS'm

Hang Kong
Chinese Mainland
Others

Impairment allowances made in respect of
the classified or impaired advances
- Stage 3
Hang Kong
Chinese Mainland
Others
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16,001 8359
303 ELE
4,767 2364
21,071 12,076
5,988 2457
51 42
2,513 1,555
8,552 4,054

13,016 5,198
295 171
4,486 3,355
17,797 8,724
6,367 2684
165 48
3,023 2250
9,555 4962
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(€} Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as security. The nature and
carrying value of these assets hald as at 31 December are summarnised a3 follows:

2022
HES'm

Car park 7 10
Commercial properties 16 160
Industrial properties 15 17
Residential praperties 124 147

162 334

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 Decemnber 2023 amounted 1o
HES 282 million (2022 HK3545 million). The repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the
Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers,

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may consider the following
altematives:

- adjusting the selling prices
= selling the loans together with the assets

= amranging loan resiructuring
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions before impairment allowances are
analysed by internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
HKS'm HEKS"m HKS5'm
Central banks
Pass 159,777 - 159,777
Special mention - - -
Substandard or below - - -
159,777 - 159,777
Other banks and other financial
institutions
Pass 227,585 - 227,585
Special mention = - -
Substandard or below - 33 33
227,585 33 227,618
387,362 33 387,395
Impairment allowancas (a8) (33) 81)
387,314 - 387,314

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
HES'm HES'm HES'm
Central banks
Pass 198,387 - 198,387
Special mention & 2 -
Substandard or below 2
198,387 - 198,387
Other banks and other financial
institutions
Pass Ireoe7? - 319,087
Special mention = - -
Substandard or below 34 34
319,097 34 ETAE]
517484 34 517518
Impairment allowances (3] (16) (59
517447 18 517459
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

HK5'm HES'm HKS'm
At 1 January 2023 43 = 16 59
Changes arising from transfer of stage - - - -
Met charge for the year 5 = 17 2
Changes in models - - - -
At 31 December 2023 48 = 33 81
Charged to income statement (Mote 13) 22

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

HES'm HKS' mi HES'm HES'm
Ar 1 January 2022 23 - = 23
Changes arising from transfer of stage - - - -
Met (reversallicharge for the year (21 - 15 13
Changes in models 22 - 1 3
At 31 December 2022 13 = 16 39
Charged to income statement {Note 13} 36

As at 31 Decernber 2023, gross overdue or Impaired balances and placements with banks and other financial
Institutions amounted to HK533 million (3022: HK534 million). The aforesaid balances and placements have
been overdue for mare than one year as at 31 December 2023 (2022: overdue for less than 3 months).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
[E] Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the camying value of debt securities and certificates of deposit
by issue rating and stage classification. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the
issuers are reported.

2023 2022
HKS'm HES'm

Investment in securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Stage 1
LEE] 129,180 B2235
Aal o Aaz 318,116 2512
Al 1o A3 260,343 128,065
Lewer than A3 26,404 26,386
Unrated 31,139 35504
765,182 693,802
- Stage 2
Lewer than A3 474 458
Stage 3 -
765,656 &94.300
Of which: impairment allowances (198} (187}
Investment in securities at amortised cost
Stage 1
Aaa 114,597 148,951
Aal to Aa3 25,055 24,487
Al 1o A3 58,358 55459
Lower than A3 8,456 8230
Unrated 1,659 1,501
208,125 239,258
- Stage 2 -
-S1age 3 = 2
208,125 139258
Impairment allowances 147) (62}
208,078 239,195
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Aaa 3,148 1,761
Aal 1o Aad 44,165 21,041
Al 1o A3 71,040 59,299
Lower than A3 12,562 12,950
Unrated 4,185 2191
135,100 97232
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(E] Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for debt securities and cerificates of deposit is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HK5$'m HES'm HK5m HKS'm
Investment in securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
At 1 January 3023 183 4 - 187
Changes arising from transfer of stage - - - -
Met chargeireversal) for the year 14 1 - 13
Changes in models - - - -
Exchange difference and others (2} - - [z}
At 31 December 2023 195 3 - 198
Charged 1o income staterment (Note 13) 13
Investment in securities at amortised cost
A 1 January 2023 62 - - 62
Changes arising from transfer of stage - - - -
Met reversal for the year {15) - - {15)
Changes in models - - - -
Exchange difference and others - - - -
At 31 December 2023 a7 = - a7
Credited 1o income statement (Note 13) (15)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4,1 Credit risk (continued)
(E] Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HES'm HKS'm HES'm HES'm

Investment in securitles at falr value
through other comprehensive income

AL 1 January 2022 33 4 - nr
Changes arising from transfer of stage - - - -
Met reversal for the year (78) - - {78}
Changes in models [42) - - (42}
Exchange difference and others (109 - - {10}
At 31 December 2022 183 4 - 187
Credited to income statement (Mate 13) (1200

Investment in securities at amortised cost

A 1 lanuary 2022 a7 - - ir
Changes arising from transfer of stage - = - =
Met charge for the year 19 19
Changes in models 5 - = 5
Exchange difference and others 1
A 31 Decamber 2022 62 - - 62
Charged o Income statement (Note 13} 24

As at 31 December 2023, there were no impaired debt securities and certificates of deposit (2022: Nil). Debt
securities and certificates of deposit which have been overdue for six months or less but over three months
amounted 1o HK351 million and were measured at fair value through profit or loss (2022 Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
{F} Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are analysed by internal credit grade and stage

clazsification as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
HK5'm HES'm HKS5'm

Loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts

Pass 854,175 2,790 - 856,965
Special mention 744 955 - 1,699
Substandard or below - - 67 &7
854,919 3,745 &7 858,731

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

HEZ'm HKS'mi HES'm HKS'm

Loan commitments and financlal

guarantee contracts
Pass 767,103 431 - 7424
Special mention 2,305 1062 5 3367
Substandard or below - - 256 236

769,408 5383 256 775,047
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
{F} Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts is as
follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

HK5'm HES'm HKS5'm
AL 1 Januwary 2023 326 36 128 490
Transfer to Stage 1 T r - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (%) 4 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - - - -
Changes arising from transfer of stage (&) 7 - 1
et reversal far the year (4) (10) (107) {121)
Changes in models - - - -
Exchange difference and others - - = -
At 31 December 2023 ne 30 21 370
Credited 1o incomse statement (Mote 13) (120}

2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

HKS'm HES m HES'm
Ar 1 lanuary 2022 439 51 153 G643
Transfer to Stage 1 6 (&) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (4) 4 - -

Transfer to Stage 3 (1) 1
Changes arising from transfer of stage [5) 5 26 26
Met chargef{reversal) for the year 20 {14} (52) (46}
Changes in models {129) {2 B [131)
Exchange difference and others i n - ()
At 31 December 2022 326 35 128 450
Credited to income statement (Note 13) (151}

Majority of credit risk exposures of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are classified as
Stage 1 and categorised as "Pass”in the internal credit grade throughout the year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arlsing from movements in the value of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity
and commaodity positions held by the Group due to the volatility of financial market price {foreign exchange rate,
interest rate, credit spreads. equity price, commodity price), The Group adopls a moderate markel risk appetite
to achieve a balance between risk and return. The Group’s objective in managing market risk 15 to secure healthy
growth of the treasury business, by the effective management of potential market risk in the Group's business,
according to the Group's overall risk appetite and strategy of the tréasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management maasures.

I accordance with the Group's corporate governance principles in respect of risk management, the Board
and RMC, senior management and functional departmentsfunits perform their duties and responsibilities 1o
manage the Group's market risk. The RMD ks responsible for the Group's market risk management, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and compliance
of management pelicies and limits of the Group and BOCHK, and ensuring that the aggregate and individual
market fisks are within acceptable lavels,

The Group's market risk management covers BOCHK and its subsidiaries. The Group establiches market risk
management policies 1o regulate BOCHK's and Its subsidiaries’ market risk management; meanwhile, the Group
sets up the Group’s VaR and stress test limits, which are allocated and monitored across the Group according to
the business requirements and risk telerance levels, In line with the requirements set in the Group's policy, the
subsidiaries formulate the detailed policies and procedures and are responsible for managing their daily market
risk.

The Group sots up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control market risk. Major
risk indicators and limits include but are not limited 1o VaR, Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity
Analysis (Basis Point Value, Greeks), etc. To meet management’s requirements, major risk indicators and limits
are classified inta three levels, and are approved by the AME, senior management or the head of the respective
business unit respectively, The treasury business units of BOCHK and subsidiaries {as for Group Limit) are required
to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and limirs.

(A) VaR

The Group uses the VaR to measure and repor geneval market risks to the RMC and senior management on
a periodic basis, The Group adopts a uniformed VaR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
and two years of historical market data, to calculate the YaR of the Group and its subsidiarles over a one-day
holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VaR limit of the Group and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A} VaR (continued)

The following table sets cut the VaR for all general market risk exposures' of the Group.

At Minimum Maximum Average

31 December  for the year  for the year  for the year

HES'm HES'm HES'm HES'm
YaR for all market risk 2023 B4.3 35.7 B7.8 57.3
2022 453 219 513 377
VaR for foreign exchange risk 2023 39.7 16.5 48.4 28.9
2022 203 146 399 237
VaR for interest rate risk 2023 T4.6 3z 81.4 51.3
in the trading book 2022 9.8 156 63.2 315
VaR for equity risk 2023 8.1 0.3 8.5 5.4
in the trading book 2022 1.1 0.2 4.5 20
VaR for commeadity risk 2023 0.2 0.0 24.8 4.6
2022 4.1 0.0 123 A4

ate:

1, Stnecial FX posicions have been exchaded

Although there Is a valuable guide to market risk, VaR should always be viewed In the context of its
limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating futufe events may not encompass all
potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;

= the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or hedged im one day.
This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of severe llliquidity, when a one-day hoiding
period may be insufficient to liguidate or hedge all positions fully;

- the use of 2 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses that might occur
beyand this level of confidence; and

- VaR is calculated on the basic of exposures outstanding at the close of business and therefore does not
necessarily reflect intra-day exposures,

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits (o assess and manage
the market risk uncovered by VaR. The stress testing programme of the market risk Includes sensitivity testing
an changes In risk factors with various deqgrees of severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events
including the 1987 Equity Market Crash, 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997 Asian Financial Crisis, 2001 9-11 event
and 2008 Financial Tsunamd, eic.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
{B) Currency risk

The Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly HK Dollar, US Dollar and
Renminbl To ensure the cumrency risk exposure of the Group Is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g.
Position and VaR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the
gap between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps) are
usteally used to manage FX risk associated with forelgn currency-denominated assets and Habilithes:

The following Is a summary of the Group's major forelgn currency exposures arising from trading, non-
trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the completien instructions for the HEMA
return of foreign currency position, The net options pasition is calculated based on the basis of delta-
weighted positions of all foreign exchange options contiacts.

Other Total
Australian ~ forelgn  foreign
Dellars currencies  currencies

St assets 1062468 24210 TOBAN M4 TISIET 025 69379 2000517
Spct Eabilines (115,585  (29.783) (278400 [(38573) (509.114) (33301)  (62475) (1.813.840]
Forward prechases 1446407 26178 7RI TESET  THARSE  M025 60036 2474280
Forwand sales (1377988  [19,611) [117473) (B4815) (9652160 (31,657)  (68.879) (L665597)
hiet oprions pesition 1,923 {35) 53 {121 [165) (541 45 1852
Koot longy/sherl) pessition 17,308 W 70 6,542 (14 7an

Equivalert in milicn of HKS

Otfer

Spot assets 1MESST BIB A BASE S BB 65 LEBIAM
Spet akalies MO2S5)  BAAN) (LM (2AY SMNAN BTAN NI (88T
Forwand purchases giagE M 41501 RIS 4195 Fif S5l 1585706
Fonward saies [BESES (M0 OaGEM  (RSN)  MARIMN QA1) (BAE30) (1LTOE
Ht cptiors position 1,208 {1 n [T/ & {i) &
Hiet (shorbdieng pasition (Bes [ 20 519 230 B e %3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
(B} Currency risk ([continued)

Equivalent in million of HKS

Other Total
us Malaysian Philippine foreign foreign
Dollars Baht Ringgit Peso Ruplah currencies currencies

Met strectural position 8,017 1,648 3,140 1,926 3474 1,948 21,153

Equivalent in milllon of HKS

Othier Tatal
Malaysian  Philippine foreign foreign
Baht Ringgit Peso Rupiah  currencies currencies

Net structural position nan 2,185 2,905 1017 2361 2,010 42450

The comparative figures in the note have been restated to conform with current year presentation.

(€} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks o a bank's earnings and economic value arising from movements in interest
rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liabélity positions: The Group's interest rate risk exposures are
mainly frem structural positions. The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions ang:

- Gap risk: mismatches in the matuwrity of reprcing penicds of assets and liabalithes that may affect net
Interest income and economic value;

- Basis risk: different pricing basks for different transactions resulting that the vield on assets and cost of
liabilities may change by different amaounts within the same repricing period; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, labilities or off-balance sheet iterns that can
cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management. The ALCO exercises
its owversight of interest rate risk in accordance with the "BOCHE Group Banking Book Interest Rate Risk
Management Policy” approved by the RME. The RMD is responsible for the Group's interest rate risk
management. With the cooperation of the Financial Management Department and Investment Management,
etc., RMD assists the ALCO to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its rales include, but are
nat imited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators
and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring: of the compliance with policies and limits, and
submission of interest rate risk management reparns (o senlor management and the RMC, etc.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
(€} Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group sets out interest rate risk Indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control Interest
rate risk on a dally basis. The key indicators and limits include, but are not limited to, repricing gap limits,
basks risk, duration, price value of a basis paint (PYBPT), net interest income sensitivity ratio ("NII"), econemic
value sensitivity ratio (EVET), etc. The key Indicators and limits are classified into different levels, which are
approved oy the CFO, CRO, ALCO and RMC accordingly. Risk-taking business units. are required 1o conduct
thelr business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before launching a new product or business
in the banking book, the relevant business units are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current risk
manitoning mechanism. Any materal impact on interest rate sk noted during the fisk assessrent procass
will be submitted to the RMC for approval,

NIl and EVE assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group's net interest Income and capital
base. They are the Group's key interest rate risk indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate
MoVenent on net interest Income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the vear, The
latrer assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic value (le. the net present value of
cash flows of assets, liabllities and off-balance sheet ftems discounted using the market Interest rate) & a
percentage to the latest Tier 1 capital. Limits are set by the RMC on these two indicators to monitor and
control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest rate risk that the
Group would face under adverse. circumstances. Scenano analyses and stress tests are also used 1o assess

the impact on net interest income and economic value ansing from the optionality of savings deposits, the
prepayment of montgege koans and the prepayment of debt securities with embedded options, etc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
(€} Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group Is principally exposed to HE Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of interest rate risk. As at
31 December 2023, If market interest ratas had a 100 basis point parallel shift of the viekd curve with ather
variables held constant, the sensitivities on nat interest income over a twelve-month period and on resenes
for the Group would have been as follows:

Impact on net interest income
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December

100 basls point parallel up of

yield curve
Total 2,125 2530 (11,477) (6,923}
Of which:
HE Dollar 3,902 4370 (728) [#13}
Us Dallar (779) (G70) (8,063) (3,327)
Renminbi (960) (972) (2.424) {2,797}

100 basis point parallel down of

yleld curve
Total (2,123) (2,639 11,477 6,923
Of which:
HE Dedlar (3,902) (4,370} 726 413
U5 Dallar 778 &70 8,063 337
Renminki 963 972 2,424 2,797
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
(€} Interest rate risk (continued)

In a parallel shift up of 100 basis points of vield curve, the overall impact on net interest income of the above
currencies s positive In 2003, Reserves of the Group would have been reduced because of the expected
reduction in valuation of the debt securities pertfolio and relevant interest rate dervatives under hedge
accounting due 1o a parallel shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The positive impact on net interest
income decreased compared with 2022 as the size of debt securities portfofio in capital market with longer
tenor Increased and the average remaining tenor of customer time depaosits shortened, and the reduction of
impact on reserves rose comparned with 20232 as the duration of debt securities portfolio increased.

In a parallel shift down af 100 basis points of yield curve, the overall impact on net interest income of the
above currencies s negative in 2023 Reserves of the Group would have been Increased because of the
expected increase in valuation of the debt securities portfolic and relevant interest rate derivatives under
hedge accounting due to a parallel shift down of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The negative impact
an net interest income decreased compared with 2022 as the size of debt securities portfolio in capital
market with [orger tenor Increased and the average remaining tenor of customer time deposits shortenad,
and the increase of impact on reserves rose compared with 2022 as the duratlon of debt securites portfolio
Increased.

The sensitivities above are for Hustration only and are based on several assumptions, including, but not
limited to. the change in the comelation between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement
of interest rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the
effectiveness of hedge accounting. all positions being assumed 1o run 1o maturity, behavioural assumptions
of products in which the actual repricing date differs from the contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group's overall Interest rate risk exposures.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
(€} Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group's on-balance sheet expasure to interest rate risk as at 31 December.
Inclyded in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, cateqorised by the earfier of
contractual repricing date and maturity date.

Hon-
Interest
bearing
HEE'm
Assets
Canh vl Eilances and placements with banks and
pifer fnancial institutions MTMT 15365 19830 1466 - 51763 065N
Financial msets 2 falr value though peolis of s 19,681 IS0 WIS 2R4S4 51900 16 12
Dierivative fisancial imtruments - - - - - MmN
Hong Kong SAR Govemment certicates of
ingebiedness = = = & = N3N0 213000
Advances and other accounts 1437380 132,688 66,135 0,492 EA58 TR 1,683,144
e ment in sequrities
- At VO 145275 T4ZATA 143,040 247264 87,003 4706 770,361
- Bt amanised coit 9,482 J1AET W40 1034T1 32498 = 08078
nienests in assaciates and joint ventures = = = - = 1275 1275
rreEsiment propedtied = = = - - 14,875 14,875
Froperties, plast and equinment - - = = - L1frE ] 41,738
Crthier ag5eas Gnchuding furent and deferied i auety) 6,669 = = = = 85570 122139
Total assets 1115634 365,164  IR0060 AQDAT  17950R 48 TTOD 3B64TE3
Liabilites
Hong Kong SAR cumengy notes in Crpulacion - = = = = 23800 213000
Deposits 2nd batances from banks and other Enanglzl
Institutigns 342,691 6 10 - - N84 IMET3
Financial liabifities at fair vatue Ewpugh profit or loss 18,297 30,827 15,652 1,255 1m - 66,203
Dermvative fnancial instruments - - - - - 1,553 41,553
Deposits from Customers 1,540,154 458625 327879 1484 = 173,180 32,5088
Debe securities and certficates of deposh in issue - 1999 - - - - 1,558
(Othed socounts and prawisions (including cuent and
deeferred a labifes) 12628 4 106 745 352 Te213 94,048
reiurante conlract Gabiities = = = = = 177473 177,873
Suborcnated fabiinies - - - 7538 - - 1538
Total liabifities 1923711 #8231 M7 76T 5M  TO5TEI 3545354
Iriengst senssivity gap 191,863 (123.207) (S3.57H) 342980 179384 (24M3] 3340
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
[C)  Interest rate risk [continued)

Upin Ower intenest
1 month 0 5 years bearing
HEY'm Ay HiS' HES'm HKS'm
Bty
Cash and balances and placements with banks and
titer financaal instiutions A15459 1855 8556 2285 1y 53344 335194
Finarscaal asety o fair vakee theoagh profin of ks 18478 15897 11545 Pl 41748 1534 13203
Dermvatie financial indtruments - - - - - 61832 61532
o Kong SAR Govemment cenifcates of
indebapdness - - - - ngrm e
Advances and olher counts TABST 13306 Al 3 1448 TAM LRI
irvestment in securities
- AtFYO01 jirhEy] 163477 177549 176,407 B 138 3517 Garaly
- At amgetised oot L18 5] B 145748 NS - I
inkenests in 2ss0cianes and joint veniures - - - - - B3 M3
ivestment properties - = - - - 16069 16058
Fraperties, plant and equipment g = - - - 8361 461
Other assets fncuding cument and deferved tax assets) 784 E = = = M54 AL
Total assets I3 MANAN IATS 3BEM5 UIR5E 4BAESE  1GBRNS
Liabilities
Hong Kong SAR cumency nokes in croulacion . - MAT METH
Deposits andi balances om banks 2nd ezher Enancial
instiutions Imo0 1548 5200 1t - I Nekls
Financial absities at fair vabue through profit of loss 19,406 15558 154 1,451 148 1 59453
Derivative financlal irstruments - = - - - 0.6 5
Deposits from oushomers 1AM MBEET INSD 17% - 18836 M0
Debt sacyrities and cendicates of depash in issee - - 170 191 - - 153
Other accounts and peowisions including cument and
geferred tax liabilivies) 19419 i1} 3 B&l pe BRI5E pilirg}
Irsurance contract fzbiites - - - - - 163,246 165 146
Subondinated fabilites . - - 1639 - - 75353
Tortal liabilitles 1E BET 53 H2.655 T8 TE3R 306N
insesest sensziy gap T W T A I 1. I S i B I Fu

Assets and liabilities in the tables, including insurance contract liabilities, are measured in accordance with
ralevant accounting standards as described in Note 2 material accounting policies.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able 1o obtain sufficient and timely funding at a reasonable cost
to meet their obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains a sound liquidity risk appetite 1o provide stable,
refiable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal circumstances and stressed scenarios.

inaccordance with the Group's corporate governance principles in respect of risk management, the Board and the
RMLC, senior management and funciional depariments/units perform thelr:duthes and responsibllities 1o manage
the Group's Hauidity risk. The RMC is the decision-making authority of Bquidity risk management, and assumes
the ultimate responsibifity of liquidity risk management. As autharised by the RMC, ALCO exercizes its aversight of
liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with the risk appetite and policies as
set by the RMC. The RMD is responsible for the Group's liquidity risk management. It cooperates with the Financial
Management Department and Investment Management, etc. to assist the ALCO to perform liguidity management
functions according to their specific responsibilities.

The Group's liquidity risk management chiective is to effectively manage the liquidity of on-and off-balance sheet
items with a reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite 1o achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Deposits from customers are the Group's primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient
sources of funds are In place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market and by Issuing bills in the capital market. According to different
term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios; the Group adjusts its asset
structure {including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) te maintain sufficient liquid assets which
provides adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable
cost 1o serve external claims In case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the sources, tenors and use
of funding to awold excessive concentration of assets and liabilities; and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the
break of funding strand resulting from over-concentration of sources and use of funding in a particular area where
probbems occur. In order to'manage such risk, the Group sets concentration limits on collateral pools and sources
of funding such as Tier 1 high-guality readily liqueflable assets to total high-quality readily liquefiable assets ratio,
top ten depositors ratio and large depositors ratio. Whenever necessary, the Group could Improve the liquidity
paosition by taking mitigation actions including, but not limited to cbtaining funding through Interbank borrowings
or repos in the money market, selling bonds in the secondary market or retaining existing and attracting new
customer deposits. Apart from increasing the funding, the Group would maintain good communication with the
counterparties, the parent bank and the regulators to enhance mutwal confidence.

The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guidelines 1o manage the liquidity funding
among different entitles within the Group, and to restrict their relfiance of funding on each other. The Group
also. pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments,
derivatives, options and other complex structured products. The Group has an owerall liquidity risk managenment
strategy to cover the Fquidity management of foreign currency assets and llabilities, collateral, intra-day liquidity,
intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc, and has formulated corresponding contingency
plan.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to kdentify, measure, monitor and control
liquidity risk on'a daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratic
("LCR™), met stable funding ratio ("NSFRT), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Qutflow ("MCO") and
liquidity ceshion. The Group applies a cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under nonmal
conditions and also performs a Bguidity stress test (including Institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis) and other metheds at least on a monthly basis to assess the Group's capability to withstand
various severe liquidity crises. Alzo, relevant management infarmation systems such as the Assets and Liabilities
Management Systermn and the Basel Liquidity Ratic Management Systemn are developed to provide data and 1o
prepare for regular management reports 1o facilitate Hguidity sk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA, the Group has implemented a behaviour model and assumptions of cash
flow anatysis and stress test to enhance the Group's cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions.
In cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have bean made relating to on-balance sheet iberms
(such as deposits from custormers) and off-balance sheet iterns (such as loan commitments). According to various
characteristics of the assets, lizbilities and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based
on the contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The
Group establishes the MCO indicator which predicts: the future 30 days maximurn cumulative net cash outflow in
narmal situations based on the above assumplions, 1o assess If the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet
the cash flow gap in order 1o achieve the objective of continuing operations. As at 31 December 2023, before
taking the cash inflow through the sale of owtstanding marketable securities into consideration, BOCHK's 30-day
cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HES357,676 million {2022 HKS159,722 million) and was
incompliance with the internal limit requirements.

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis scenarios have been set up,
a combined crisis scenario |5 @ combination of institution specific and general market crisis 1o assess the Group's
capability to withstand 3 more severe ligubdity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopred.
Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retall, wholesale and Interbank deposits; the drawdown rate
of loan commitments and trade-refated contingent liabilities; the definquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31 December 2023, the Group was
able 1o maintain a net cash inflow uncer the three stressed scenanos, indicating: the Group has the ability 10
meet financing needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which Includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities lssued or guaranieed by
sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities of multilateral development banks with 09 ar 209 risk weight or
marketable securities sswed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above
to ensure funding needs even under stressed scemarios. As at 31 December 2023, the liquidity cushion (before
haircut) of BOCHK was HKS743,636 million (2022: HK5717,.272 million). A contingency plan Is being established
which detalls the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early waming indicatars, the action
plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of relevant cepartments,

The Group, being classified as a categary 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate the LCR and
M5FR on a consolidated basis in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules. The Group is required to malnzain a
LCR and NSFR not less than 100%,
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4, Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have the right to request from the Group additional collateral if
they have concerns about the Group's creditworthiness.

The Group's liquidity risk management also covers new products or business developments. Before launching
a new product o business, the relevant business units are required 1o go through a risk assessment process,
which inciudes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk
management mechanism, Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be
reported ta the RMC for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management palicies which serve as standards and
guidance 1o all the Group's members for liquidity risk-management. On the basis of the Group's uniform policies,
each of the subsidiares develops its own liquidity management policies according o its own characteristics,
and assumes its own biquidity risk management responsibllity. Subsidiaries are required o report thelr respective
liquidity positions with relevant liguidity ratios on a regular basis to the AMD of BOCHE, which consolidates this
infarmaticn and evaluates group-wide liquidity risk to ensure relevant requirements are satisfied,

{A) Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratlo

I I T

Average value of liquidity coverage ratio

Eirst quarter 189.68% 159.16%
- Second quarter 188.89% 149 49%
= Third guarter 193.47% 149.00%
- Fourth quarter 207.12% 178.49%

Average value of liguidity coverage ratio i calculated based on the arithmetic mean of the liquidity coverage
ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the calculation methodology and instructions set
out In the HEKMA return of Equidity position.

Quarter-end value of net stable furding ratio

- First quarter 134.51% 123.86%
- Second quarter 131.56% 1.26.87%
- Third guarter 138.67% 127.98%
- Fourth guarter 137.28% 131.56%

Guarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation methodology and
instructions set cut in the HEMA return of stable funding position.

Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio are computed on the consolidated basis which
comprise the positions of BOCHK and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA In accordance with the
Banking {Liquidity) Rules.
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4, Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B} Maturity analysis

The tables below analyse the Group's assets and liabilities as at 31 December Into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

13 3n2 (11}

Imoth mosths  menths years
HES'm HES'm HitS'm HES'm

Ruiets
Cash and hetantes and placement with banis and othet

Frencid ingitutions HME N4 B B 1 - - dgsn
il assets at fair valoe theough profs o boss - MMl WA NaB AT SIS I3 I
Deivathve Fnancial ingruments 15745 M7 5,504 1845 14142 6158 - M
Hong Kong “UR Covenrrent conifcatesof indebtachess  FILD00 - - - - - - 0
Mdvances and cthet acoousts 1B 68,133 @y MosH S AanSS LR R
Trrvestrment in securities

] = TREN TIABE A3 20N BRSRE ME TR

K armoriond cn - 2111 A NAE am - MR

TS s AHAOCHES 3G 0N Venlues - - - - - - 14275 1175
Irvestrmend properties - - - - - - AT M
Froperiies, plirst and equipment . - . - - NJa ane
(b azsets fracluding oumeni and defened e asses) o8 e 1an W ans 155 08
Total sisets HEMA  ONSAID 27T @038 MRS MRLIN Y08 3T
Liabidities
Hong Kong SAR cumency noles in droiation 3000 - - - - - = I3k
Deposits 3nd hatarces from banks and other Francial

natitutions, 13 Imx 605 i - - - 4N
Finenial labites at tair valoe through profit or boss - nin 1461 15653 1,245 m - 66,203
Desivative fnancil instraments 11,062 1650 (41 673 11,655 L] - s
Depuits b cstomers 1188510 MM LS ITAN 144 - = L50.682
Dby sanurties and certificanss of depositin ks - - 159 - - - - 1,58
{(the atocunts and provitions (nchuding cument ind

defemed tax fahies) 50,592 M 1406 1640 BB47 561 - BAbag
Tnsurance contract Rabilities - 1,284 3868 1086 o I - 681
Sigbosdiated fahiities - - - k1 1578 - - 151
Tortal Babslities LGEL56D  THRGEZ  MSASIT MDD  MIEM 10816 = L5N67S
Nt ity g (TT6T64] A3 (RN NETD BN SMIM 0 M08 15
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4, Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) Maturity analysis [continued)

Aty
{ishiand baarces and placements with banks and other

frenial situbom 680 S i 55 1 - B I
Finngil asets at i valge through peofi o lo - 15347 o wWaw 0 438 o Bl
Deshvative financial instaments LT ] o] LR ] Lt AR 10130 - [-31.LH
Hong Kong SR Cevermment cerificates of indetrechess | BT - - = - - - AT
Mvvarces and cther accounty Eill o T S48 TH45HS 1724 B L BT
ivestment in secusties

= b P00 - 14175 155835 1B1/5E 8.7 8 s ETRIT

= K merad ot - L3 177 IR 14545 11142 - 13319
Ity i ausociates and it vemuies - - - - - - 3 B
Frvestment propartie) 16088 TR
Fropertes, plint ind eupenert - - - - - Hx Mgl
(the avsets [inchueding coment and deferred ma set] 1% (] i) 457 E5. 461 ek 156 LAk
Total assets Wi IR T4 LT oL 566063 BB REEESS
Lisblities
Hong Kong SAR cumagy notes in oiyiation Xem £ 5 3 3 7 - W
Depusits ang bafances from banks and other Fencal

instiabions BhM 29 k) 500 5 - - JIEAM
Firancial habilves at S valias through orodit or boss = 13408 1435F naAl 141 1410 H Sl
Deivativg Fngrcial instagments 983 135 L] 138 L] T4 - L
Deposits fom qestoners [ 1 SR £ L . - S L1t 1734 z - W
Db sanurties and cortificases of deposlin kuue - b 0 1875 155 - . 16
{the acoounts and provisions (including cument and

deferved) e Eabiles) §1.08% M L% iah nn 50 - T
Imsurance oontrct ket - bk 14 it 45 350 - Bl
Sebordneted Rebvltis - 5 = L bt . - bt
Total Bablities IMB0E SN el ISR IMEE IHW 388
bt ity oy B QIS NEIR MIE BAIT W08 BSE uTm

The anatysis of debt securities by remaining: period to maturity is based on contractual maturity date. The
disclosure does nat imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

The above analysis In respect of insurance contract liabilities represents the estimated timing of net cash
outflows resulting from recognised insurance contract fiabilities on the balance sheet and excludes the
contractual service margin and risk adjustment for non-financial risk.
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4, Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(€} Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(a) Mon-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for non-derivative
financial lkabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

Up ta 1tod Il 1to§ Crwer

1 month months months years 5 years
HKS'm HKS'm HKS'm HKS'm HES'm

Financial liabilities
Hong Kong SAR curency notes in

ciruiation 113,000 - = = = 13,000
Deposits and balances from banks and

cther financia! anstitutions 7818 608 416 - - 373aa2
Financial liab¥zies a1 fair value throwgh

it o ooss 21,704 27,630 15871 1,334 183 66,832
Deposits from customers 1714116 462,750 334723 1,986 -  1,512975
Debit securities and certificates of

oepaslt in issue - 2014 - - - 2014
Subtedinated Kakilities - = 1,550 77,568 - B0158
Lease liabiities 49 9 359 675 12 1,296
Ceher financial habilities TTAS2 197 48 16 4 a7
Total financial liabilities 1,399,139 492690 354307 £1,580 319 3,318.035

Up lo Tio3 3oz 105 Orer

1 month months manths years 5 years
HES'm HES'm HES'm HES'm HES'm

Financial liabilities
Heng Kong SAR currency notes in

tirculation 2T 208770
Deposits and batances from banks and

giver financial institutions 9212 1,003 5748 LEL - Hoss
Financial llabizies at faiz value throwgh

prafit o lerts 19505 15619 25 1591 1,768 60685
Deposits from customers 1669873 384,203 331808 1824 = 2387748
Debit securities and certificates of

geposit In issue 3 13 17 204 - 3067
Subcedinated Fabilites - - 2508 80,586 - EA 095
Lexse liabdities 47 BE W7 T35 52 1308
Cghear financial Eabilities 61,700 20 1418 47 5 63440
Total financial labélities 2263080 401,154 365718 87629 1866 315507

As at 31 December 2023, the amounts pavable on demand of insurance contracts labilities is
HKS543.456 million (2022: HKS51,083 miltion).
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4, Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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(€} Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining contractual maturity as at
31 December for derivative financial labilities that will be settled on a net basis, together with all
derivative financial instruments that will be sertled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract
Is in an asset or llabllity position, The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contraciual undiscounted
cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.

The Group's derivative financial instruments that will be setiled on a net basis mainly include interest
rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include

currency forwards and curmency swaps.

1tod

menths

Ito 12

months

1ta5

years

Derivative Financial liabisties setthed

HES'm

HKS'm HKS'm

£en & et bt (11,517} (1,764) [6,439) (7,753) (142}  (28885)
Derivazive financial instruments serthed

on 3 grass basis

Total infigw 145,017 420065 727835 7B 12,154 2,860,689

Total outfiow (1451,315) (144700 (726123] (247,768 (11,750) (2,B51,366)

Upto

1 manth
HEY'm

Ttod
months
HES'm

3o 12
manths
HEY'm

Derivative financial liabifties settled

o 3 net basis [10,333] 11.7704) [7.5%4) (13,350} {2.165) (35221)
Detivative financial instiuments seithed

O A Grass Dases

Total inflow Ga5,T45 379653 566376 202,148 0873 1 E3S

Total cutfiew B3s7) (36,908 1563678 (202119} {1968 (1,788,550

216 BOCHong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

360/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(€} Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
(e} Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group's off-balance sheet financial instruments as at 31 December
2023 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and other facilities amounted ta
HKS813.414 million (2022: HK5732484 million). Majority of those loan commitments can be drawn
within cne year.

Financial guarantee contracts

Majority of financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Growp as at 31 December 2023
amounting to HES45,317 million {2022: HK542,563 million) are maturing no later than one year.

4.4 Insurance risk

The Group is in the business of insuring against the risk of mortality, morbidity, disability, critical lilness, accidenis
and related risks. The Group manages these risks through the application of its undenwriting strateqy, reinsurance
arrangements and regular experience monitoring.

The underwriting strateqy is intended to set premium pricing - at an appropriate level that coresponds with
the underlying exposure of the risks underwritten and the Groups underwriting procedures include screening
processes, such as the review of health condition and family medical history 1o ensure alignment with the
underwriting strategy.

Within the Insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where a particular event or a series of events could
impact heavily on the Group's claim llabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single Insurance contract or
through a small number of related contracts, and refate to circumstances where significant claim liabilities could
arise,

For the in-force insurance contracts, most of the underlying insurance liabilities are related to endowment,
universal life, annuity, whole life and unit-linked insurance products. For most of the insurance policies issued, the
Groyp has a retention limit on any single life Insured., The Group cedes the excess of the insured benefit over the
limit to reinsurer under an excess of loss reinsurance arrangement. For some of the insurance business, the Group
has entered inte reinsurance arrangements that reinsure most of the insurance risk.

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-term insurance contracts
arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality, morbidity and persistency. in
this regard, the Group has conducted relevant experience studies and researches regulary to identify emerging
trends, Results would be taken into account In pricing and underwriting management, The results of such studies
are also considered in determining the assumptions used in the estimates of fullilment cash flaws.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Financial risk management (continued)
4.4 Insurance risk (continued)
[A) Change in assumptions

The Group has updated the assumptions for lapse, expense and discount rates to reflect the changes in
Group’s expefience and market conditicns.

(B) Sensitivity analysis

The following table presents the sensitivity analysis of the key assumptions used in the estimation of
Insurance contracts:

Increase/  Increase/ Imcrease/

(decrease] (decrease) [decrease)  (decrease}

inprofit  inequity Increase/ inprafit  in equity

before before  (decrease) before before

taxation taxation in C5M tnation taxation

HES'm HKS m HKS'm HES'm HES'm
+10% mortality rate and morbidity rate (93] 87} (481) 73 154 765
+10% lapsessurrender rate 37 (50} {105) 15 131} {340
+10% eapense (49) (48} {339) (33 (27 303
+50 basis polnts shift In yieid cunves’ [26) (892} 454 {147 (304} a7
=1 0% monality rate and marbidity rate B4 by 518 55 EE] T
=1 0% lapsessiarender rate [36) 61 120 ) 136 il
107 epenige n 28 218 4 18 245
=50 basis points shift in yield curaes’ 6 950 {503) 155 970 1454)

*  Seraitivites presented inclodes nsursnce contracts and rersusanon condracts held and finarcial instruments

The above analysis is based on a charge In an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this Is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, for example,
changes in lapses, in future mortality and morbidity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Financial risk management (continued)
4.5 Capital management

The major objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise total shareholders' retum while maintaining
a capital adequacy position in refation to the Group's overall risk prafile, The ALCO periodically reviews the Group's
capital structure 1o maintain an optimal balance amang risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framewors of policies and controls on capital management
1 support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio and
loss-absorbing capacity requirements.

The Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements and loss-absorbing capacity. requirements
of the HEMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation. The HXMA supervises BOCHK and certain
subsidiaries specified by the HKMA on a consolidated and solo basis and, as such, receives information on the
capital adequacy of, and sets capital requirements for those companies as a whole. Individual overseas banking
subsidiaries and branches are directly regulated by their local banking supervisors, who set and monitor thelr
capital adequacy requirements. Certain non-banking financial subsidiaries are also subject to the supervision and
capital requirements of local regulatony authorities.

The ALCO monitors the Group's capital adequacy and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate. The Group has
adopted the foundation internal ratings-based ("FIRE") approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for the
majarity of its non-securitisation exposures. Small residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised
{credit risk) ("STC") appreach, The Group has adopted the standardised credit valuation adjustment ("CVA7) method
1o calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models ['IMMT) approach to calculate the general market risk capital
charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the approval fram the HKMA, exclude its
structural FX positions in the caloulation of the ‘market risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the
standardised (market risk) ("5TM") approach to calculate the market risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to.adopt the standardised (operational risk) ("STO? approach to calculate the cperational risk
capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAPT) to comply with the
HEMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual *Supervisory Review Process” in 2023, Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar |, ICAAP has been Initiated (0 assess the extra capital needed 1o cover the matenal risks not
captured or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio,
minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the
aforementioned capltal ratios have also been established which enable the flexibility for future business growth
and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group corsiders this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and ad|usts its capital structure where appropriate in refation to the overall risk profile.

The HEMA has classifled BOCHK as a material subsidiary of the BOC resolution group and required BOCHK
to comply with the applicable internal loss-absorbing capacity requirements under the Financial Institutions

{Resolution) (Loss-absorbing Capacity Requirements = Banking Sector) Rules ("LAC Rules”), with compliance period
starting from 1 lanuary 2023,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 Capital management (continued)
[A) Basis of requlatory consolidation (continued)
The particulars of the above-mentioned subsidiaries of BOCHK are as follows:

Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity

HES'm HK%'m HE4'm HES'm

BOC Group Trustee Company Limited 200 200 200 00
BOCIH-Prudiential Trustes Limited 627 493 634 478
Ching Bridge (Malzysia) Sdn. Bhd 13 [ 0 (3
Bank of China {Hong Kong) Mominees Limited - - - -
Bank of China {Hong Kong) Trustees Limiged B a 8 8
BOC Financial Services (Manning) Company

Liméted* 118 a7 152 43
BOCHX, Information Technefogy (Shenzhen)

G, Led. 374 263 372 J5E
BOCHX Infarmation Technobogy Services

(Shenzhen) Ca, Ltd. 408 349 401 342
Po Sang Financial Imvestment Services Company

Limited ELY 346 365 345
Po Sang Securitkes Limited 605 384 570 402
Sin Hua Trustee Limited 3 3 5 5
Billion Express Development Inc. - - -
Billion Crient Holdings Ltd. - - - -
Elite Bond fnvestments Lid = = = =
Express Capital Enterprise Inc, - - - -
Express Charm Holdings Corp. - - - -
Express Shine Assets Holdings Corp. - - - -
Express Talent Investment Ltd. - - - -
Gaold Medal Capital Inc - - -
Gold Tap Enterprises Inc. = = - -
Mand Success Holdings Ld. - - -
Serart Linkage Holdings Ine - - - -
Srmart Union Capital Investrents Led. - - - -
Success Trend Development Lid. - -
Wise Key Enterprises Corp. - - - -

*  BOC Financial Services fNanning) Company Limited has ¢changed company’s name to BOC Digital Serdoes (Manning] Compasty Limited
o 12 January 2004
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Financial risk management (continued)
4.5 Capital management (continued)
(A} Basis of regulatory consolidation {continued)
The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Company”

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of consolidation but not inclieded
within the accounting scope of consalidation as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope of consolidation and
the reguiatory scope of consolidation where the methods of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2023
(202.2; Nil).

The Group operates subsidiaries In different countries/regions where capital s governed by kocal rules and
there may be restrictions on the transfer of funds or regulatory capital between the members of the Group.

(B) Capital ratio
The capital ratios are analysed as follows:

CET1 capital ratic 19.02% 17.51%
Tier 1 capital ratio 19.02% 19.30%
Total capital ratio 21.18% 21.52%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 Capital management (continued)
(B} Capital ratio (continued)

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital ratios is analysed
as follaws:

2022
HES'm

CET1 capital: instruments and reserves

Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments 43,043 43,043
Retained earnings 219,744 206,222
Disclosed reserves 40,247 36,914
CET1 capital before regulatory deductions I 303,734 2B6179
CET1 capital: requlavory deductions
Valuation adjustments (28) {33}
Crher intangible assets (net of associated deferred tax labilities) {1,894) (1,760}
Deferred tax assets {net of assoclated deferred tax liabilities) (328) (285}
Gains and losses due ta changes in awn credit risk an fair
valued liabilities [62) (155}
Cumulative fair value gains arising fram the revaluation of land
and buildings {own-use and investrment properties) {45,398) (47 288}
Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (7.974) {B,655)
Regulatory deductions applied to CET1 capital due to
insufficient AT capital and Tier 2 capital 1o cover deductions (241) -
Total regulatary deductions to CET1 capital {56,625) (56,381)
CET1 capatal 247,109 229,758

AT capital: instruments
Qualifying AT1 capital instruments classified as equity under
applicable accounting standards - 23475
AT capital before requlatory deductions = 23476

AT1 capital: requlatory deductions
Sugniﬁca‘.w LAC irvestments in AT1 capital instruments issued
by financial sector entlties that are cutside the scope of

requlatory consolidation {ﬂl-ﬂ -
Towal regulatory deductions 1o AT capital (241)
AT capital - 23476
Tier 1 capital 247,109 253274
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 Capital management (continued)
(B) Capital ratio (continued)

2022
HES'm

Tier 2 capital; instruments and provisions
Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general banking
risks eligible for inciusion in Tier 2 capital 7.607 7678

Tier I capital befare regulatory deductions 7.607 7678

Tier 2 capital; reguiatory deductions
Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
revaluation of land and bulldings (own-use and Investment

properties) eligible for incluskon in Tier 2 capital 20,429 21370
Total regulatory adjustrments o Ther 2 capital 20,429 21370
Tier 2 capital 28,036 20,048
Total regulatory capital 275,145 282322

The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

Capital conservation buffer ratic 2.500%
Higher loss absorbency ratio 1.500% 1.5009
Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.813% 0.E179%

The comparative figures in the note have been restated to conform with cufrent year presentation.

(C} Leverage ratio
The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:

2022
HES'm

Tier 1 capital 247,109 253274
Leverage ratio exposure 3,602,432 3,370,353
Leverage ratio 6.86% 7.51%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

Al aszets and Habilities for which fair value Is measured or disclased in the financial statements ane categarised within
the fair value héierarchy as defined In HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference 1o the observability and significance of the inputs used In the valuation methods and based on the lowest
leved input that ks significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- level 1: based on guoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This categary
includes equity securities listed on exchange, debt instruments issued by certain governments and certain
exchange-traded derivative contracts.

- Level 2: based on valuation technigues for which the lowest level Input that k& significant to the fair value
measurement is obsenvable, either directly or indirectly. This category Includes majority of the OTC derivative
contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendars, issued structured
depaosits, advances and other accounts and other debt instruments. |t also includes certain foreign: exchange
contracts, precious metals and properties with insignificant adjustmens or calibrations made 1o observable
market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable. This category Includes equity investments, funds, advances and other accounts
and cther debt instruments with significant uncbservable Inputs. It also includes properties with significant
adjustments made to observable market inputs.

For assets and (iabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occumed between levels In the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that Is significant to the falr value measurement as a whele) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that fair values are either
determined or validated by control units independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibity
for independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all other significant falr value
measurements, Other specific controls include verification of observable pricing Inputs; review and approval for
new modets and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed market transactions;
analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements; review of significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustrments. Significant valuation issues are repored 1o senior management, Rlsk Committee and Audit
Committee.

Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument (5 the individual instrument. HKFRS 13 permits a portfolio
exception, throwgh an accounting policy election, to measure the fair value of a portfolic of financial assets and
financial habilities cn the basis of the net cpen risk position when ceértain criteria are met. The Group applies
valuation adjustments at an individual Instrument level, consistent with that unit of account. According 1o its risk
management policies and systems to manage derivative financial Instruments, the fair value adjustments of certain
derivative portfolios that mest those criteria s measured on the basis of the price to be raceived or pald for net
open risk. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and labilities on the basis of its
relative net risk exposure to the portfolio.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair value of financial
instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation In active markets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The main parameters used in valuation technigues for financial instruments held by the Group Include bond prices,
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices. commedity prices, volatilities and correlations,
counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

The wechniques used 1o calculate the fair value of the following financeal instrurments are as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit, advances and other accounts and other debt instruments

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obrtaining guoted market prices from exchange, dealer or
independent. pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow technigue, Discounted cash flow model s a
valuation technigue that measures present value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments
and then discounts these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required
by the market for instruments with sirmilar fiske These nputs are observable of can be corroborated by abservable
or unobservable market data.

Mortgage backed securities

For this class of instruments, external prices are obtained from independent third parties. The valuation of these
securities, depending on the nature of transaction, is estimated from market standard cash fiow models with Input
parameter which include spreads to discount rates, default and recovery rates and prepayment rates that may be
observabie or compiled through matrix pricing for similar issues.

Darivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange, intérest rate, equity,
commodity or credit. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured using valuation technigues such as
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, The inputs can be ocbservable or unobservable market
data. Observable inputs Include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commedity prices,
credit default swap spreads, volatilities and correlations. Unobsenable inputs may be used for less commonly
traded option products which are embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the
fair values are determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments ("CVAs”) and debit valuation adjustments ('DVAs’) are applied 10 the Group’s OTC
derivatives, These adjustments reflect market factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and

the Group's own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent
on expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
[A) Fair value hierarchy

Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
HK5'm HKS'm HKS'm
Financial assets
Trading assets (Note 23)
- Debat securities and cortificates of deposit 1 66,477 - 66,478
Equity securities &9 - - 69
- Furd - = = =
- Other debt instrurments - 3,800 - 3,800

Other financial assets mandatorily classified at
falr value through profit or loss (Note 233

Debr securities and certificates of deposit j:1: 48,799 70 48,957
- Equity securities 4,133 - - 4,133
- Fund 3,421 1,479 7,689 12,589

Fimancial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss (Mate 23}

- Debt securities and certificates of deposit 1,780 17,885 - 19,665
- (ther debt instrurnents - 217,599 - 217,599
Derivative financial instrurments (Note 24) 19 54,192 - 54,211
Advances and other accounts a1 fair value - 4,512 863 5,375
Imvestment in securities at PVOCT (Mote 26)
Debt securities and certificates of deposit 130,681 634,975 - 765,656
- Equity securities 822 622 3,262 4,706
Financial liabilities

Financial liabllities at fair value through
profit or loss (Mote 32)

- Trading liabilities BOS 59,045 = 59,850

- Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss - 6,353 - 6,353
Derivative financial instruments (Note 24) 185 41,358 - 41,553
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 2 Level 3 Total
HES'm HES'm HES'm
Financial assets

Trading assets (Note 23}
= Debt securities and cartificates of deposit B2 36,724 - 36,806
Equity securities 59 - 59
- Fund 1 - - 1
= Other debt instrurnents - 3,400 - 2,400

Other financial assets mandatorily classified at
fair value through profit or loss (Note 23)

- Debt securities and certificates of deposit a3 56,268 1815 L1 Ry
- Equity securities 3057 658 - 4615
- Fund 2,695 1,108 5,865 10,669

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss (Mote 23)

- Debt securities and certificates of deposit B9 1,395 -~ 2255

- Other debt instrurnents - 15237 - 15237
Derivative financial instruments (Mote 24) a7 61,735 - 61,832
Advances and other accounts at fair value - B384 832 3716
Irvestment in securities at FVOCI (Note 26)

- Dalbt securities and cartificates of deposit 162629 530,936 735 694,300

= Equity securities Bo& 851 1,860 3517
Financial liabilities

Financial liabllities at fair value through
prafit or loss (Note 32)

- Trading liabilities & 30,445 = 20451

- Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss - 7 = 2
Derivative financial instruments (Note 24) 291 4975 - 50265

There were no financial asset and Hability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during the year
{2022 Wil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
[B) Reconciliation of lewel 3 items

Other financial
Essets mandatorily
classified at FYFL R
and ather
accounts at
fair value
HKS'm
At | anuaey 2023 1415 - 6865 [ L+ 75 1,850
(Lossipgans
rODMmE Stalemen]

- et (hossligain on othes financia
Instrusments a1 fair value theough
profl oo loas [0} - m - - -
- Chex comprehensive ingome

- Change in fair valo - - - - - sa2
Adejition; 10 - 02 - - &0
Disposals, redemptions and maturity (62} - [ 2 = =
Transfes into fewel 3 = = = “ = =
Transfer out of level 3 1,753} - - - (735 =
Enchange diference = = - 1 - o
At 3 December 2023 m - 7689 863 = 1262

Toeal wrvesbised flossestigaing for the yaar included
In income statemen for financial assets
held a5 at 31 December 3123
ket (losshigain on other financial
imturments o G vaue thoigh

profit o boss (80} - W3 & - =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
[B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

{ether financial
zsets mandatordy Investment in
clasified at FYPL securities at FvDO

#nd other

Debl i aooounts &

seoiitis fair valkos

HES'm HES'm
K1 bngary B A0 L] LATE - 1,14 L)

fLonsesligains
- income staement
= et (jomsligaie on cther firancial
Irestraments at fair value thecugh
profir or less ] {47 14 - - -
- Ceker compeehensive inome

- CPange i fairvale - - - - xm ]
Additions ] - 107 * = i
Disposals, redemptions and maturity = = i = S =
Transfar inp level 3 - - - & - -
Transfer cut of level 3 [1851] 144l . - {168 o
131 December 21 1815 = - i 135 1540

Total unseafiied Possesifgains for the yewr induded
inincome statement for fnancizl assets
Feid as e 31 Degernber W12
= e sl on thes francial
inteeuments at £ vaiue through
ol of ks 455 (47 74 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of
certain debt and equity securities, fund, certain advances and other accounts and unlisted equity shares,

For certain illiquid debt securities and fund, the Group abtains valuation guotations from counterparties
or uies valuation technigues to determine the fair value, including discounted cash flow analysis, net asset
value and market compariscn approach, which may be based on unobservable inputs with significant impact
an valuation, For certain equity securitles, advances and ather accounts, the credit spreads of comparables
used in valuation technigues are unobservable inputs with significant impact on valuation, Therefore, these
instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3. Transfers into and out of level 3 during 2023
and 2022 were due to change of valuation input observability. The Group has established Internal control
procedures to control the Group's exposure 1o such financial instraments.

The fair values of unlisted FVOCI equity Investments are determined with reference to (i) multiples of
comparable listed companies, including average of the pricefearnings ratios and average of the pricesf
book wvalues ratios of the comparables; or (i} dividend discount model calculation of the underlying
equity investments;: or (i} net asset value with fair value adjustments on certain assets or liabilities held
{if applicable), if nelther appropriate comparables nor dividend discount model calculation Is available or
applicable, The significant unobservable inputs and thelr range applied In the falr values measurement of
the Group's unlisted equity investments includes pricefearnings ratios of the comparables of 23.83x - 50.45x,
price/book values ratios of the comparables of 0.25x = 082, liquidity discount of 20 = 30%, dividend
paycut ratio of 23.44% - 83.91% and discount rate of 12.18% — 14.81%. The fair value is positively correlated
1o the pricefearnings ratios and price/book value ratios of appropriate comparables, forecasted stream of
future dividend payout or net asset values, and Is negatively comrelated 1o the liguldity discount used In the
average of pricefearnings ratios and price/bock value ratios of comparables or discount rate used in dividend
discount model.

Had all of the significant unobservable inputs appiied on the valuation technigues favourably changed/
unfavourably changed by 5% (2022 5%). the Group's other comprebensive income would have increased by

HK4564 million and decreased by HK363 milllon, respectively (2022: increased by HKS84 million and decreased
by HX583 million, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time basad on relevant market information and information
about various financial instruments. The following methods and assurnptions have been used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instrurment as far as practicable,
Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills
Substantially all the financial assets and labilites mature within one year from the: balance sheet date and their
canrying value approximates fair value,
Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of indebtedness and Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation
The carrying vatue of Horg Kong SAR Government certificates of indebtedness and Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation approximates their fair value,
Advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions
Substantially all the advances to custamers and banks and other financial institutions are on flaating rate terms,
pear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carnying value approximates fair value:
Investment in securities at amortised cost
The fair value of securities at amadtised cost is determined by using the same approach as those debl securities
and certificates of deposit and mortgage backed securities measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.
Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from custemers mature within one year from the balance sheet date and thelr
carrying value approximates fair value.
Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
The fair value of these instruments is determined by wsing the same approach as those debt securities and
certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described In Note 5.1,
Subordinated liabilities

The fair value of subordinated labilities is determined by using the same approach as those debt securities and
certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described In Mobe 5.1 and their carang value approximates fair
value,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments not measured ar fair
value, except for the abave with their carrying values being approximation of fair values,

Carrying Carrying

value wvalue

HKS'm HES'm

Financial assets
Irvestrent in securities at amortised cost
(Mate 26) 208,078 202,952 239,196 229448

Financial llabllities
Debt securities and certificates of deposit
in Issue (Mote 34) 1,999 2,001 3536 3634

The following tables. show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair valees disclosed,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

HK$'m HKS'm HKS'm

Financlal assets
nvestment in securities at amortised cost 31,942 170,998 12 202,952

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and centificates of deposit
in issue = 2,001 5 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

HES'm HES'm HES'm

Financial assets
Investment in securities at amorised cost 71,548 157,494 6 229,448

Financlal llabllities
Debit securities and cerificates of deposit
in issue - 3634 - 3634
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation technigues or quoted market prices in active market 10 detesmine the fair value of
non=financial instuments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the Group's investment
properties and premises wene revalued as at year end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of charmered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
valued, The Group’s Management had discussicns with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting date.
There has been no change In valuation methods during the year and the methods used are consistent with last

year.

()  Valuation methods and inputs used in level 2 fair value measurements

The falr value of properties classified as level 2 & determined using either the market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the Income capitalisation approach by
reference to markel rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences
between the comparable properties and the subject properties, These adjusiments are considered as
insignificant to the measurement.

The Group's properties are located in Hong Kong, certain major cities in the mainland, Thailand and Malaysia
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and capitalisation
rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

(i} Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group's properties classified as level 3, except for the bank vault, is determined
using either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium
of a discount specific to the features of the Group's properties comparad 1o the comparable properties,

The fair value of the bank vault is determinad wsing the depreciated replacement cost approach as no
direct comparable |s availzble given the specialised nature of the property. The major inputs are the market

value of the existing land, the current cost of replacing the property and the depreciation rate, Appropriate
adjustments are made to reflect the specialised nature of the property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 MNon-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Investment properties and premises (continued)
{ii} Information about level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the
Group’s properties classified as level 3 are as follows:

Significant Relationship
Valuation unobservable Weighted of unobservable
method inputs average inputs to fair value
Barsk vauit Depraciated Depraciation rate % The higher the depreciation
replacement (2022: 298 | rane, the lower the fair value,
CO5T approdch fe RN L
Premium on +15%: The higher the premium,
specialised nature | (3022 +15%) the higher the falr value,
of the property to

building cost

Orther Market Premium/{discount) 6.E% The higher the premium,
properties compariscn on features of the | (2022: -10.7%) the higher the fair value.
appraach property compared
ar incame 1o comparable The higher the discount,
capitalisation properties the lower the fair value.
a;_'lpl'r,}lﬂ.';'l'l

Premium/{discount) on features of a praperty & determined after taken inte account vanous factors, such as
tirme for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition, Tloor level, size, layout, ete, with
reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.

For the fair value of the investment property with a regevelopment plan, it s measured on a redevelopment
basks by adopting residual approach which is a valuation method: generally used to value development of
lands. Gross Development Value ("GDV") is first determired using market comparison approach by reference
ta recent transactions of comparable propemies and adjusted for a premiurn of a discount specific to the
quality of the Group's development compared to the comparable properties. The ultimate fair value of the
redevelopment is the residual value after deducting the present value of the development costs (including
professicnal fees, demalition cost, constructions cost etc) and developer's profit from the presaent value of
the GOV, The higher the GDV, the higher the fair value; the higher the development costs and the discount
rate, the lower is the fair value.

Preclous metals

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in active market or market
quete with certain adjusiments.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

{A) Fair value hierarchy

Men-financial assets
Imvestment properties (Mote 28)

Praperties, plant and equiprent (Note 29)

Premises
Other assets (Mote 30)
- Pracious metals

MNon-financial assets

Investment properties (Note 28)

Properties, plant and equipment (Nate 24)
- Premises

Orher assets (Mote 30)

= Precious metals

Lewvel 1

HKS'm

Level 2 Level 3 Total

HKS'm HKS'm HKS'm

- ELiL:] 14,567 14,875
= 1.075 38,380 39,455
- 11,627 - 11,627

= 333 15,746 16,069
- 976 40,806 41,782
- 1,507 - 11,507

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during the year (2022;

Nl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 MNon-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
{B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

Mon-financial assets

Froperties,

plant and

equipment

Inwestment

properties Premises

HKS'm HES 'm

Ar 1 January 2023 15,746 40,806
Losses

- Income statement
- et loss from fair value adjustments

on investment praperties {1,259) -
— et loss from revaluation of premises - {1320)
- Other comprehensive Income

- Revaluation of premises - [(970)
Depreciation - {1.184)
Additions 26 7
Transfer into level 3 - 41
Transfer out of level 3 - {178}
Reclassification 54 (54)
At 31 December 2023 14,567 38,380

Total unrealised losses for the year included
in income staternent for nen-financial assets
held as at 31 December 2023
- Wet boss from fair value adjustments

on investment properties (1.253) -
- et boss from revaluation of premises - [130)
(1,259) 1130
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

Mon-financial assets

Froperties,
plant and
equipment
Investment
properties Premises
HESm HES'm
At 1 January 2022 17,245 40,483
Losses

- Income statement
- et loss from fair value adjustments

on investment properties {1,269 -
- Met loss from revaluation of premises = 113)
- Other comprehensive Income
- Rewvaluation of premises - (954}
Depreciation - (1,148}
Additions 8 50
Transfer into level 3 182 2,089
Transfer out of level 3 - -
Reclassification {400) 400
At 31 December 2022 15,746 40,805
Total unrealised losses for the year included
in income staternent for nen-financial assets
held as at 31 December 2022
= het loss from fair value adjustments
on investment properties {1,.289)
- et boss from revaluation of premises - {113}
{1,289 (113}

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the premiums{discoent) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties during the year. Premiumy/{discount) an features
is determined with reference to differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable
properties recently transacted in the market. As comparable propertbes that come from recent market
transactions may be different in each year, the premlumAdiscount) on features applied beowveen the subject
and comparable properties would change from year to vear accordingly. As a result, the significance of
adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out
of level 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Net interest income

Interest Income

Advances to customers, due from banks and other financial institutions B6,940 45,102
Investment in secyrities and financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss 40,691 18278
Others B58 390
128,489 63,770
Interest expeanse
Depasits fram customers, due 1o banks and other financial institutions {71,940) (23,692}
Debn securities and cenificates of deposit In issue (116} {34}
Subordinated llabilives (2,509 (333
Lease liabilities (41} (34)
Cthets {2,805) {B78)
(77.411) (25,020
Net interest income 51.078 38,750

Included within interest income ane HKS94,206 million (2022: HK549,617 million) and HKS27,253 million (2022: HK511,337
rillien} for financial assets measured at amortised cost and at falr value through other comprehensive income
respectively,

Included within Interest expense are HES76,174 million (2022 HX$24,709 million) for financlal liabilities that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. MNet fee and commission income

Fee and commission income

Credit card business 2,430 1,991
Loan commissians 2,413 2547
Securities brokerage 1,826 2491
Trust and custody services 790 733
Payment services 74 124
Insurance 651 912
Bills cormmissions 481 514
Funds distribution 431 541
Currency exchange 398 210
Safe deposit box 290 259
Funds managerment 28 49
Others 1,735 1359
12,187 12360
Fee and commiszion expense
Credit card busingss (1,790) {1.419)
Securities brokerage (281} (333}
Others (249) (808}
(3,020) (2,560)
Net fee and commission income 9,167 9,800

OF which arise from:
Financial assets of financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
throwgh profit or loss

- Fee and commission income 2,663 2,848
- Fee and commissipn expense (9) {10}
2,654 2838
Trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fee and commissicn income 987 922
- Fee and commissicn expense {41) {3%)
246 HEZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Net trading gain

Het galn from:

Foreign exchange and foreign exchange products B,028 715635
Interest rate instruments and items under fair value hedge 3 4957
Commaodities 274 173
Equity and credit derivative instruments 10 T4

8,315 12,839

9. Net gain/(loss) on other financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss

Met gain/{loss) on other financial instruments mandatorily classified at fair value

through profit or loss 2,026 (11,848)

Met gain/{loss) on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss 251 {16}
2,277 {11,864}

10. Net loss on other financial instruments

2022

HES'm

Het loss on disposal/redemption of investment in securities at FYOC) (1.457) (3.816)
Met lass on redemption of investment in securities at amartised cost (21} 152
Others 10 12
(1,468) [3.856)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Insurance finance (expenses)/income

Finance (expenses)/income from Insurance contracts [ssued

Interest accreted {2,760} [2562)
The effect of and changes in financial risk {2,285) 6,286
Exchange difference 903 3,542
Changes in fair value of underlying items of contracts under

varlable fee approach (3,948) 76685
(8,090} 15,332

Finance income/(expenses) from reinsurance contracts held
Interest sccreted 1,155 1,109
The effect of and changes in financial risk 696 [1.072)
Exchange difference (721} [3434)
1,130 (3.397)
(6,960) 11,935
Amount recognised in income statement (5,430) 6,561
Amount recognised in other comprehensive incame {1,530) 5374
16,9600 11,935

12. Other operating income

2023 2022
HKS'm HES'm

Dividend income
- From investment in securities at FVOC! derecognised durning the year - 114
From investment in securities at FYOC! held an the end of the year 108 156
Gross rental income from investment properties 465 524
Less: Qutgoings in respect of Investment properties 71} 49}
Gain from disposal of associates and joint ventures = 3
Others 111 100
613 348

Included in the “Outgoings In respect of investment properties”is HKS2 million (2022: HKS7 million) of direct operating
expenses related 1o Investment properties that were not bet during the year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Net charge of impairment allowances

2022
HES'm
Het icharge)/reversal of Impairment allowances on:
Advances and other accounts
- At FVOC 48 T
- At amortised cost (6,467) [2,468)
(6,419) (2,545)
Balances and placemenits with banks and other financial institutions (22) (36)
Investment in securnities
- A PO (13} 120
- At amortised cost 15 (24}
2 ]
Lean commitments and financial guarantes contracts 120 151
{6,319) (2,334)
Others 14) {14}
Het charge of impairment allowances (6,333) (2,348)
14. Operating expenses
2022
HES'm
Staff costs (including directons’ emaluments)
- Salaries and other costs 10,143 9412
Pension cost 582 534
10,725 9,545
Premises and equipment expenses (excluding depreciation and armortisation)
- Short-terrn leases, leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments 56 10
Orhers 1,338 1,263
1,394 1273
Depreciation and amortisation 2,919 3,001
Auditor's remuneration
- Audit services 30 25
- Non-awdit services 2 14
Orther aperating expenses 2,689 3585
17,759 17,844
Less: Costs directly attributable to insurance contracts (1.152) (594}
16,607 16,950
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Net loss from disposal of/fair value adjustments on investment

properties
Mot loss from fair value adjustments on investment properties (Mote 28) {1,270) {1,305}

16. Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and equipment

2023 2022
HKS'm HES'm

Met loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and fittings (1}
Met loss fram revaluation of premises (Mote 29) ﬂlﬁl (1o
(135) {111}
17. Taxation

Taxation in the income stalement represents:

Current tax
Haong Kong profits tax
- Current year faxation 5,848 5742
- Qer-provision in prior years {15#_] (315)
5,690 5427
Taxation gutside Horg Kong
- Current year taxation 970 597
= Ower-provision in prios years (267) i
6,393 6,023
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences and unused tax credits
{Mote 36) (338) a1}
6,057 5932

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on profits outside Hong Kong has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countriesfregions in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Taxation (continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation that differs from the thearetical amount that would afise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2022

HES'm

Profit before taxation 40,914 33,162
Caboulated at a taxatlon rate of 16.5% (2022 16.5%) 6,751 5472
Effect of different taxation rates in ather countries/regions 171 99
Income not subject to taxation (2,052) [214)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 1,562 999
Cher-provision in prior years (425) (318}
Withholding tax outside Hong Kong 335 146
Cthers (285) (254}
Taxation charge 6,057 5932
Effective tax rane 14.8% 17.9%

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development's ("OECD") Global Minimum Tax ("Pillar Two") model
rules

The Group is within the scope of the OECD's Pillar Two model rules. Pillar Twa legisiation was enacted in Vietnam and
Malaysia, among the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, and will come inte effect from 1 January 2024 and 1
January 2025 respectively. Since the Piltar Two legislation was not effective ar the reporting date, the Group has no
refated current tax expense. The Group applies the exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities retated to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in the amendments to HKAS 12 “income Taxes™
issued in July 2023,

Under the Pillar Twa legislation enacted in Vietnam and Malaysia, the Group is liable to pay a top-up tax for the
difference between the Global Anti-Base Erosion ("GloBE") effective tax rate for Vietnam and Malaysia, and the 15%

minimurm rate,

The Group has assessed the average effective tax rate (calculated In accordance with HKAS 12} for the Group entitles
operated In Vietnam and Malaysia for the year ended 31 December 2023 exceeds 15% minimum rate.

Due to the complexities in applying the Pillar Two legislation and calculating GloBE income, the Group is currently
assessing the quantitative impact of the enacted or substantively enacted legislation. Therefore, even for those Group
entities with an accounting efective tax rate above 15%, thene may still be Pillar Two tax implications.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. Dividends
Per share Total Per share Total
HKS HKS'm HKS HES'm
Interim dividend paid 0.527 5572 0447 47215
Proposed final dividend 1.145 12,106 0910 3621
1.672 17,678 1.357 14,347

The final dividend of HKS0.910 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounting 1o approsimatety
HE$9,621 million was approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 29 June 2023 and was paid on 14 July 2023

At a meeting held on 30 August 2023, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK50.527 per ordinary share for the first
half of 2023 amounting to approximately HKS5572 million.

At a meeting held on 28 March 2024, the Board proposed to recommend to the Annual General Meeting on 27 June
2024 a final dividend of HK51.145 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounting to approximately
HX512.106 million, This proposed final dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements, but
will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the vear ending 31 December 2024,

19. Earnings per share

The cabculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 is based on the consolidated profit for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately HKS32.723 million (2022 HKS25.940 million)
and on the erdinary shares in (ssue of 10,572,780,266 shares (2022; 10,572,780,266 ordinary shares),

There was no dilution of earnings per share as no potential ordinary shares were in issue for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ and senior management's emoluments

(i} Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or recelvable by the directors of the Company in respect of their services
rendered for the Company and managing the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as follows:

Basic

salaries,

allowances

Directors” and benefits
fee in kind Total
HK5'000 HK$'000 HK5'000

Executive Director

SUN Yo (Chief Executive) - 6,313 3,320 - 9,633
Non-executive Directors
GE Hajjag™™! - - = - =
LIL Jin - - - - -
LIM Jingzhen = = - - -
CHEMG Eva® 600 - - - 600
CHO Keon Shum® 600 - - N 600
FUNG Yuen Mei Anita® 651 - - - 651
LAW Yee Kwan Quinn® 550 = - - 550
LEE Sunny Wai Kwong® 626 = - - 626
LIP Sal Wo® ==t 33 - - - i
MA 5i Hang Frederick® *==" 110 - - — 110
KOH Beng Seng® v 321 - = - an
TUMG Savig Wal-Hok™ v 345 - - - 345
4,134 - - - 4,134
4,134 5,313 3,320 - 13,767

Mabe 1: Appointed during the yaur.
Mot 2: Aesigred during the year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)
{l} Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Basic
salaries,

allowances
Directors” and benefits Other
fee In kind Bonus  payments®
HES000 HES' 000 HES'000 HKS' 000

Executive Director
SUN ¥ [Chief Executive) = 5,532 3320 = 8852
Non-executive Directors
LI Jin - - - - .
LIM Jingzhen - - - - -
CHEMG Eva® &00 - - - 600
CHOI Kpon Shum® &00 - - - &00
FLIMG Yuen Mei Anita® 500 - - - 500
KOH Beng Seng® 650 - - - 650
LAW Yee Kwan Quinn® 550 - - ~ 550
LEE Sunny Wai Kwaong® 1749 - - = 179
TUMG Savia Wai-Hok® 700 - - - 700
3779 - - - 3779
3779 5.532 3320 - 12,631

*  independent Nan-axecative Direcion
' including the contributions to pershan scheme for directors, inducement 1o join the Group and the compensasion for the loss of office
paid 1o or receivadle by directons.

Except as disclosed in above tables, director resigned during the year received no emoluments.

There were no directors walved emolumenis for the year ended 31 December 2023 (202.2: Nil).

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023 249

393/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)
{if] Five highest pald individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include one (2022 cne)
director whose emofument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining four (2022; four) individuals during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
HKS'm HES'm
18 20

Basic salaries and allowances

Bonus 14 12
Contributions to pension schemas 1 1
33 33

Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the yvear with reference to their tenure are within the

following bands:
Numbaer of individuals
= 2

HES6,500,001 1o HKS 7,000,000

HES7,000,001 1o HKS 7,500,000
HES7, 500,001 1o HKS8.000,000
HKS8,000,001 10 HKSE,500,000
HESB,500,001 1o HRSS,000,000 - i
HES9,000,001 1o HKSS,500,000 1 -
HES 10,000,001 1o HKS 10,500,000 - i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)
{ill} Senlor management's emoluments

Emolurments paid © or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to their tenure as senior
management are within the following bands:

Humber of individuals

[ 2]
HES0 1o HESS00,000 FJ
HK$5S00,007 o HKS1,000,000 -
HKS2,500,001 1o HKS3,000,030 1
HES3,500,001 1o HES4,000,000 1
HE34,000,001 to HKS4,500,000 =
HKS4,500,001 1o HKS5,000,000 3
HKS5,000,001 to HKS5,500,000 |
HKS6,000,001 to HKS6,500,000 2
HK56,500,001 to HKST.000,000 -
HK58,500,001 to HKSS,000,000 i
HK59,500,001 1o HKS 10,000,000 o

Ht-‘t““]“l!

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

Far the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel are defined as follows:

- Seniof Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are respansible for aversight of
the firm-wide strategy or activities or material business lines, including the Chiel Executive, Deputy Chief
Executives, Chief Fimancial Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Board Secretary and General Manager of Group Audit.

- ¥ey Personnel: The employees whose duties or activities involve the assumption of material risk, or those
who take on material exposures on behalf of the Group, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and
materially linked to the risk management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads
of material business lines, heads of major subsidianes and Scutheast Asian entities, head of trading, heads
of risk control functions, general managers wha report directly 1o the Chief Executive, as well as *managers”
appointed by the Group according to the Banking Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5 (continued)

Details of the remuneration for Sendor Management and Key Personnel of the Group during the year are as follows:

ll Remuneration awarded during financial year

Senior Key Senior Key

Management Personnel | Management Personnel
HKS'm HKS'm HES'm HES'm

Fixed remuneration
Cash-based 30 120 41 113
OF wiich: defermad [ - - ==
Variable remuneration

Cash-based 14 70 17 1]
OF which: deferred 5 28 7 24
Total remueneration a4 190 58 174
MNumber of employees
Fixed remuneration 2 47 13 43
Variable remuneration 9 47 12 41

(i} Special payments

Senior Senlor
Management Personnel | Management Personnel
HK$"000 HEK$'000 HK3'000 HKS'000

Sign-on awards

Mumber of employees - 2 - i

There were no guaranteed bonuses and severance payments 1o Senior Management and Key Personnel for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022 N},
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21. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5 (continued)
(i} Deferred remuneration

Of which:
Total amount
of outstanding
deferred
and retained  Total amount  Total amount

remuneration of amendment of amendment  Total amount

Total smount exposed to ex during the year during the year of deferred
of outstanding  post explicit due to ex duetoex remuneration
deferred andforimplicit  postexplicit  postimplicit paid out in the
remuneration adjustment  adjustments  adjustments financial year
HES'm HES'm HES'm HES'm HES'm

Seriar Management

Cash " 1 - - (5}
Kay Petsornel

Cash 48 48 - - {14}
Total 59 5% - - (19}

Of whiche
Total amount
of outstanding
defemed
and retained  Totalamount  Total amount

remuneration  of amendment  of amendment  Total amount

Total amount ~ exposed to ex  during the year  during the year of deferred
of outstanding past explict dise o £x dustoex  remuneration
deferred  and/or Emplicit postexplicit  postimplicht  paid out In the
remunevation adjustment  adjustments  adjustments  financial year

HES'm HKS'm HES'm HKS'm HES'm
Senaor Manegement
Cash 1 1 - - {51
Key Fersonnel
Cash 3 M - i (13
Toaal 45 45 - 1] {th
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22, Cash and balances and placements with banks and other financial

institutions

2022
HES'm
Cash 19,257 17735
Balances with central hanks 141,310 175993
Placernents with central banks maturing within ane maonth 13,595 17,834
Placements with central banks maturing between one and twelve months 3,052 3063
Placements with central banks maturing over one year 1,820 1497
159,777 198,387
Balances with other banks and ather financial instituticns 136,944 212,800

Placements with other banks and other financial institutions maturing
within one manth 37,872 50,489

Placements with other banks and other financial institutions maturing
berween one and twelve months 52,1 55,086

Placements with other banks and other financial institutions maturing
QVET ONE Year 611 754
227,678 eI
406,552 535253

Less: Impairment allawances

- Srage 1 [48) (43}
- Stage 2 - -
- Srage 3 133) {18}
406,571 535,104
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2023 2022
HKS'm HKS'm

Securitles
Tradirg assers
- Treasury bills 32,892 12270
- Certificates of deposit 7,449 3578
- Other debt securities 26,137 20,958
66,478 36,806
- Equity securities 69 59
- Fignd - H
66,547 36,8566
Orther financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss
- Certificates of deposit 401 Ly
- Other debt securities 48,556 57,774
48,957 58171
- Equity securitles 4,133 4615
- Fund 12,589 10,659
65,679 73455
Financial assets desigrated at fair value through profit of loss
= Treasury bills 375 624
- Certificates of deposit 35 355
= Othet debt securities 19,255 1,276
19,665 2,255
Tatal securities 151,891 112,576
Other debt instruments
Tradirg assets 3,800 3,400
Financial assets designated ar fair value through profit or loss 217,599 15237
Tatal ather debt instruments 221,399 18,637
373,290 121,13
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23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Total securitias are analysed by place of listing as follows:

2022
HKS 'm

Deb securities ard centificates of deposit

= Listed in Homg Kong 17,709 20,831
- Listed outside Hong Kong 44,657 23232
= Unfisted 72,734 53,169
135,100 97232

Equity securities
— Listed in Homg Kong 2,819 3,961
- Listed cutside Hong kong ] 1,“;_ T3
4,202 4674

Eund

- Listed in Homg Kong 341 1476
Listed outside Hong Kong - 337
= Unkisted 9,168 8857
12,589 10,670
Tatal securities 151,891 112,576

Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2023 2023
HKS'm HKS'm

SOVRreigns 59,456 35,728
Public sector entities 1,762 188
Banks and other financial instigutions 56,235 49,890
Corporate entities 34,438 26,772
Total securities 151,87 112576
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24, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters inte exchange fate, intedest rate, cammodity, equity and credit related derivative financial instroment
contracts for trading and risk managemeant purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on & future date. Interest rate futures
are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount based on changes In Interest rates or buy or sefl interest rate
financial instruments on-a future date at an agreed price in the financial market under the administration of the stack
exchange. Forward rate agreements are individually negotiated interest rate futures that call for a cash settlement at
a future date for the difference between a contract rate of interest and the current market rate, based on a notional
principal amaount,

Currency, interast rate and commodity swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows or commadity for
another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates {for example, fixed rate for flioating rate), or precious
metals {for example, sitver swaps) or a combination of all these {for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except
for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options are contractual agreements under which the sefier
[wrriter) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy {a call option) or sell {a put option}
at-or by a set date or during a set perod, a specific amount of the finandal Instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives a premiuvm from the
purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the
stock exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/rotional amounts and fair values of derivative financial Instruments held by the Group are set out in the
following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these Instruments Indicate the volume of transactions outstanding
at the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a basis for comparison with the fair values of instruments
recognized an the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or
the current fair values of the instruments and, therefors, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or marke?t risks.
The derivative financial instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (labllities) as a result of fluctuations in
forelgn exchange rates, market Interest rares, commodity prices or equity prices relative to their terms, The aggregate
fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time,

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded and OTC) mainly for customer business. The Group
strictly follows risk management policles and requirements. in providing derivative products 1o our customers 2nd
in trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also ysed to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book A derfvative instrument must be
included in the approved product list befare any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to
contral the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the maximurn tenor of the ceal is
set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation,
reporting and control
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24, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair values of each class of derivative financlal

instrurment as at 31 December:

Contract/

netiansd Fair values

amounts Liabilities

HKS'm HKS'm

Exchange rate contracls

Spot, forwards and futures 307,690 15,566 {11,035)
Swaps 2,098,292 16,176 (13,000)
Ciptions 52,950 469 (194)
1,4_55,!32 3_1,11 1 (24,229

Interest rate contracts
Futures 24,339 10 (19)
Swaps 1,810,768 21,461 (16,684)
1,835,107 21,47 {15,703}
Commedity contracts 16,627 497 (594)
Equity contracts 1,196 32 27)
4,311,862 54,211 (41,553)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2023

Contract/
Fair values

notional
amounts Liabilities
HKS'm HES'm

Exchange rate Contracts

Sport, forwards and futures 268,839 15,806 (10,068}
Swaps 1426428 15,226 (16,189
Options 28,565 374 [156)
1,722,833 31,406 (26413}

Interest rate contracts
Futures 99719 75 (5.2}
Swaps 1,500,924 29972 {23,326)
1,600,643 300047 (23.378)
Commodity contracts 14,501 361 (456}
Equity contracts B&3 18 {15}
3,339,840 61,822 (50,265}

(b) Hedge accounting
Fair value hedges

The Group uses Interest rate swaps 1o hedge against change In fair value of financial assets and liabilities arising
from movements In market interest rates. Interest rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises
from fixed-rate debt securities and semior notes, whose fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates
change, The Group only designates intenest rate risks 1o the extent of benchmark interest rates as the hedged risks
because the changes in fair value of the fixed-rate debt securities and senior notes are significantly influenced by
the changes in the benchmark interest rates, Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedging relationships
meet the hedge acoounting criteria,

Possible sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:
- MNotional and timing differences between the hedged iterns and hedging instruments;

- Significant changes in counterparties’ credit risk,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts and average fixed interest rate of the hedging
instruments as at 31 December by remaining contractual maturity.

months

HES'm

Ito12

months

HKS'm

1tes
years
HKS'm

1to3

Inberast rate swaps
Contract/notional

amaunts 1,388 4712 16,446 56,670 22,668 101,824
Average fooed
lnterest rate 3.40% 3.48% 2.90% 3.22% 3.02% MN/A

Inperest rate swaps
Contract/notional

Up o

1 month
HKS'm

1to3
months
HES'm

3to12
months
HES'm

1ta5s

years
HES'm

Ower
5 years
HES'm

AMOUNts 2665 2,664 7.736 76874 27928 117,867
Average fixed
Interest rate 34T% 3.29% 3.22% 3.07% 2.86% MNFA
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24, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)
Fair value hedges (continued)
The amounts relating to items designated as hedging Instruments are as follows:

Change in fair

Contract/ value used for
notional Falr values recognising hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness

HKS5'm HKS5'm HKS 'm HKS'm

Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate swaps 101,824 5,023 {142) {2.480)

Change in fair
Contract/ value used for

noticnal Fair values recognising hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
HES'm HES'm HES'm HKS'm

Dervative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 117867 7.290 {1649) 9,762
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)
Fair value hedges (continued)

Thee amounts relating to hedged itemis are as follows:

2023

Accumulated amount of
falr value hedge

Change in

value used for
adjustment included in ———

Carrying amounts tha carrying amounts hedge

Liabilitles Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
HES'm HES'm HES'm HKS'm

Inveestment in securities

Dabt sacurities 94,512 = 15.833] = 2,195
Debr sacurities and centificates of
deposit in istue
Seniot ot - 1.599) - 10 63)
94,612 {1,994 15,833) 10 2,132

Accumulated amount of

fair value hedge
adjustment included in

Change in
value used for

i, recognising
Carrying amounts the carying amounts

hedge
Assets Assels Uabilities  ineffectiveness

HES'm HES'm HES'm HKS'm

Ivestment In securites

Debit seourities 107,354 - B4tH - [9.9590
Dbt sacurities and cenificates of
deposit In issue
Senice nodes - 11.934) - 13 PE]
107,354 {1,934) (813 FE] (7855

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised s as follows:

2022
HES'm

Met trading loss (348) (124)
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25. Advances and other accounts

2023 2022
HKS'm HKS'm

Personal lcans and advances 600,813 551,286
Corporate oans and advances 1,101,489 1,096,983
Advartes 10 customeds 1,702,302 1,648,269
Less: Impairment allowanaes
Stage 1 {4,110} (3.995)
- Stage 2 {1,056) {2511)
- Stage 3 {9,555) [4,992)
1,687,581 1636771
Trade bills 3,751 6329
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (1) {1}
- Stage 2 = -
= Stage 3 = -
3,750 6328
Advances 10 banks and other financial institutions 1,815 1.5
Less: Impainment allowanoes
Stage 1 (2) ()
= Stage 2 - -
- Stage 3 -
1,813 1,04
1,693,144 1,544,113

Ag at 31 Decernber 2023, advances (o customers included accrued interest of HKS3,731 million (2022 HKS3,980 million).

As a1 31 December 2023, advances and other accounts at fair value through other comprehensive income and
mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss amounted to HKS4,512 million (2022: HES8.884 million) and
HE5863 million (2022: HK5832 million) respectively.
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26. Investment in securities

2023 2022
HKS'm HES'm

Investrment in securities at fair value through other comprehensive income

= Treasury bills 305,168 2B7 961
- Lertificates of depasit 25,910 42,144
- Qther debt securities 434,578 364,195
765,656 694,300
- Equilty secufities 4,706 3517
770,362 97817
Investment in securities at amortised cost
- Treasury bills 12 2]
- Certificates of depaosit 1,214 4,630
- Other debt securities 206,899 234632
208,125 139,058
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 47) {52
- Stage 2 = =
- Stage 3 - -
208,078 239,198
978,440 937013
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26. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities 15 analysed by place of listing as follows:

2023 2022
HES'm HKS'm

Investrient in securities at fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt securities and cemificates of deposit

Listed in Hong Kong 88,869 B6,572

- Listed outside Hong Kong 174,722 141,484
= Unlisted 502,065 466,244
765,656 594,300

Equity securities

- Listed in Hong Kong 1,040 1,060
= Unlisted 3,666 2A57
4,706 357

770,362 697,817

Investment in securities at amartised cost
Debt securities and certificates of deposit

= Listed in Hong Kong 15,827 13,839

- Listed outside Hong Kong 122,043 158,462

= Unlisted 70,208 66,895
208,078 239,165

978,440 937013

Market value of listed securities at amortised cost 134,598 165,062

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2022
HES'm

Sovergigns 490,733 506,386
Public sector entities 109,128 60,5900
Banks and ather financial institutions 286,490 268,507
Corporate entities 92,089 101,220

978,440 937,013
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26. Investment in securities (continued)

The moverments in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

At fair value

through other

comprehensive At amortised

income cost

HK$'m HKS'm

At 1 January 2023 697,817 239,196
Additians 1,316,600 40,655
Dispasals, redemptions and maturity (1,243,340) (71.516)
Amartisation 3,480 617
Change in fair value/fair value hedge adjustment 6,888 213
Met reversal of impalrment aliowances - 15
Exchange difference (11,063) (1,102)
At 31 December 2023 770,362 208,078

At fair value
through other

comprehensive At amortised

income cost

HE3'm HKS'm

At 1 January 2032 06,774 135,503
Additions 1,296,203 136,941
Disposals, redemptions and maturity {1,453 .974) (29.429)
Amartisation 1.024 1331
Change in fair value/fair value hedge adjustrment (30,225) (741}
Met charge of impairment allowances = [24)
Exchange difference [31,985) (4,385)
At 31 December 2022 697817 739,195

The Group has designated cerain egquity securities as equity securities at falr value through other comprehensive
incame, The fair value throwgh other comprehensive income designation was made because these are held for strategic
investments. Investments include subordinated Additicnal Tier 1 securities, listed and unlisted equity shares,

The Group derecognised certaln equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income with fair value of
HE5233 million (2022 HES2,796 million) during the year. The derecognition was made because of portfolio rebalancing
and the redemption by issuer.

266 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

410/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. Interests in associates and joint ventures

2023 2022

HKS'm HES'm

AL January 843 1,215

Additionf{disposall of associates and joint ventures 1,102 &)
Share of results (215) {330)
Share of rax (13} (%
Dividend recetved (431) 27
Exchange difference and others {11} &
At 31 Decemnber 1,275 843

The particulars of the Group's associates and joint ventures, all of which are unlisted, are as follows:

Place of
incorparation Interest
Mame and operation  Issued share capital held Principal activities
BOL Services Company Limited PRC Registered capital A5% Credit card back-end
RMB50,000,000 SEMVICE SUPPOT
FutureX Innovation Limired Cayman |stands U551 20%% Investment holding
Golden Harvest Cayman Istands 55100 45% Investment holding

{Cayman) Limited

Joint Electronic Teller Hong Kong HKS 10,025,200 19.9%%  Operation of 3 private
services Limived inter-bank message
switching netwaork in

respect of ATM services

Livi Bank Limited Hong Kong HKS3, 792,000,000 49.91% Bamking business
Sunac Realtor Capital Limited Cayman lslands U551 2056 Investment holding
Black Spade Asia Acquisition Co. Cayman Islands HES195,000 105 frnvestrment halding
GBA Equity Fund Il LPF Hong Keng WA 10.20% Fund

None of the above associates and joint ventures is considered individually or in aggregate material 1o the Group.
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28. Investment properties

2023 2022
HKS'm HKS'm

AL January 16,069 17,722
Additions 26 13
Fair value losses (Note 15) (1270} {1,305}
Reclassification from/Ato) properties, plant and equipment (Mote 29) 50 (361}
At 31 Decermber 14,875 16,069

The carrying value of imvestment properties is analysed based on the rermaining terms of the leases as follows:

2022
HKS'm

Held in Hang Kang
On long-term kease [over 50 years) 4,619 4773
On medium=-term |ease (10 to 50 years) 9.937 10,975

Held cutside Hong Kong

On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 281 235
On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 58 86
14,875 16,069

Az at 31 December 2023, investment properties were included In the balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31
Decernber 2023 an the basis of their falr value by an Independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Lirited.
The fair value reprasents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with
market participants at the measurement date.
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29, Properties, plant and equipment

Equipment,
fixtures and Right-of-use
Premises fittings assets®
HK5'm HES'm HKS 'm
Net book value at 1 January 2023 41,782 1,155 1,324 44,261
Additions 51 337 481 869
Dispasals (30) (8) - (36)
Revaluation {1,115) - = [1:115)
Depreciation for the year {1,181) [433) [569) (2.183)
Reclassification to investment properties [Nate 2E) (500 = - (50)
Exchange difference {2) (2) (4) (8)
Met book value at 31 December 2023 39,455 1,051 1,232 41,738
At 31 December 2023
Cost or waluation 39,455 6,557 2,814 48,826
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (5,506) (1,582) (7.088)
Het book value at 31 December 2003 39,455 1,051 1,232 41,738
The anabysis of cost or valwation of the above assets
I5 as follows:
At 31 December 2023
At cost = 6,557 2,814 9,371
At valuation 39,455 - - 39,455

39,455 6,557 2,814 48,826

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Repart 2023 269

413/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29, Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Equipment,
fixtures and  Right-of-use
Premises fittings assets®
HKS'm HES'm HES'm
Net book value at 1 January 2022 43,754 1338 1,319 46,441
Additions 57 i B45 1,033
Disposals (&) {3 - {9}
Revaluation [1.214) - = {1,214}
Depreciation for the vear (1,198) {500} (627} (2,323}
Reclassification from investment properties (Note 28) 361 - - 361
Exchange difference (4) {11} {13} (28)
Met book value at 31 December 2032 41,782 1,158 1,324 44 261
At 31 December 2022
Cost or waluation 41,782 7.163 2497 51,442
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - [6,008) (1173) (F.181)
Met book value at 31 December 2022 41,782 1,155 1324 44261
The analysis of cost ar valuation of the above assets
i5 as follows:
At 31 December 2022
At cast - 7163 2497 3660
At valuation 41,782 - - 41,782

41,782 7,163 2497 51,442

*  The right-of-use assets of the Group ere mainly related 1o lease of peoperties.

70 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

414/482



EDINETOOOO

o o {0 o2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29, Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

The carrving value of premizes is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as follows:

2022
HKS 'm

oOoOooodn

Held in Homyg Kong

On long-term bease [over 50 years) 11,608 12,034
On medium-term lease (10 1o 50 years) 27,542 29437

Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term bease {over 50 years) 56 &4
On medium-term lease (10 1o 50 years) 217 214
On short-term lease (below 10 years) iz 32
39,455 41,782

As at 31 December 2023, premises were included in the balance sheat at valuation camied out at 31 December 2023
on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
represents the price that would be received 1o sell each premise in an orderly transaction with market participants at the
measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were recognised as follows:

2022
HES 'm

Decrease in valuation charged to income statement (Mote 16) (130) €1y}
Dacrease in valuation charged to ather comprehensive income (985) (1,104}
{1,115) {1,214)

As at 31 December 2023, the net book value of premises that would have been included in the Group's balance sheet
had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HESS,181 million (2022
HE52A57 milllion).
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30. Other assets

2023 2022

HKS'm HES'm

Repossessed assets 162 334
Precious metals 11,627 11,507
Intangible assets 2,382 23
Accounts receivable and prepayments 32,719 23,048
Insurance contract assets 2 3
Relnsurance contract assets 43,792 48813

90,684 85520

The movements in intangible assets are summarised as follows:

2022
HKS'm

Met book value at 1 January 2,213 2025
Additions 205 B&G
Amortisation for the year (736) (678}
et book value at 31 December 2,382 213
At 31 December

Cost 6,938 6,727
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (4,556) [#514)
Met book value at 31 December 2,382 213

31. Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

The Hong Kong SAR curency nates in circulation are secured by deposit of funds in respect of which the Hong Kong
SAR Government certificates of indebtedness are held.
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32, Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2022
HES'm

Trading liabilities

= Shart positions in securnties 59,850
Financial liabilities desigrated at fair value through peofit o loss

- Repurchase agreements 4,194

Structured notes -

= Structured deposits (Note 33) 2,159

6,353

65,203

59451

2

2
50,453

As ar 31 December 2023 and 2022, the difference between the carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or koss and the amount that the Group would be contractually required 1o pay at maturnity to the

holders was not significant.

33. Deposits from customers

2022
HKS'm

Current, savings and other deposit accounts (per balance sheet) 2,501,682 2377207
Structured deposits reported as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 32) 2,159
2,503,841 2377207
Analysed by
Demand deposits and current acoaunts
- Corporate 153,646 165,006
= Personal 62,720 71,108
216,366 236,115
Savings depasits
- Corparate 519,868 AT 298
- Personal 451,245 521,441
971,113 993,689
Time, call and notice deposits
- Corparate 620,576 616,819
- Personal 595,786 530,574
1,316,362 1,147,403
2,503,841 2377207
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34, Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

2022
HES'm

At amoritsed cost

- Senior notes under the Medium Term Note Programme - 1,702

- Senipr notes under the Medium Term Note Programme, with fair value
hedge adjustment * 1,999 1,934
1,999 3,636

() In July 2021, BOCHE i#sued AMEBLS billion senior rotes, interest rate at 2.80% per annum payable semi-annually,
due in 2023,

(i} InFebruary 2022, BOCHK ssued HES2 billion senior notes, interest rate-at 1.33% per annum payable semi-annually,
due in 2024

35. Other accounts and provisions

2023 2022
HKS'm HKS'm

Other accounts payable and provisions 67,134
Lease liabilities 1.!M 1,298
Impairment allowances on loan commitments and

financial guaraniee contracts

- Srage 1 319 328

- Stage 2 30 36

- Stage 3 21 128
Relnsurance contract llabilities T4 766
B4,694 69,688
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36. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised In respect of the temporary differances arising between the tax bazes of azsets and |iabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and unused tax credits in accordance with HEKAS 12 “Income
Taxes.

The major components of deferred tax (assetshlizbllitles recorded In the balance sheet, and the movements during the

vear are as follows:

Accelerated
tax Property Impalrment
depreciation  revaluation Losses  allowances
HKS'm HES'm HKS'm HES'm
At 1 Janwary 2023 841 6,278 (831) (1,128} {1,976) 3,184
Charged/{credited) to income
statement (Mote 17} FL (165} (87) 109 {217) (336)
{Credited)/charged to ather
comprehensive income - (202} - - 614 412

Release upon disposal of equity

instrements 3t fair value through

other compeehensive income - - - - - -
Exchange difference and others - - - - 2 2

At 31 Decernbaer 2023 L] 5911 (918) (1,018} (1,577) 3,262

Accelerated

tax Praperty Imipalament
depreciation revaluation allowances
HES'mm HES'm HES'm

Al 1 January 2022, as previously

repanied B2 6,506 {4) {1,128 (65 5507
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 17 - - (B58) - 2 (654}
AL 1 lanusary 2022, after adoption

of HKFRS 17 B25 6,606 70 {1.128) (487) 4553
Chargedf{credited) 1o

income staterment (Kote 17) 15 {128) 63 {in (30 {51)
Credited to other comprehensve

income - {2000 - - (1,511} (1)

Release upon disposal of egquity
instrements at fair valve through

other comprehensive income - - - - 45 45
Exchange differance and others 2 - [24) 11 1 13
At 31 Decernber 2022 B4 6,278 1831} (1.128) {1,978} 3184
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36. Deferred taxation (continued)

Deferred tax aseats and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a legal rght to set off current tax
assers against current tax labilities and when the deferred taxation relates to the same authorty. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2023
HKS'm

Defared tax assets (1,480} {1,162}
Defarred tax Habilities 4??'1-2 4346
3,262 3184

2023 2022

HKS'm HES'm

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than twelve months {1,453) {1,007}
Deferred tax Habilities to be settled after more than twelve menths 5977 6,182
4,524 5,075

As at 31 Decermnber 2023, the Group has no unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses (2022 Wil).

76 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

420/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. Insurance contracts

(a) Reconciliation of remaining coverage and incurred claims for insurance contracts

2023

Liabilities for remaining coverage

issued

Excluding
loss Loss Liabilities for
component component  incurred claims
HKS'm HES'm HKS'm
AL 1 lanugry 168,674 160 409 169,243
InsLirance revinie (1.897) - - [1,897)

Insurance senvice expenses
Incumed claims and ather directly

attributable expenses - (&) 478 472
Amartisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows 177 - - 177

Changes that relate to past service =
changes in the fulfilment cash Row
relating 1o the [abilities for incurred

claims - - (13) {13}
Losses on onerous oonlracts and
reversals of thase losses - 354 - 354
Losses for the net outflow recognised
o inftial recognition — 69 - 69
177 a7 465 1,058
Insurance finance expenses/income) 8,047 48 5 8,090
Investment components (22,342) = 22,342 =
Cash flaws
Premiummns recened 25,743 - - 25,743
Claimg and ather dinsctly attributable
EXDENSES Paid - - [22,877) (22,877}
Insurance acquasitian cash flows (1.490) - - {1,490}
24,253 = (22,877) 1376
At 31 December 176,912 625 334 177,871
Insurance contract liabilities 17697 625 n 177,873
Insuranse contract assats 15) - 3 (2)
176,912 625 334 177,87
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37. Insurance contracts (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of remaining coverage and incurred claims for insurance contracts
issued (continued)

Liabikities fior remaining coverage

Excluding
loss Liabilities for
component component incurred claims
HES'm HKS'm HES'm
AL 1 lanugry 183,480 - il 183,700
Insurance revenue {15694} - - {1,594}
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other direcily
attributable expenses - ] 45 444
Amartisation of insurznce acquisition
cash flaws 76 - - 76

Changes that refate to past service =
changes in the fulfilment cash Row
relating 1o the labilities for incurred

claims
Losses on Onerous comiacts and
reversals of those lotses (43 - {£3)
Losses for the net outflow recognised
o Initial recognition - 160 - 160
76 115 L] 837
Insurance finance (income)/expenses [15,383) 45 ] {15,337)
Inwestment Components {19070 - 19,070 -
Cash flaws
Preraiumms receied 22530 - - 23530
Claims and ather disectly attributable
expenses paid - - (19.334) {19,334}
Insurance acquisition cash flows {1,265 {1,265}
11,265 ™= (19.332) 1,537
At 31 December 168,674 160 Ly 160,243
Insurance contract liabilities 168,677 160 L] 169,246
Insurdnse contract assets 13 - - 13)
168,674 160 5 169,243
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37. Insurance contracts (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the measurement components of insurance contracts not measured
under the premium allocation approach

2023

Contractual service margin

Present value Contracts

of future cash measured under
flows and risk Contracts the fair value
adjustment for recognised after approach at
non-financlal risk  transition date transition
HKS'mi HKS'mi HKS'm

At 1 Januasy 158,233 1.750 9,256 165,238
Changes that relate to cument service
Contraciuzl service mangin
recognised for the service
previded - {248) (895) (1,141}
Change In the risk adjustment for
non-firancial risk for the risk

sxpred {23) - - [23)
Experience adjustments (91) - - (1)
(114) (2a6) (895) (1.255)

Changes that relate to future sendce
Changes in estimates that adjust the
contractual servioe margin 1,599 (8] {1.591) -
Changes in estimates that result
in onerous contract losses and

reversals of thase losses 354 - - 354
Contracts intially recognised (2,926) 2,995 - 69
(973) 2,987 11.591) 423

Changes that relate o past senvice
Changes in the fulfilment cash
flovwwr relating to the babdities fior

imcurred claims (13) - = 13}
Experience adjustrments - - - -
{13) - - {13}
Insurance finance expenses/incomae) 8,018 (21) a3 8,090
Cash flows
Prermiums received 25,736 - - 25,736
Claims and other divectly attributable
expenses paid (22,869) - - (22,869)
Insurance acquisition cash flows {1.490) - - (1,430}
1,377 - - 1,377
At 31 Decemiber 166,528 4,470 6,863 177,861
Insurance contract liabilities 166,529 4,470 6,863 177,862
Insurance contract assels (1] - = {1
166,528 4470 6,863 177,861
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37. Insurance contracts (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the measurement components of insurance contracts not measured
under the premium allocation approach (continued)

2022

Contractual service margin

Present value Contracts

of future cash measured under
flows and risk Contracts the fair value
adjustment for  recognised after approach at
non-financial risk transition date transition
HES'm HES'm HES'm

AL 1 Januady 176,350 - 7337 183,587
Changes that relate to curent service
Contractual senvice margin
recognised for the service
provided (92 {981) {8,073)
Change in the risk adjustment for
non-financlal risk for the risk

expired (10} - - {10}
Experience adjustments (21 (121}
(131} 192 [281) {1,204}

Changes that relate vo future service
Changes in estimates that adjust the
contractual service marngin {3.039) 605 2434 -
Changes in estimates that result
in enenous contract basses and

reversals of those losses (43} - = {43)
Contracts initially recognised {1167} 1337 - 160
14,249 1932 2434 1"z

Changes that relate to past service
Changes in the fulfilrment cath
fiow relating to the liabilities for
incumed Claims = - _ _
Experience adjustments - - - -

Insurance finance (InComel/expenses {15.708) (30) 465 {15332}
Cash flows
Premiyums received 32,529 - - 42549
Claims and other directly attributable
expenLes paid (19.295) - . {19.295)
Irsurance acquisition cash flows {1,263} - - (1,.263)
180 - - 140
At 31 December 158,233 1,750 0,256 169,230
Insurance contract labilities 158,234 1750 9256 169,240
Insuranoe Contract assets {1} = = i)
158,733 1,750 9256 169,239
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37. Insurance contracts (continued)
(c) Impact of insurance contracts recognised in the year

Non-onerous Onerous

contracts contracts
originated originated
HES'm HKS'm

Estimates of the present valee of futwre cash outliows

Insurance acquisition cash flows 1661 227 1,888
Clalms and other directly attributable expenses 15473 4,310 19,783
17,134 4,537 21,671
Estimates of the present vabwe of futwre cash inflows (20,167) 14,474) (24,641}
Risk adjustment for non-financial rizk s [ 44
Contractual service mangin 2,995 - 2,995
Lass component on initial recognition - 69 &9

Nof-0nerous Onerous

contracts contracts
originated originated
HKS'm HEKS'm

Estimates of the present value of future cash outfiows

Insurance acquisition cash flows 1179 185 1,364
Claims and other directly attributable expenses 11,781 4167 15,548

125960 4,355 17312
Estimates of the present value of future cash inflows (14,308 (8,192 {16.49E])
Risk adjustment for non-financial risk 19 - 19
Contractual service margin 1337 - 1327
Less companent on initial recognition - 160 160
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(d) Expected release of the contractual service margin

An analysis of the expected release of the contractual service margin remaining at the end of the reporting period
charge to income statement after the reporting date is provided in the following table:

Less than

1 year
HKS'm

Ower
5 years
HES'm

Insurance contracts issued

837

2,729 1.767 11,333

Less than

1 year

Ower
5 years

Insurance contracts |ssued

HES'm

700

HES'm

2386 7820 11,006

The amounts disclazed In the table include projections of the coatractual service margin mecognition for the
services that will be provided or received in the future for the contracts in force as at the reporting date, but do
not take account of future interest accretion under the general measurement model and future adjustments of the
contractual service margin reflecting changes in the varlable fee for contracts under the varlable fee approach,
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38. Subordinated liabilities

2032
HES'm

Subordinated loans, at amortised cost

RMEBEZ0 Billion® = 22499
REBELD billign™ 11,018 11,255
U0 billign™ 7,869 7,850
USD billign™ 7,853 7846
RMBTT billign 18,704 19,107
USD billion™ 7,836 7826
RMB20 billian™ 22,043 -

75,323 76,393

In compliance with the applicable internal loss-absorbing capacity requirements under LAC rules, BOCHK early repaid
non-capital loss-absorbing capacity debt instrument totalling RMB20 billion in 2023. On the same day. BOC has granted
this instrument totalling RME20 billion to BOCHK.

(il  Interest rate at 2.20% perannum payable annually, due in 2024 with early repayment option,

(i} Interest rate at 2.47% per annum payable annually, due in 2025 with early repayment option.

(i) Interest rate at 5.30% per annum payable annually, due in 2025 with early repayment option.

fivl Interest rape at 5.02% per annum payable annually, due in 2025 with early repayment option.

(v} intesest rape at 285% per annum payable annually, dus in 2005 with eady repayiment option.

(vi) Interest rate at 4.99% per annum payable annually, due in 2025 with early repayment option.

[vii} Interest rate at 2.67% per annum payable annually, due in 2025 with early repayment option.

39. Share capital

2022
HES'm

tssued and fully paid:
10,572, 780,266 ordinary shares 52,864 52 864
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40. Other equity instruments

2022
HES'm

Undated non-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities 23474

In-September 2018, BOCHK issued USD3 000 million undated nan-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital
spcurities. The capital securities are perpetual securities in respect of which there is na fixed redemption date and are not
callable within the first 5 years. They have an initial rate of distribution of 5.90% per annum payable semi-annually which
may be cancelled at the sole discretion of BOCHK, Dividend paid to other equity instrument holders in 2023 amounted
to HKS1,392 million (2022: HKS1,390 million), BOCHK has redeemed all of the capital securities in September 2023,

41. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow/(outflow) before taxation

2022
HES'm

Operating profit 42,5 3497
Depreciation and amertisation 2,919 3,001
Gain from disposal of associates and joint ventures - 33
Met charge of impairment allowances 6,333 2348
Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (143) (&1}
Advances written off net of recoveries {2,955) (560}
Interest expense on lease liabilities 41 34
Change in subordinated labilities 1413 1877
Change in balances and placements with banks and other financial

institutions with original maturity over three months (5.111) [15325)
Change in financial assets at fair value through orofit or lass (21,460) (22.435)
Change in derivative financial instruments {1,082) (B137)
Change in advances and ather accounts (52,255) (50,004}
Change in investment in securities 23,960 62,540
Change in cther assets 9,.793) 9497
Change in deposits and balances from banks and other financial

institutions 57,047 (1694368}
Change in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6,750 46,933
Change in deposits from customers 124,475 46,052
Change in debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue (1,637) 1213
Change in other accounts and provisions 15,263 15852
Change In Insurance and reinsurance contract assets/Miabilitles 12,069 (2865
Effect of changes In exchange rates 5,495 23,234
Operating cash inflow/loutllow) before taxation 203,877 {21,348)
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41. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

2022
HES'm

Subordinated liabilities
AL January

Cash flows:
Payment for redemption of subordinated liabilities
Interest paid for subordinaved Habllities
Proceeds from subordinated liabilities

Mon-cash changes:
Exchange difference

Other changes
At 31 December

76,393 -
(21,937) -
(2,483) =
21,937 745186
{1,096) 1,545
2,509 33z
75,323 76,393

2022
HKS'm

Lease liabilities
At 1 January

Cash flows:
Payment of lease liabilities

Mon-cash changes:
Additions
Disposal
Other changes

At 31 December

1,298 1318
(813) (6951
480 645
41 34
1,206 1,268

(c) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
HK3'm HES'm

Cash and balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity within three months

Treasury bills, certificates of deposit and other debt instruments with
ariginal maturity within three manths
- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- investrment in securities

345438

229,191
112,301

686,930

479,150

B574
5320

540,925
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42, Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of contingent llability and commitment
and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
HEMA return of capital adequacy ratic.

2023 2022
HKS'm HES'm

Direct credit substitutes 1,117
Transaction-related contingencies 28,132 ?5.5356
Trade-related contingencies 16,068 15,908
Commitments that are uncenditionally cancellable without prior notice 628,682 533304
Other commitments with an original maturity of
- up kg one year 16,520 21,805
= CVETr ONE year 168,212 177275
858,731 Fra 047
Credit risk-weighted amount 78,102 79132

The credit risk-weighted amount ks calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount i dependent
upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

43, Capital commitments
The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial statements;

2022
HES'm

Authorised and contracted for but not provided for il
Authorised but nat contracted for ﬂ 233
641 444

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer equipment and software, and to
rencvate the Group's premises.
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44, Operating lease commitments
As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases:

2023 2022
HKS'm HKS'm

Properties and equipment

- Nat later than ane year 385 431
- One 1o two years 228 289

Twies 10 thifee years 73 132
= Thiee to four years = &

Four 1o five years -
586 858

The Group leases its investrnent properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases typically for @ period from
one to three years, The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent
adjustments according to the prevailing market conditions upon the lease renewal.

45, Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various indeperndent parties. These claims and
counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of the Group.

Mo material provision was made against these claims and counterciaims because the directors believe that the Group
has mevritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved [n these claims are not expected to be
material,
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46. Segmental reporting

The Group manages the business mainly from a business tegment perspective and over 90% of the Group's revenies,
profits before tax and assets are derived from Hong Kong. Currently, four operating segments are identified: Personal
Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and Insurance. The classification of the Group's operating segments is based on
customer segment and product type, which is aligned with the RPC (relationship, product and channel) management
model of the Group.

Both Parsonal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services including various deposit products,
overdrafts, loans, credit cards, trade related products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products,
and foreign cumency and derivative prodiects. Personal Banking mainky serves retail customers and small enterprises,
while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and
the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in additicn to proprietary trades. The Insurance
segment represents business mainly relating to life insurance products, including individual life insurance and group
life insurance products. "Others” mainky represents the Group's haldings of premises, investment propertes, equity
Investments, certain interests in assoclates and foint ventures and the businesses of the Southeast Aslan entities.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, Income, expenses, results and capital expenditure is based on the Group's
accounting policies. The segment information includes items directly attributable to 2 segment as well as those that
can be aflocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer
pricing mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the consideration of specific features
of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior management refies primarily on net interest
income In managing the business, interest Income and expensa for all reportable segments are presented on a net
basis. Under the same consideration, insurance service result is also presentad on a net basis,
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46. Segmental reporting (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023
et imeces [xpensedfngome
- atemad (11,4500 19,564 kTR 9 15 514078 - 51,078
- bter-segment 3074 b (30.764) U] (54 # = =
1573 nm 1 435 L% 1H s1408 - 107
bt e g coemmiasinn incomefpense]
Eatemd L. 18M 185 (2054 w 9,167 - 9,167
- inder-sagment (2,085 ] 15 13 5 T [Tad) -
4 1A nm 1) 1400 51 T #1467
Irsgoe wnvice fesdlt - - - n - L+ ] 1 ]
it T i) HH 175 6113 (el L1 0 | H 215
et g o] o ot Fieaniad et a1 o vake
fhiough proficor gy k] - 14 PR - 1% 1 un
Dt Vo] o oche Finaniad nsiraments - 1% [1322) 151} 1] {1468 - (14580
Insiance firang: [ppenseslingame - - - (5430 - (5430 - (5430
s operating income 1 1 n 1 LhLH] 1518 (285 613
Net cperating income before imgairment slowancer Hma 1588 AT 139 107 1316 (1518 500
i e evesal o impairment alwanced = |6212) L] m m (8333 - 16333)
Wt cperating income um 1,677 Lan 1285 118 (] (1F 17 5T
Ciperating expentaes {5607 (3411) 1,457 (57 BAS) Ded) 140 (16487
Operating profit I 15,866 6963 115 ki 41,55 - 41,558
hiet dpss from disposal olifa e adistmentson
TVESTRETH RpeTES - - - E {1278 [iF il = 13
et ks From disposalrevatisation of properties,
plant and eguipment [ = = = 134 135 = [135]
Share o resufts after tam of ataociates and join? verures [ril] - 5 - (v} (239 - (%)
Profi befors baation A 15,864 6368 118 pF ] T - LT
At 31 December 2023
ASSETS
Seiymer auels 56 10HIM  18MIB LR s s #4354 3847508
Irteregt in 2o and joisl ventue m = 1 L -] 147% - 1275
ESE12 LMSE BN 1TA60 Wi A [(4354) 3868703
LIABLITIES
Sepert, Fabiities L6 1120307 LI s s LT [B4354) 3,453
Year ended 31 December 1013
Other informatien
Capoal expendine # 1% 1 L 1681 1784 - 1,754
Depeeciation and amertisation 1648 1M ) B 138 1560 (41 130
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46. Segmental reporting (continued)

Seblotal  EBhmieations  Cormoliduied

HKE'm HK'm H&Sm
Year ended 31 December 2122
hiet imezest ingomefizperse]
- bagemad it 1558 100 Lin]] ! B0 = B
- Inker-secment LIEH ek [ {1 {145 = - =
Y565 nsm 11433 1587 1.8 #rE - H0
Nt e ] coeramesin incommedfmmense)
- bt &1 L 4 M m ] - BN
- Inlgr-sagment v & # 03 453 b 6 -
5312 355 7 X by 10366 L 1B
Insizance enncs 1esdn - - - 1 . 141 % AL
et iracieg i ] 1603 101% {5 s 1088 Fl 12
et kot oy ot [maincial insraments at fair valot
weuugh profit or s - - 1) masa . [{IF- - KT
Pt gaineficesl o thes Fingeial ingtruments - il [ L] b [ - 54
e frange [ppenseilingame - - - hi51 - 654 - 1
(eher ppersing income: # § & i 141 Lar AL B
et cperatinn incomTinpaest) befoee impairment
Slowerie LI 1655 1741 ) 4349 S (15650 M5
i feaegetvesal of impaiment dlowance; (32 (2008 n L) Bl (L - (134
Wit cperating incemeTexpesse) 165M gL 1741 f13] 428 ExLet] (1565 g1
Cperating expenius s L [54) 128! [T 18z HHh 116550
Chperating profitfless| T4m 1140 1695 Fm L5 Har £ wanr
Wet ks from disposal offfer walue adistmentson
irvestment proparies - - . = 1%5 (1305 - (L35
Fit koss from cisposalieveliation of properties,
plant and eqipmens n - - - i [mp - o
Share o results after i of taociates and jpin? vervurss o] - 4 - 5 [ H [
ProfiyThess) befiore tation 148 140 1453 il {20 e - EER].7)
At 31 December 2022
ASSETS
Soxymedt avsets $01%5 feil] ek 758 T I wan isse
Irieresty in assccianes and it et 563 - i . m L] - B
L {E R T v R 2T & 170505 74T LA R 1
LIABRITIES
Semers Fabises 1150319 1275631 8,103 FErE 105,546 4 A WA 13060
Yiar ended 31 December 2022
Other information
Capidl ecpendinume L) % L] i r13 1512 - 1502
Depeeciation and emorkation 112 m i) i d 138 i 41} 1ot
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47, Offsetting financial instruments

The fallowing tables present details of the Group's financial instruments subject 1o offtetting, enforceable master netting
arrangerments and similar agreements.

s e Retated ameunts
ol recognised  Net amounts of nat set off in the balance sheet

Gross amounts financial liabilities  financial assets Cash

of recognised satoffinthe  presented in the Financlal collateral
finascial pssets  balancesheet  balance sheet instruments’ i et amount
HES'mi HKS'm HES'm HKS'm HKS'm

Assats

Deriativee fingncial instraments 3 - nm (23,668) 123109 1213
Reverse repirchase agreements n,m - 1n,m 21 - -
Sequiities bomowing agneements 3,800 - 3,800 (3,800] % -
ooy sty 15,689 111,684) 4,005 = = 4,005

78451 (11,684) 6,767 {45,235) (12310) 518

Related amounts
nof set off In the balance sheet

Cash

presented in the collptenl

balence sheet pledged

HES'm
Lizhilities

Derivaive financial instroments 28,454 - 18,454 {23,614 [2,288) 1552
Repurchase agreements 44,455 - 4455 144,455) = =
Ctheer lishifitias 14,964 11, 584) 3,280 - - 3280
s 111,654) 76,219 (68,1091 (2,288) 5832
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47. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

Pelated amounts
it set off in the balance thest

Gress amounds

of recognised et amounts of

Geossamounts  Bnancial Gabilities financial ass Cash

of recogeined setoffinthe  presented in the Financial collsteral

firancial assets balange sheet balance sheet instruments ecetved

HKS'm HKS'm HKSm HKS'm HKS'm

Assats

Desivative financial instnaments 45254 - 45254 31504 (12534 06

Revesse repurchase agresments 17576 - 17576 (17536 -
Secuities bomowing agreements 3400 - 1800 34000 =
Cthoer sty 11354 B L14F ] - 2136
Ti5M ] £4372 {51808) (12534 082

B Rencid Related amounts
Geoss amounis of recognised finanial et 12t 0T In the balance sheet

ef recogeiied  financial avsets lipteities Cash

finznclal setoffinthe  presented In the Firancial collaberal

llabilites balance sheet balance sheet Instrurments pledged

Hi4'm HKS REEm Hith'm Hi¥m

Lizhilities

Deshvative financial instrements mr - i [EE24) 25T 176
Repuchase agreements nmr - 3Lasr @BLrEn N =
Other liabiities 10362 L1 138 ! - 1334

ThA3 e o214 13,587 rir] 4100

*  Inchuding nonecish coflateml

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative, sale and repurchase and securities lending and bormawing transactions
entered into by the Group, refated amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
predetermingd events oocur.
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48, Assets pledged as security

Az at 31 December 2023, the liabilities of the Group amounting. o HKS38253 milllon (2022 HKS27,986 millicn) were
secured by assets deposited with central depasitories 1o facilitate settlement operations. [n addition, the labilities of the
Group amounting to HKS84,241 millkon (2022 HKS46,757 milion) were secured by debt securities related 1o sale and
repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was HK5122,929 miliion
(2022: HK575.346 million) mainty incleded in “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss® and ‘Investment in
securities’,

In addition, the Group pledges securities amounting to HKS3.271 million {2022: HKS2.708 million) as Initial margin of
derivative transactions

49, Transfers of financial assets

Transferred financlal assets that do not qualify for derecognition include debt securities held by counterparties as
collateral under sale and repurchase agreements, The counterparties are allowed to sell or re-pledge these securities in
the absence of default by the Group, but have an obligation to raturn the securities upon maturity of the contract. These
securities are not derecognised since the Group retains substantially all the risks and reswards. Amounts received under
sale and repurchase agreements are recognised as financial labilities,

The following table analyses the carmylng amount of the financial assets transferred 1o counterparties that do not qualify
for derecognition and thekr associated financial liabilities:

Carrying Carrying Carmrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of

transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
HKS'm HKS'm HES'm HES'm

Repurchase agreements 44 389 43,866 32189 31,757

50. Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The Group invoives a number of fund investments in the normal course of business, which meet the definition of
unconsolidated structured entities, and earns management fee and trustee fee from those sponsoned by the Group.
The Group's investment holging interests in the unconsolidated structured entities were recognised in financial assers
measured at FYPL. As at 31 December 2023, the total net asset value of unconsolidated siruciured entities sponsored by
the Group amounted to HES 187,435 million (2022 HES159,172 million). Interests in unconsolidated structured entities
sponsored by the Group amounted to HKSS11 million (2022: HKSEDF million) and Interests in those sponsored by
other financial institutions ameunted te HKS12,078 million (2022: HKS10,062 million). For the yvear ended 31 December
2023, the above-mentioned management fee and trustee fee amounted to HKS660 million (2022 HKS581 millicn).
The maximum exposure to |oss from Group's Interests in these fund investrments s equal o the total fair value of its
investments In these funds,

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023 293

437/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn
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51. Loans to directors

Particulars of laans made to directors of the Company pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulaticn are as follows:

Aggregare amount of relevant transacthbons outstanding at year end

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactiens cutstanding
during the year 5 -]

52. Significant related party transactions

The Group is subject to the control of the State Coundl of the PRC Government through China Investment Corparation
{*CIC7), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd, (*Central Huijin®), and BOC in which Central Huljin has
controlling equity interests,

fa) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies controlled by the
parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Grouwp is controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CIC which is a wholly state-cwned company engaging in foreign curmency investiment managemant.

Central Huijin has cantrolling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking and other transactions with these entities in the normal course aof business which
include loans, investment securities, money market and reinsurance transactions.

54 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023
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52, Significant related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies controlled by the
parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. Related party transactions with BOC
as disclosed below constitute connected . transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rubes but under
exgmpticn from its disclosure requirement.

2023 2022
HKS'm HES'm

Inceme staterment items
= Interest income 2,520 1,242
Interest expenses 4,240 1,580
Balance sheet items
- Cash and balarces and placements with banks and

other financial institutions 134,248 206631
- Other assets 3,727 5478
- Investment in securities 8,009 27,450
- Depaosits and balances from banks and other financial institutions 75,445 95,344

Related party transactions with subsidiaries of BOC are summarised as below:

022
HES'm

Balance sheer items
- Cash and balarces and placements with banks and

gther financial institutions 516 2409
- Advances and other accounts 2416 1,000
- Depasits and balances from banks and other financial institutions 19,238 12,218

For details of subordinated liabilities granted by BOC, please refer to Note 38 to the Financial Statements.

Except as disclosed above, ather transactions with BOC and with companies contralled by BOC are not considered
material.
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52, Significant related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through CIC and Central Huijin,
which also directly or indirectly contrals a significant number of entities through its government authorities,
agencies. affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transacticns with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course of business at commercial
terms,

These transactions include, but ane not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-pank balance taking and placing:

- sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state controlled entities;
- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- pravision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, ransport, telecommunication and postage services.

(e} Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business with
associates, joint ventures and other related parties

The Group enters into banking and other transactions with associates, joint veniures and other related parties
which include but are not limited to loans, investment securities and money market transactions. The aggregate
income/expenses and balances arising from related party transactions with these entities are summarised as
fallows:

2022
HES 'm

Income statement items
Associates and Joint ventures
- Fee and commission income 20 )
- Other operating expenses 70 n
Balance sheat items
Associates and joint ventures
= Investment in securities #41 -
= Deposits and balances from banks and ather financial institutions 406 47
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52, Significant related party transactions (continued)

(c) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business with
associates, joint ventures and other related parties (continued)

The related party transactions in respect of the other operating expenses arising from associates and Joint
ventures above constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 144 of the Listing Rules and the required
disclosures are pravided in "Connected transactions” on pages 304 1o 305,

Except as disclosed above, other transactions with associates, joint ventures and other related parties of the Group
are not considered material.

(d) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors and senior management. The Group
accepts deposits from and grants loans and credit facilitles to key management personnel in the crdinary course
of business. During both the current and prir years, no material transaction was conducted with key management
personnel of the Company and its holding companies, as well as parties related to them,

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is detailed as follows:

2022
HES'm

Salares and other short-term employee benefits

53. IBOR reform

The Group manages fisks related 1o IBOR reform, continuausly monitors the risk exposure of IBOR reform and converts
existing contracts.

The following table contains details of financial instrurents that the Group holds as at 31 December which reference
synthetic USD LIBORAISD LIBOR and have not yet transitioned to an alternative interest rate benchmark:

2023 20232
HK$'m HKS'm

Finamcial instruments yet to transition to alternative benchmarks

Mon-dervative financial assets 2,773 178,040
Mon-derivative financial liabilities - 624
Derivative contract/notional amounts - 455,213
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54. International claims

The below analysis is prepared with feference to the completion [Rstructions for the HEMA return of international
banking statistics. International claims are exposures to counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the
locations of the counterparties after taking into account the ransfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in forelgn cummencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a location different
from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the location of the quarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
bank whese head office is located in another location, the risk will be transferred to the location where its head office is
located,

Clabms on individual countries/reglons, after risk tramsfer, amounting to 10% or more of the aggregate International
claims of the Group in sither year end are shown as follows:

Non-bank private sector

Mon-bank
Offlclal financial Non-financlal
sector institutions private sector
HK5'm HKS'm HK5'm
Chinese Mainkand 330,222 391,169 12,064 116,644 850,099
Hong Kong 8,439 16,902 43,698 357,81 426,870
Unived States 29,635 146,302 14,412 24,334 214,683

MNon-bank private sector

MNon-bank
Official financial Non-financial
sector instituticns private sector
HKS 'm HES'm HES'm
Chinese Mainkand G08, 109 223,505 17,001 119710 768325
Hong Kong 14,938 3,578 54,417 323,167 396,100
United States 32072 161,031 16,539 14,796 224438

798 BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

4421482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55. Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures s based on the categories of non-bank counterparies and the types of
direct exposures with reference to the completion instructions for the HEMA return of Mainland activities, which includes
the Mainland exposures extended by BOCHK's Hong Kong office only.

Items
in the On-balance Off-balance
HEKMA sheet sheet Total

retunn exposure exposure exposure
HE5'm HK5'm HK$'m

Central gavernment, central government-owned

entities and their subsidianies and joint ventures 1 348,102 23,154 371,256
Loca governments, kacal govesament-awned
entities and their subsidianies and joint ventunes z 84,392 4,981 89,373

PAC nationals residing in Mainland or other
entities incospoated in Mainland and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures 3 125112 20,785 145,897
Other entities of central government nol repored

i item 1 abowve 4 27853 2460 30,313
Other entities of local governments not reported

in itemn 2 abowve 3 1,406 162 1,568

PRC nationals reskding outside Mainland or
entities incorpoeated outside Mainland

where the credit is granted for use in Mainland 6 56,366 10,321 66,687
Other counterparties where the expasures are

considered to be non-bank Mainland expasures 7 2,917 - 2,917
Total ] 646,148 61,863 708,011

Wi

Total assets after provision 3,621,0M

On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
tatal assets 10 17.84%

BOC Homg Kong (Haldings) Limited Annual Repart 2023 299

443/482



EDINETOOOO
o o {0 o2
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

Items
In the On-balance Off-balance
HEMA sheet sheet Total

return exposung EXposune eNposure
HES'm HES'm HES'm

Centraf government, central govermnment-owned

entities and their subsidiaries and joint ventures ] 60448 18,067 397,515
Local governments, local government-owned
entities and their subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 BOD4E 6,753 B6,799

PAC nationals residing in Mainland or other
entities incorporated in Mainland and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures i 129,723 18,635 148,358
Ohther entities of central government not reported

in item 1 above 4 28978 1,630 30,606
Other entities of local governments not reported

in item 2 above 5 1362 205 1567

PARC nationals residing outside Mainland or
entithes incorporated outside Malnland where

the credit ks granted for use in Malnland 6 67,008 6568 74,066
Other counterparties where the exposures are

considered to be non-bank Mainland expaosures 7 1,856 a5 1942
Total ] 678,509 62,344 740,653
Total assets after provision 9 3422168

On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
total assets 0 19.83%
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56. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity
(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 Decembaer 2022
HKS'm

ASSETS

Bank balances with a subsidiary 1,147 476
Investment in securitles 822 807
Investment in subsidiaries 55,422 55322
Amounts due from a subsidiary 12,095 10287
Investment in associates and joint ventures 928 1,100
Other assets 2 2
Total assets 70,416 67,994
LIABILITIES

Amounts due to a subsidiary 5 3
Total labilities 5 3
EQUITY

Share capital 52,884 52854
Reserves 1?,54_? 15127
Total equity 70,411 67,991
Total abilities and equity 70416 67,994

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and signed an behalf of the Board by;

% ;
PRI >
FrTE N

GE Haijiao SUN Yu
Direcror Director
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56. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)
(b) Statement of changes in equity

Reserves
Reserve for
financlal
assets Retained

Share capital at FVoC] earnings Total equity
HKS'm HKS'm HES'm HKS'm
At 1 January 2022 52,864 (3.031) 15,149 54,982
Profit for the year - - 15,105 15,105

Other comprehensive income:
Equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive

Income - {149) - (143
Tetal comprehensive income - {149) 15,105 14,956
Dividends - - {11,947} (11,947
At 31 December 2022 52864 (3,180) 18,307 G679
AL January 2023 52,864 (3,180) 18,307 67,991
Profit for the year - - 17,598 17,598

Other comprehansive income;
Equity instruments at fair value

through other comprehensive

income - 15 - 15
Total comprehensive income - 15 17,598 17,613
Dividends = - [15,193) (15,193)
At 31 December 2023 52,864 (3.,165) 20,712 70,411
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57. Principal subsidiaries
The fallowing is a Hst of prircipal subsidiaries as at 31 Decernber 2023;

Place of
incorporation Issued share  Interest

ET T and aperation capital held Principal activities
Bank of China (Hong kong) Limited Horg Komg  HES43,042 840,858 *100% Bamking busingss
BOC Group Life Assurance Company Hong Komng HKS3,53 8,000,000 *51% Life insurance

Limited business
BOC Credit Card (International) Limited Hong Kong HE3565,000,000 100%  Credit card services
Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad Malaysia RM7E0,518.480 100% Banking business
Bank of China (Thai) Public Company Thailand  Baht10,000,000,000 100% Banking business

Limited

*  Shares held directly by the Coapany

The particulars of a subsidiary with significant non-controlling interests are as follows;

BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limited

Propartion of ownership interests and voting rights held by

nan-contrelliing interests 499 40%
2022

HES'm

Profit/(loss) attributable 1o non-controlling interests (263}
Accumulated non-controlling interests 2,993 2292

summarised financial information:

total asse1s 187,153 177427
= total habilites 181,046 172,749
- profit/llass) for the year 1,136 [537)
- total comprehensive income for the year 1,429 [3,788)

58. Ultimate and immediate holding companies

The Group |5 subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through China investrient Corporation,
its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huljin Investment Ltd. ("Central Huijin"), and BOC In which Central Huljin has
controlling equity Interests. The iImmediate holding company of the Group Is BOC Hong Kong (8v1) Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsldiary of BOC,

59. Approval of financial statements

The financial staternents were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024
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2022 12 30 2023
2025 12 31
BOCHK
2022 12 30 14A.35
2023 29
2023 2025
14A
2023 2023
1,000 193
1,000 186
1,000 188
1,000 294
1,000 54
1,000 79
1,000 69
5,000 161
5,000 42
5,000 2,164
200,000 371
5,000 102
5,000 1,005
5,000 87
200,000 8,431
200,000 63,810

3. HKFRSs 1FRSs CASs

IFRSs CASs
CASs HKFRSs IFRSs
BOC Hong Kong Group BOC
BOC

BOC
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IFRSs  CASs
2023 2022 2023 2022
34,857 27,230 323,429 325,835
998 1,009 (27.389) (29,572)
(152) (397) 4,577 4,934
35,703 27,842 300,617 301,197
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 128 to 303, comprise:
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;
the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL") for advances to customers
Valuation of financial instruments measured at fair value

Adoption of HKFRS 17 “Insurance contracts” and valuation of insurance contract liabilities
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL") for advances to customers

Refer to Note 2.14, Note 3.1, Note 4.1, Note 13
and Note 25 to the Group’s consolidated
financial

statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
advances to customers in the Group’'s
consolidated balance sheet was HK$1,702,302
million. Of these balances, the advances to
customers measured at amortised cost of
HK$1,696,927 milion and advances to
customers measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income of HK$4,512 million,
were subject to ECL measurement and an
impairment

allowance of HK$14,750 million was recognised
by management as at 31 December 2023. The
impairment losses on advances to customers
recognised in the Group’s consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2023
amounted to HK$6,418 million.

The Group assessed whether the credit risk of
advances to customers had increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and
applied a three-stage impairment model
approach to calculate the ECL. For advances to
customers that are classified as stage 1 or stage
2, the Group assessed the ECL using the risk
parameter modelling approach that incorporated
relevant key risk parameters, including
probability of default (“PD”), loss given default
(“LGD”), and exposure at default (“EAD”). For
advances to customers classified as stage 3, the
Group assessed ECL for each loan by
estimating the future cash flows from the
advances to customers.

We understood and evaluated management's internal
controls and assessment process for the measurement of
ECL for advances to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as the complexity
of estimation models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key internal controls over the
measurement of ECL for advances to customers. These
included periodic assessment and approval controls,
which primarily include:

(1) internal controls over the ECL model management,
including continuous monitoring of the selection of
modelling  methodologies, model optimisation,
approval and application of changes in key
parameters, and model back-testing;

(2) internal controls over significant management
judgements and assumptions, including portfolio
segmentation, parameter estimation, determination
and application of criteria to identify significant
increases in credit risk, default and credit-impaired
assets, as well as economic indicators, economic
scenarios and weightings used in forward-looking
measurement;

(3) internal controls over the estimated future cash flows
and calculation of present values with respect to
advances to customers classified as stage 3;

(4) internal controls over the accuracy and completeness
of key data used by the models;

(5) internal controls over the information technology (“IT”)
systems for ECL measurement, including information
technology general controls, data interfaces,
application of model parameters and automated IT
controls over impairment calculations.
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

The measurement of ECL for advances to
customers involves significant management
judgements and assumptions, mainly on:

(1) Segmentation of portfolios based on credit
risk characteristics, selection of appropriate
models and determination of relevant key
parameters;

(2) Determination and application of criteria to
identify significant increase in credit risks,
default or credit- impaired assets;

(3) Economic indicators, economic scenarios
and weighting used in the forward-looking
measurement;

(4) Estimation of future cash flows for stage 3
advances to customers that are impaired.

We have identified the measurement of ECL for
advances to customers as a key audit matter
due to the material balance of the Group’s
impairment allowances for advances to
customers and high inherent risk given the
uncertainty of estimates, adoption of complex
models, involvement of significant management
judgements and assumptions and use of
numerous parameters and data inputs in such
measurement.

We involved our credit risk experts in evaluating the
model methodologies, significant judgements and
assumptions, data and key parameters used in the ECL
measurement for advances to customers. The
substantive audit procedures performed by us were
mainly as follows:

(1) We assessed the appropriateness of portfolio
segmentation and the models adopted for the
measurement of ECL in respect of different portfolios
with consideration given to the risk characteristics of
advances to customers, the Group’s risk management
practices and industry practices. We selected samples
of ECL calculations and examined whether the
models’ calculation engines are consistent with the
Group’s methodologies;

(2) We examined the accuracy and completeness of
historical and measurement date data used in the
ECL models on a sample basis, including:

(i) in respect of PD: financial and non-financial
information for determining borrowers’ credit
rating, overdue repayment status, etc.;

(i) in respect of LGD: types of guarantees and
collateral, historical actual loss rates, etc.;

(i) in respect of EAD: borrowers’ outstanding loan
balances, interest rates, maturity dates,
repayment methods, etc.

by agreeing them to loan contracts and other
relevant documents. We also agreed the total
credit risk exposure in the ECL models to data
from other information systems;

(3) In respect of PD and LGD, we assessed the
reasonableness of the parameters by comparing the
historical expected default and loss given default with
the subsequent actual default and loss given default
for significant exposures through independent back-
testing;
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

(4) We selected samples and assessed the
appropriateness of management’s staging
classifications and judgements used in determining
significant increases in credit risk and identification of
default or credit- impaired assets based on the
borrower's financial and non-financial information and
other external evidence provided by management. We
took into consideration the credit risk profile of
borrowers and the Group’s risk management practices
in our assessment;

(5) For forward-looking measurements, we evaluated
management’s selection methodology for economic
indicators, economic scenarios and weightings
assigned based on statistical analysis and expert
judgements. We assessed the reasonableness of the
forecasted economic indicators by performing back-
testing and comparing with publicly available forecasts
from third-party institutions. We performed sensitivity
analysis on the economic indicators and weightings
under different economic scenarios;

(6) We reviewed the annual ECL model validation result
and assessment performed by management and
evaluated if significant finding has been addressed in
the ECL calculation;

(7) For advances to customers that were classified as
stage 3, we examined on a sample basis, forecasted
cash flows prepared by management based on the
financial information of borrowers and guarantors,
latest collateral valuations and other available
information and factors together with discount rates
used to support the computation of impairment
allowances.

We checked and evaluated the appropriateness of the
financial statement disclosures in relation to the
measurement of ECL in the context of applicable
accounting framework.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the models, significant judgements and assumptions, as
well as relevant data and key parameters used by
management in measuring ECL for advances to
customers were supported by available evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Valuation of financial instruments measured at fair value

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 3.2 and Note 5.1 to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s financial
assets measured at fair value were
HK$1,203,238 million, representing 31% of total
assets, of which (1) 12% were classified as
Level 1 fair value, measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets; (2) 87%
were classified as Level 2 fair value, measured
using valuation techniques for which inputs are
observable for the financial instruments, either
directly or indirectly; and (3) 1% were classified
as Level 3 fair value, measured using valuation
techniques using unobservable inputs that have
a significant impact on the valuation. Level 3
financial instruments mainly include unlisted
equity, fund investments and some debt
securities held by the Group. While the Group’s
financial liabilities measured at fair value were
HK$107,756 million as at 31 December 2023,
representing 3% of total liabilities, of which more
than 99% were classified as Level 2 fair value.

We have identified this as a key audit matter
due to the material balance of the financial
instruments measured at fair value. Also,
management has used complex valuation
models to determine the fair value of financial
instruments that are not quoted in active
markets. The valuation models involve
management’s judgements and assumptions,
including the selection of data inputs.

We understood and evaluated management's internal
controls and assessment process of the valuation of
financial instruments measured at fair value.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as the complexity
of valuation techniques and models, the subjectivity of
management’s judgements and assumptions in selecting
valuation techniques, models and data inputs and
susceptibility to management bias.

We tested the key internal controls over the valuation of
financial instruments measured at fair value. These
included controls over model validation and approval,
review and approval of valuation results, and the IT
general controls of related systems, systems interfaces of
inputs such as market data and automated calculations
within the valuation system.

We performed the following substantive procedures on a
sampling basis:

(1) For Level 1 financial instruments, we tested their
valuations by comparing to quoted prices in active
markets.

(2) For Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments:

(i) we assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
valuation models and benchmarked against
common market models, taking into consideration
the product characteristics and industry practice;

(i) we compared the valuation of Level 2 financial
instruments to quotation available from
independent sources; as well as tested
observable inputs used in valuation models;
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Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

(iii) for unobservable inputs used for valuation of
Level 3 financial instruments, we obtained an
understanding of management’s methodology for
the selection of inputs such as liquidity discounts,
discount rates, expected dividend, net asset value
of unlisted funds, etc. and assessed the
reasonableness and appropriateness of such
inputs by examining supporting information and
comparing to alternatives in the market with
involvement of our internal valuation experts. We
also performed sensitivity analysis on the
unobservable inputs;

(iv) we involved internal valuation experts to perform
independent valuation testing.

We checked and evaluated the appropriateness of the
financial statements disclosures in relation to fair value of
financial instruments in the context of applicable
accounting framework.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the valuation models, significant judgements and
assumptions as well as relevant data used by
management in the valuation of financial instruments
measured at fair value were supported by available
evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Adoption of HKFRS 17 “Insurance contracts” and valuation of insurance contract liabilities

Refer to Note 2.1, Note 2.19, Note 3.3, Note 4.4
and Note 37 to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 17 “Insurance contracts” sets out the
requirements in accounting for insurance
contracts it issues. The Group is required to
adopt the standard retrospectively from 1
January 2023, with comparatives restated from 1
January 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has
recorded insurance contract liabilities of
HK$177,873 million, representing 5% of the
Group’s total liabilities.

This is a new standard which requires significant
judgements in the selection of accounting
policies and the use of complex actuarial
methodologies that are applied for valuation of
insurance contract liabilities. The selection and
application of appropriate methodology require
significant management judgements. They also
require the

determination of assumptions which involve
estimation uncertainty. The valuation of
insurance contract liabilties was mainly
measured as the total of fulfilment cash flows
(“FCF") and contractual service margin (“CSM"),
which involved the use of key assumptions
about uncertain future outcomes, for examples,
mortality, morbidity, expense, lapse and
discount rates in the estimation of FCF and the
determination of coverage units for releasing of
CSM. We focus on the transition to the new
standard for insurance contract liabilities and
valuation of insurance contract liabilities at year
end date.

We understood and evaluated management’s internal
control and assessment process over the transition to the
new standard for insurance contract liabilities and
valuation of insurance contract liabilities.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as the complexity
of valuation methodologies, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We tested the key internal controls over the transition to
the new standard for insurance contract liabilities and
valuation of insurance contract liabilities. These included
controls over:

(1) selection and approval of the accounting policies;

(2) selection and approval of methodologies applied in
actuarial valuation;

(3) key assumptions used by management.

We involved our actuarial experts in assessing the
appropriateness of valuation ~methodologies, key
assumptions used and management’s judgements
applied. The substantive audit procedures performed by
us were mainly as follows:

(1) We obtained an understanding of the new accounting
policies including management's judgements in
determining the approach for transition and the
measurement of FCF and CSM, and evaluated
whether management had developed appropriate
policies;

(2) We obtained the valuation methodologies applied in
the valuation of insurance contract liabilities. We
assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies;

(3) We assessed the reasonableness of the use of key
assumptions about uncertain future outcomes,
including mortality, morbidity, expense, lapse and
discount rates applied in the valuation of insurance
contract liabilities with reference to market observable
data (as applicable), the Group’s past experience and
our industry experience;
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Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

(4) We assessed the appropriateness of the determination
of coverage units in respect of the services to be
provided against relevant publications; and

(5) We tested the application of the methodologies and
measurement of insurance contract liabilities, including
CSM and FCF on a sample basis.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the valuation methodologies, significant judgements and
assumptions used by management in the transition to the
new standard for insurance contract liabilities and
valuation of insurance contract liabilities were supported
by available evidence.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,

supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ms. Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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